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Edgewater Technology, Inc. (“Edgewater”) is a tech-
nology management consulting firm providing a
synergistic blend of premium Information Tech-
nology services primarily in the North American
market. Edgewater has the proven expertise to
plan, deliver andmanage integration services that
improve performance and maximize business re-
sults. Our proven expertise enables us to bring
complex technologies and systems together while
minimizing risk, leveraging our clients’ technology
investments and delivering tailored solutions.

Headquartered inWakefield, MA, we typically go to
market both vertically by industry and horizontally
by product and technology specialty.

With more than a 15-year operating history, Edge-
water has becomewell respected in the information
technology services industry by continually focusing
on five core values:

• Delivery Excellence
• Vertical Expertise
• Technology Excellence
• Client Focus
• Strong Operational Metrics

Company Profile

Financial Highlights
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As of December 31, 2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash andmarketable securities $ 22,775 $33,141
Accounts receivable 15,791 10,883
Goodwill and intangibles 53,715 29,163
Deferred tax assets 22,255 18,549
Other assets 5,690 3,884
Total assets $120,226 $95,620

Total liabilities $ 12,700 $ 9,370
Stockholders’equity 107,526 86,250
Total liabilities and
stockholders’equity $120,226 $95,620

Years Ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues $ 68,490 $60,083 $43,126 $25,322 $25,054
Gross profit 28,098 24,501 18,000 9,663 11,514
Income (loss) from
continuing operations 8,810 3,203 1,275 (831) 1,994

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
from continuing operations $ 0.66 $ 0.27 $ 0.12 $ (0.07) $ 0.17
Weighted average shares, diluted 13,358 11,956 10,653 11,283 11,694



The Year Ahead
Edgewater spent 2007 focused on
the Premium Services niche within
Information Technology (“IT”)
Services. As we continued our
march up the pyramid of IT serv-
ices, we decided to simplify our
message toour clientsby callingout
threekeybusinessofferings: (1)Technical Consult-
ing, and (2) Corporate PerformanceManagement
(“CPM”), and (3) Business Consulting.

For our Company, 2007 was a year defined by growth
and change. Edgewater doubled the revenue run
rate of our CPM offering. We are now one of the
largest Oracle/Hyperion service providers in North
America with specialties in Budgeting/Planning and
Consolidation. In addition, we acquired and are grow-
ing capabilities in SAP/OutlookSoft, IBM/Cognos, and
Microsoft offerings. Lastly, our 2007 acquisitions ex-
tended our services reach into the Western part of
the United States.

For 2008, Edgewater will continue to execute on its
successful strategy of migrating its services to the
apex of the IT Services pyramid. The move to Pre-
mium Services was the right call in 2003. We have
subsequently enjoyed traction and growth in the
CPM/Business Intelligence (“BI”) space and preserved
our premium positions in Strategy and Technology
services as a result.

Macro trends such as Social Networks, Mash-ups,
and the rise and challenge of Google are collec-
tively driving the need for companies to re-invest
in order to stay in the “game.” Again, as in 2003, we

feel the time is right to change our
services mix. Edgewater is strategi-
cally moving its offerings up market
into the emerging Web Analytics, In-
ternet Commerce 2.0 & Tools, and
expanded Data Services space. We
intend to be there with the skills and
strategies essential for client compa-

nies to claim their place on the delivery platforms
of the future.

With BI/CPM becoming a larger component of rev-
enue, Edgewater’s customer base is now broader and
more oriented to the Global 2000. While this is a
measure of our growth, we will continue to sell and
service our classic mid-market customers. I expect
2008 to be a challenging and changing experience
for us and additional opportunity as well. I am deter-
mined that Edgewater will be ready for both the chal-
lenge and change and will be one of the ultimate
winners in the IT Services space.

We remain focused on our core values of nurturing
long-term customer relationships, fostering our em-
ployees’ professional growth, and thereby, creating
long-term shareholder value. I want to extend my
appreciation to the Company’s team of profession-
als along with our clients and stockholders for their
support and commitment.

Shirley Singleton
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer
Edgewater Technology, Inc.

Letter to Our Stockholders
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Classic Information Technology Pyramid

Edgewater has clearly differentiated itself within the
marketplace. The Company’s strategy of driving up the
classic pyramid of services rather than drifting down
the pyramid to lower cost commodity programming
is contributing to the Company’s growth.

Edgewater brings High Concept, High Value and
High Touch to the top of the pyramid. Our special-
ties include, but are not limited to, such services as
Business Strategy, Data Services, CPM/BAM/BI and
Program/Project Management.

Since the typical buyer is a C-level executive, Edge-
water’s early strategic relationship as a trusted advisor
is creating channel influence migrating back down
the pyramid.

Business &Technology Offerings

Edgewater has steadily enhanced its of-
ferings to address the evolving need for
Premium IT Services, and plans to con-
tinue to grow our competencies in this
arena. We provide clients with a range of
business and technology offerings fo-
cused on assisting them in three primary
areas (1) leveraging line business with
technology; (2) implementing Corporate
Performance Management solutions; and
(3) envisioning and realizing strategic
business solutions.

Technical
Consulting

Corporate Performance
Management

Business 
Consulting

REQUIREMENTS & DESIGN
 • Functional & Technical 
 Requirements
 • Detailed Design
 • Technical Roadmaps

ARCHITECTURE SERVICES
 • Enterprise Architecture
 • SOA

• Technical Strategy & Roadmap
• Technical Architecture

 • Architecture Assessment

STRATEGIC DESIGN/BUILD
 • Technical Analysis
 • Technical Design
 • Custom Development
 • Java

• .Net
 • Transaction Analysis

• Product Selection
• System Integration

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES
• IT Audits/Security
• Remediation

 • IT Assessments
 • Remote Services/Support

DATA SERVICES
• Data Warehousing
• Data Integration

 • Data Quality
 • Data Governance
 • Data Repositories
 • Master Data Management

BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE
 • Analytics
 • Dashboards
 • Financial/Mgmt Reporting
 • KPIs
 • Scorecarding

• Web Analytics

APPLICATIONS
 • Forecasting
 • Budgeting
 • Financial Consolidations
 • Performance Scorecard

STRATEGY
 • Monetizing Knowledge
 • Mergers & Acquisitions

• PMO/PM
 • Business Process Improvement

• Business Continuity
• Internet Commerce 2.0

PRACTICES
 • Financial Services
 • Insurance
 • Healthcare/Life Sciences
 • Hospitality
 • Emerging

INDUSTRIES
• CPG/Mfg

 • Energy
• Higher Education

 • Info/Media
• Membership Organizations
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Strategic Premium Components
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n today’s complex business environment, organizations
are seeking ways to optimize business processes and im-
prove the delivery of information to customers, suppliers,
employees, shareholders, partners and other constituents
by enhancing IT systems. While many organizations sup-
port their Information Technology (IT) needs and initiatives
internally, many are faced with the realization that they lack
the resources or expertise to clearly identify where im-
provements can be made. Organizations are looking to
build, integrate and implement change across their enter-
prise and finding the right industry and technical expertise
to assist in this process is an important decision.

Companies turn to Edgewater, for a number of reasons,
including the need:

� For deep industry, product, data and
technical expertise;

� To provide premium consulting services in
an accelerated timeframe;

� To mitigate their business risk with focused
onsite project teams;

� To receive an outside objective perspective; and/or
� To serve as an agent to plan, manage and

implement change.

Edgewater specializes in providing organizations with
Technical Consulting; Corporate Performance Manage-
ment and Business Consulting. These offerings are focused
on assisting them in three primary areas:

� Envisioning and realizing strategic business solutions:
• optimizing business processes to improve the deliv-

ery of products and services;
• maximizing and unlocking the value of corporate

data assets; and
• providing program and project management.

� Implementing CPM solutions:
• providing dashboard and data cube design

and build;
• providing data warehouse and ETL tool strategies

and implementations; and
• combining all components into a comprehensive

analytics solution.
� Leveraging line business with technology:

• providing design, architectural, core data
and strategic build services;

• melding advanced business analysis with workflow
enhancement; and

• evaluating and leveraging infrastructure services.

Edgewater’s primary target is the client who wants expe-
rienced, highly-trained talent onsite for strategic, high re-
turn projects. We typically go to market both vertically
by industry and horizontally by product and technology
specialty. Our strategic consulting, custom development
and integration services offerings go to market by verti-
cal industry and currently serve clients in the following
industries: Specialized Financial Services (such as Student
Lending, Distressed Debt, and Private Equity); Healthcare
(Payor/Managed Care)/Life Sciences; Higher Education;
Hospitality; Insurance; and various Emerging Markets. Our
CPM/BI and Data Services offerings go to market horizon-
tally and provide highly experienced teams of product
specialists who span all industries.

Edgewater has the proven expertise to plan, deliver and
manage integration services that improve performance
and maximize business results. Our proven expertise en-
ables us to bring complex technologies and systems to-
gether while minimizing risk, leveraging our clients’
technology investments and delivering tailored solutions.

I

Delivering Premium Services

Edgewater delivers a rangeof blended solutions through a com-
bination of business-specific vertical offerings and advanced
product-technology horizontal offerings.



4

Edgewater develops business strategies and technology solu-
tions that address our clients’ specific needs while providing
themwith increased competitive advantage.

ith a disciplined infrastructure, mature internal processes
and a strong balance sheet, Edgewater has solid foundation
for future growth. We are emerging as a leading provider of
Premium IT Services. Our success can be attributed to con-
tinually focusing on five key core values that differentiate us
from the competition:

Delivery Excellence
With today’s economy dramatically changing, organizations
are focused more than ever on partnering with consulting
firms who consistently deliver results and quantifiable solu-
tions that provide their organization with measurable ben-
efits. Edgewater has a record of delivery excellence—which
is not only critical to attracting and winning clients, but also
retaining them.

Our enviable delivery history is built upon more than 15
years of proven methodology and processes. By being
committed to successfully delivering the solutions we cre-
ate for our clients, Edgewater has been able to build long-
term relationships with our clients who continue to turn to
us for their IT needs.

Vertical Expertise
Our team of consultants combine vertical industry knowl-
edge with a broad base of key strategic technologies to
serve our customers’ needs and deliver tailored and inno-
vative strategies and solutions. Edgewater uses an iterative
development methodology, with a focus on quality assur-
ance and project management, to achieve rapid deploy-
ment capability and success in assisting organizations
move through the barriers of technology transition.

Technology Excellence
Edgewater delivers our services by blending proven strate-
gic technologies and business practices to build scalable
custom solutions providing a solid return on the investment.
Our team of professionals has the business and technology
expertise to offer comprehensive strategies and solutions.

Our areas of expertise include: Corporate Performance Man-
agement and Business Intelligence solutions in planning,
budgeting and consolidation, business activity monitoring,
predictive analytics, architectural services (assessment and
builds), service-oriented architectures, Web analytics, ad-
vanced data and infrastructure services, transactional
processing and legacy integration.

Client Focus
Edgewater is positioned to provide our customers with on-
site services across North America. In addition, we stand
ready to provide those exact individuals remotely from Edge-
water’s North American offices should the need arise due to
client requirements or project duration. Edgewater’s client-
centric model is well positioned to serve the needs of the
Global 2000 for tight, highly-trained product specialist proj-
ect teams, as well as the middle market whose needs tend to
span the full spectrum of our business/IT service offerings.

Strong Operational Metrics
Since our inception in 1992, Edgewater’s original man-
agement team has built an organization that is defined by
a record of operational excellence, tracking key perform-
ance indicators and well-defined operating metrics to
manage our consulting resources, and their utilization.

W

Developing Business Strategies &Technology Solutions
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
 Some of the statements under “Business,” “Risk Factors,” “Legal Proceedings,” “Market for Registrant’s Common Stock and 
Related Stockholder Matters” and “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and 
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Form 10-K”) constitute forward-looking statements under Section 27A of 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including 
statements made with respect to future earnings per share, future revenues, future Synapse services, future operating income, 
future cash flows, potential business combination transactions, competitive and strategic initiatives or revenues, potential stock 
repurchases and future liquidity needs.  These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that 
may cause results, levels of activity, growth, performance, earnings per share or achievements to be materially different from any 
future results, levels of activity, growth, performance, earnings per share or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements.  Such factors include, among other things, those listed under “Business – Factors Affecting Finances, 
Business Prospects and Stock Volatility” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. 
 
 The forward-looking statements included in this Form 10-K and referred to elsewhere are related to future events or our 
strategies or future financial performance.  In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as 
“may,” “should,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “future,” “forward,” “potential,” “estimate,” “encourage,” “opportunity,” “goal,” 
“objective,” “quality,” “growth,” “leader,” “could”, “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “planned” “expand,” “focus,” “build,” “through,” 
“strategy,” “expiration,” “provide,”  “offer,” “maximize,” “allow,” “allowed,” “represent,” “commitment,” “create,” 
“implement,” “result,” “seeking,” “increase,” “add,” “establish,” “pursue,” “feel,” “work,” “perform,” “make,” “continue,”  
“can,” “ongoing,” “include” or the negative of such terms or comparable terminology.  These forward-looking statements 
inherently involve certain risks and uncertainties, although they are based on our current plans or assessments which are believed 
to be reasonable as of the date of this Form 10-K.  Factors that may cause actual results, goals, targets or objectives to differ 
materially from those contemplated, projected, forecasted, estimated, anticipated, planned or budgeted in such forward-looking 
statements include, among others, the following possibilities: (1) inability to execute upon growth objectives, including growth in 
entities acquired by our Company; (2) failure to obtain new customers or retain significant existing customers; (3) the loss of one 
or more key executives and/or employees; (4) changes in industry trends, such as a decline in the demand for Business 
Intelligence (“BI”) and Corporate Performance Management (“CPM”) solutions, custom development and system integration 
services and/or delays in industry-wide information technology (“IT”) spending, whether on a temporary or permanent basis 
and/or delays by customers in initiating new projects or existing project milestones; (5) adverse developments and volatility 
involving geopolitical or technology market conditions; (6) unanticipated events or the occurrence of fluctuations or variability in 
the matters identified under “Critical Accounting Policies;” (7) failure of our sales pipeline to be converted to billable work and 
recorded as revenue; (8) inability to recruit and retain professionals with the high level of information technology skills and 
experience needed to provide our services; (9) failure to expand outsourcing services to generate additional revenue; (10) any 
changes in ownership of the Company or otherwise that would result in a limitation of the net operating loss carryforward under 
applicable tax laws; and/or (11) the failure of the marketplace to embrace CPM or BI services.  In evaluating these statements, 
you should specifically consider various factors described above as well as the risks outlined under Item IA “Risk Factors.”  
These factors may cause our actual results to differ materially from those contemplated, projected, anticipated, planned or 
budgeted in any such forward-looking statements.  
 
 Although we believe that the expectations in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future 
results, levels of activity, performance, growth, earnings per share or achievements.  However, neither we nor any other person 
assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of such statements.  We are under no duty to update any of the 
forward-looking statements after the date of this Form 10-K to conform such statements to actual results. 
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PART I 
 
AVAILABLE INFORMATION; BACKGROUND 

 
Edgewater Technology, Inc. maintains executive offices located at 20 Harvard Mill Square, Wakefield, MA 01880-3209.  

Our telephone number is (781) 246-3343. Our stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “EDGW.” Our 
Internet address is www.edgewater.com. We make available, free of charge, on the Investor Relations section of our website, our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those 
reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(the “SEC”). Copies are also available, without charge, from Edgewater Technology, Attn: Investor Relations, 20 Harvard Mill 
Square, Wakefield, MA  01880-3209 or by emailing ir@edgewater.com.  Alternatively, reports filed with the SEC may be 
viewed or obtained at the SEC Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C., or the SEC’s Internet site at www.sec.gov.  We do 
not intend for information contained in our website to be part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.   

 
In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we use the terms “Edgewater Technology,” “Edgewater,” “we,” “our Company,” “the 

Company,” “our,” and “us” to refer to Edgewater Technology, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.  A listing of our wholly-
owned subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 is included as Exhibit 21.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.   
 
 
ITEM 1.  BUSINESS 
 
Overview 
 

Edgewater is a technology management consulting firm providing a synergistic blend of premium IT services primarily in 
the North American market.  We work with our clients onsite providing services focused in three primary areas:  

 
 envisioning and realizing strategic business solutions: 

o optimizing business processes to improve the delivery of products and services; 
o maximizing and unlocking the value of corporate data assets; and 
o providing program and project management. 
 

 implementing corporate performance management solutions: 
o providing dashboard and data cube design and build; 
o providing data warehouse and ETL tool strategies and implementations; and 
o combining all components into a comprehensive analytics solution. 
 

 leveraging line business with technology: 
o providing design, architectural, core data, and strategic build services;  
o melding advanced business analysis with workflow enhancement; and  
o evaluating and leveraging infrastructure services. 

 
Our primary target is the client who wants experienced, highly trained talent onsite for strategic, high return projects.  

Edgewater typically goes to market both vertically by industry and horizontally by product and technology specialty.  Our 
strategic consulting, custom development and integration services offerings go to market by vertical industry and currently serve 
clients in the following industries:  Specialized Financial Services (such as Student Lending, Distressed Debt, and Private 
Equity); Healthcare (Payor/Managed Care)/Life Sciences; Higher Education; Hospitality; Insurance; and various Emerging 
Markets.   Our BI/CPM and Data Services offerings go to market horizontally and provide highly experienced teams of product 
specialists who span all industries.  
 
 
Industry Dynamics and Opportunity 
 

Industry Dynamics.  In today’s complex business environment, organizations are seeking ways to optimize business 
processes and improve the delivery of information to customers, suppliers, employees, stockholders, partners and other 
constituents through the use of advanced IT systems and software products.  While many organizations support their IT needs 
and initiatives internally, many are faced with the realization that they lack the resources or expertise to clearly identify where 
improvements can be made and implement them.  Businesses are looking to build, integrate and implement change across their 
enterprise and finding the right industry, software product, and technical expertise to assist in this process is a critical decision.   
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Companies typically turn to consulting firms, like Edgewater, to fill these internal project gaps for a number of different 
needs:  
 

 For deep industry, product, data and technical expertise;  
 To provide premium consulting services in an accelerated timeframe;  
 To mitigate their business risk with focused onsite project teams;  
 To receive an outside objective perspective; and/or  
 To serve as an agent to plan, manage and implement change.  

 
We believe a structural change is taking place in the consulting industry. The change is two-fold: customer buying habits are 

becoming more complex and industry dynamics are evolving.   
 
Customers with sufficient scale are looking for lower cost commodity programming services to reduce overall operational 

expenses and tend to look for offshore solutions.  Offshore solutions are now mature, well understood and serve large scale 
Business Process Outsourcing and IT Service maintenance cheaply and efficiently.   However, offshore solutions do not address 
all IT Service needs.  Many companies are seeking premium consulting services to facilitate and expedite the management and 
implementation of smaller strategic projects, both product-based and custom vertically focused systems.   Many companies are 
looking to local firms to build strategic components or systems that address a specialized business problem.  Premium IT 
services, with its combination of business context and technology, usually proves to be the most effective solution in terms of 
project time and cost. 
 

Industry Opportunity.  Technology has become such an integral part of business that it requires skilled strategic management 
in its own right.  Technology has become a key enabler to business change when the appropriate strategic steps, a meld of 
business process change and technology, are well laid out and thoughtfully executed.  Technology management consulting firms 
deliver innovative strategic thinking and in-depth vertical industry expertise, along with the ability to implement business process 
transformation through the judicious use of the appropriate technologies.   We have steadily enhanced our offerings to address the 
evolving need for premium IT services and plan to continue to grow our competencies in this arena. 

 
 

Competitive Strengths 
 

Edgewater offers premium IT services, IT with business context knowledge, designed to assist our clients in improving 
financial and operational performance across their enterprise.  We develop business strategies and technology solutions that 
address their specific needs while providing them with increased competitive advantage. We feel that five core values 
differentiate us from the competition.  

 
 These values include the following: 
 
(1) Delivery Excellence — Our history is built upon more than fifteen years of proven methodology and well-defined 

process, in addition to continually delivering business and technology solutions that work.  Our delivery excellence is 
a derivative of a well-defined business plan, highly-skilled consultants, strong technical expertise and established 
implementation and support methodologies.  Most importantly, we use an iterative business and technology approach, 
with an emphasis on quality assurance and project management, to achieve rapid and successful deployment of our 
solutions. Our delivery history has contributed to our ability to build long-term customer relationships. 

 
(2) Vertical Expertise — We combine vertical industry knowledge with a broad base of key strategic technologies to 

serve our customers’ needs and deliver tailored and innovative strategies and solutions.  The primary vertical markets 
where we have developed core competencies include: Specialized Financial Services (such as Student Lending, 
Distressed Debt and Private Equity); Healthcare (Payor/Managed Care)/Life Sciences; Higher Education; Hospitality; 
Insurance; and various Emerging Markets.  For the BI/CPM and Data Services space, Edgewater fields highly 
experienced teams of product specialists across all industries.  

 
(3) Technology Excellence — We deliver our services by blending proven strategic technologies and business practices to 

build scalable custom solutions providing a solid return on the investment.  Our team of professionals has the business 
and technology expertise to offer comprehensive strategies and solutions.  Our areas of expertise include: BI and CPM 
solutions in planning, budgeting and consolidation, business activity monitoring, predictive analytics, architectural 
services (assessment and builds), service-oriented architectures, Web analytics, advanced data and infrastructure 
services, transactional processing and legacy integration. 

 
(4) Client Focus — Edgewater is positioned to provide our customers with onsite services across North America.  In 

addition, we stand ready to provide those exact individuals remotely from Edgewater’s North American offices should 
the need arise due to client requirements or project duration.  Edgewater’s client-centric model is well positioned to 
serve the needs of the Global 2000 for tight, highly-trained product specialist project teams, as well as the middle 
market whose needs tend to span the full spectrum of our business/IT service offerings. 
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(5) Strong Operational Metrics — Since our inception in 1992, Edgewater’s original management team has built an 
organization that is defined by a record of operational excellence, tracking key performance indicators and well-defined 
operating metrics to manage our consulting resources, utilization and gross margin. 

 
 
Business Strategy 
 

Our business strategy is to position our Company as the leading provider of premium IT services. We believe we can attain 
this strategic objective by delivering a range of blended solutions through a combination of business specific vertical offerings 
and advanced product technology horizontal offerings. This approach enables Edgewater to progress up the IT services pyramid 
and provides a measure of influence over the sourcing of integration and software builds. To attain our business strategy 
objective, we will maximize our ability to deliver the following capabilities: 

 
 Envision and realize strategic business solutions.  We plan to serve our clients by delivering industry-based process re-

engineering services coupled with strategic technology management services.  These strategic business solutions will 
assist clients to align their specific business goals with an enterprise-wide IT strategy.  We initially conduct an overall IT 
assessment and business analysis.  This involves a detailed evaluation of possible technology alternatives, including 
whether the solution should be a package solution, a customized solution or a combination of both.   

 
 Implement Corporate Performance Management solutions. The primary goal of the CPM solutions we develop is to 

improve financial performance and operating metrics across a client’s enterprise.  We develop these solutions by 
leveraging a blend of BI technology and horizontal expertise in advanced CPM applications, such as Planning, 
Budgeting and Consolidation.  Edgewater partners with industry CPM leaders, such as Oracle USA, Inc. (formerly 
Hyperion Solutions), IBM/Cognos Incorporated, SAP/OutlookSoft, Business Objects, Microsoft, and Informatica 
Corporation.  With CPM, clients are able to improve their overall operational performance and productivity. A client’s 
ability to extract data and alert management of operational issues can enhance near real-time decision making - 
otherwise known as Business Activity Monitoring, a building block of CPM. 

 
 Optimize business processes to improve the delivery of products and services.  We deliver solutions that integrate 

effectively into our client’s existing infrastructure while improving business operations that support the generation of 
revenue.  We develop these solutions by conducting business process analysis.  The analysis enables us to map business 
process with technology.  

 
 Provide program and project management.  We have the ability to develop programs that manage multiple projects 

including those that are complex and could involve multiple local and global vendors.  To build the best strategic, 
customized solutions, we take all facets of our client’s business into consideration and make recommendations that 
include an approach of integrating packaged and customized solutions together to form one cohesive solution. 

 
 Maximize and unlock the value of corporate data assets.  Edgewater provides its clients with the necessary knowledge 

and experience to successfully integrate data from the most complex systems.  With proven methodologies, we deliver 
data integration solutions, including data warehouses and data marts, enabling organizations to access, integrate, 
transform and deliver enterprise data from any source. 

 
 Infrastructure services. We offer a complete range of managed IT services that enable our middle-market clients to 

concentrate on their core business, while being assured their technical infrastructure will support them as they grow.  We 
offer services including infrastructure assessment and remediation, technology consulting, IT due diligence, as well as 
managed solution care, which includes hosting solutions; remote monitoring and maintenance; network and operating 
systems maintenance; and application maintenance. These strategic services ensure that our clients’ technical 
infrastructure will properly support their short- and long-term business requirements, while aligning their business goals 
with their technical capabilities. 

 
 Access and leverage our blend of industry and technology expertise. Across all of our service offerings, we provide a 

combination of vertical business knowledge along with technology expertise in the areas of strategy, technology and 
program management.  This approach enables us to deliver powerful business solutions for our clients. 
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Our Services 
 

Edgewater offers a full spectrum of services and expertise to ensure the success of our engagement.  Our premium IT 
services are consolidated into three major synergistic offerings: (1) Technical Consulting, (2) Corporate Performance 
Management (“CPM”), and (3) Business Consulting. The diagram that follows clearly illustrates these three offerings: 

 
 

Edgewater has the proven expertise to plan, deliver and manage integration services that improve performance and 
maximize business results. We focus on deploying new systems and unlocking the value of the existing corporate data assets. 
This proven expertise enables us to bring complex technologies and systems together while minimizing risk, leveraging our 
clients’ technology investments and delivering tailored solutions.  

 
 

Customers; Significant Customers    
 

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from large projects with a limited number of customers.  In 2007, our five 
largest customers accounted for 45.1% of our service revenues.  In 2006, our five largest customers accounted for 46.9% of our 
service revenues.  In addition, The Synapse Group, Inc. (“Synapse”) is considered both a significant customer and a related party.  
For further details, see “Item 1A – Risk Factors – Our Reliance Upon Synapse” and “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Related-Party Transactions: Synapse.”  During 2007, we recorded 
revenues from 73 new customers, excluding revenue generated from customers added through our current year acquisitions, as 
compared to 61 new customers in 2006.  
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Marketing, Sales and Strategic Alliances 
 
 Marketing.   The primary goal of all of our marketing efforts is to generate sales opportunities by increasing Edgewater’s 
brand awareness and value proposition.  Our marketing efforts continued to be closely aligned with our go-to-market strategy, 
while introducing specific offerings that address business and IT challenges clients face within a particular vertical market.  We 
have developed core competencies in delivering our services in key markets to increase the efficiency of our marketing efforts; 
we target specific areas of content on a monthly basis for each of our vertical practice areas.  Marketing builds campaigns around 
each content area, which include: marketing collateral, webinars, sell sheets, tradeshow/conference participation, speaking 
engagements, direct mail and public relations activities. 
 
 Sales.   Our sales approach is to combine traditional sales with our strength in verticals and technology.  Our traditional sales 
function is comprised of direct sales professionals and inside sales professionals.  Both work closely with our practice directors to 
identify potential opportunities within each account.  Using a consultative selling methodology, target prospects are identified 
and a pursuit plan is developed for each key account.  When contact with a target is established, we utilize a blended sales model 
to demonstrate our expertise, combining consultative selling with traditional sales methods, which typically consists of a business 
development manager, an industry consultant and a technology consultant.  This team approach to selling allows Edgewater to 
demonstrate, from the initial contact point, its expertise in both the specific industry as well as technology.  Once the customer 
has engaged Edgewater, our sales professionals maintain their relationships with the customer by working collaboratively with 
the consulting professionals who are assigned to the customer. 
 
 Strategic Alliances.   As part of our sales and marketing effort, we have established working relationships with a number of 
companies, including:  American Student Assistance, EMC/Document Sciences Corporation, IBM/Cognos, Informatica 
Corporation, ISO Insurance Technology Solutions, Microsoft, Optical Image Technology, Oracle USA, Inc. (formerly Hyperion 
Solutions), SAP/OutlookSoft and Sun Microsystems.  These alliances generally entail sharing sales leads, joint marketing efforts, 
making joint customer presentations, negotiating discounts on license fees or other charges and conducting similar activities.  Our 
arrangements with many of these companies are informal and are not subject to definitive written agreements.  For those 
companies with whom we do have definitive written agreements, those agreements are either terminable at will by either party or 
are for terms of one year or less.  We believe we have been successful in establishing alliances with a strong group of companies 
who are either industry leaders or well-regarded new entrants.  
 
 
Professional Recruitment, Retention and Development  
 
 Our success depends in part upon our ability to recruit and retain business and technology professionals with the high level of 
skills and experience needed to provide our premium services. We believe that the combination of professional support, 
intellectual challenge, corporate culture and compensation we offer will continue to be attractive to these highly-skilled 
professionals.  Our working environment also fosters collaboration, creativity and innovation.  We believe that our employees are 
one of our most valuable assets. 
 
 Employees.   As of December 31, 2007, Edgewater had 367 employees.  Of these employees, 302 were billable consultants 
and 65 were management and administrative personnel, comprising sales, marketing, human resources, finance, accounting, 
internal information systems and administrative support.  The average tenure of our employee base is approximately 4.2 years 
and the average “years of experience” is approximately 14 years. Our employees are not represented by a collective bargaining 
agreement. We believe that our employee relations are strong. 
 
 Culture.   We believe that our business culture is critically important in hiring and retaining qualified professionals.  Our 
ability to provide effective multidisciplinary teams is dependent upon our ability to develop and sustain a business culture that is 
common across all disciplines and vertical practices throughout our Company.  Our employees are talented and energetic 
professionals that come from a multitude of professional backgrounds.  Edgewater believes that this creates an exciting, diverse, 
and creative work environment for our employees. 
 
 Compensation.   We have a competitive compensation program that has been structured to attract and retain highly-skilled 
professionals.  Edgewater’s cash, bonus and equity compensation plans are tied to the achievement of the Company’s financial 
performance along with individual and team performance goals. 
 
 Recruiting.   We believe that our long-term success will depend upon our ability to attract, retain and motivate highly-skilled 
employees.  Our recruitment department has traditionally conducted its own direct recruiting efforts and coordinated informal 
and search firm referrals.  We believe that our business model, which results in an intellectually stimulating work environment, 
provides greater opportunities for professional development and a dynamic corporate culture, which enhances our ability to 
attract and retain top professionals.  
 
 Professional Development.   We believe that providing our professionals with a wide variety of challenging projects, the 
opportunity to demonstrate ability and achieve professional advancement are keys to their retention.  We work with our 
professionals to assist them with their professional development by offering internal and external learning opportunities. We 
encourage them to attain industry certifications which strengthen their expertise in both business and technology.  In addition, we 
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also believe that the working relationships they form on various project teams foster valuable formal and informal mentoring and 
knowledge sharing.  
 
 
Competition 
 

Our service offerings consist of a full spectrum of services and expertise to ensure the success of IT projects.  Our competitors 
include IT solutions providers, in-house technical staff, software product companies with extended service organizations, 
international outsourcers of IT development, application and Web hosting firms and specialized providers of CPM/BAM/BI.  

 
There is significant competition in the management and IT consulting services space. Mergers or consolidations in our market 

may create new, larger or better-capitalized competitors with enhanced abilities to attract and retain professionals.  We also 
believe that the principle criteria considered by prospective clients when selecting a consulting firm include skills and capabilities 
of consultants, scope of services, service model approach, global presence, industry and technical expertise, reputation and 
quality of past work, perceived value and a results orientation. 

 
The following is a representative list of competitors in the IT and management consulting services space:  

 
 Technical Consulting/Systems integrators: Accenture, CMGI, EDS, IBM Global Services, Business and Decision Group, 

Caritor, Inc., LogicaCMG, Perficient, and Sapient;  
 
 Offshore software development firms: Aztec Software, Cognizant Technology Solutions, Infosys, Ventyx, Satyam, Tata, 

and Wipro; 
 
 Management/Business Consulting firms: Bain & Company, Booz-Allen & Hamilton, Boston Consulting Group, 

Diamond Management and Technology Consultants, Inc., and McKinsey & Company;  
 

 Corporate Performance Management (CPM) / Business Activity Monitoring (BAM) / Business Intelligence (BI) 
providers:  The Hackett Group, Hitachi Consulting Corporation, and  Hewlett-Packard; and   

 
 Computer hardware, software and service vendors: Hewlett-Packard, IBM, Oracle and SAP. 

 
 
Intellectual Property 

 
 We consider our intellectual property to be a valuable asset in a highly competitive industry. We also consider our intellectual 
property to be an important factor in building brand recognition for quality service and performance. Therefore, we have secured 
certain service marks for ‘‘Edgewater,” “Edgewater Technology,’’ “Edgewater Technology-Ranzal” and “Edgewater Strategy 
Services” among others.  We believe we have secured all rights to trademarks and trade names related to our business.   
 
 We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright and trademark laws to protect our proprietary rights. In particular, we 
require each of our employees to sign an invention and non-disclosure agreement, which provides that they must maintain the 
confidentiality of our intellectual property and that any intellectual property that they develop while employed by us is the 
property of Edgewater.  We have developed detailed tools, processes and methodologies which are used in developing software 
code, scripts, libraries, data models, applications, business processes, frameworks and other technology used within our Company 
and in customer engagements.  See also “Item 1A - Risk Factors.” 
 
 
Potential Future Strategies, Transactions and Changes  
 
 Critical to our ability to create long-term stockholder value, the Company will continue to pursue internal growth initiatives 
and appropriate business combination transaction alternatives to achieve growth. From time to time, we have engaged and we 
may continue to engage in preliminary discussions with various persons regarding potential business combination transactions. 
 
 We believe that our current cash reserves and our anticipated cash flow from our operations will be, taken together, adequate 
for our working capital needs for at least the next twelve months.  However, our actual experience may differ significantly from 
our expectation, particularly if we pursue growth through business combination transactions, which we presently believe will be 
advantageous to building long-term stockholder value.  In addition, other future events may adversely or materially affect our 
business, expenses or prospects and could affect our available cash or the availability or cost of external financial resources. 
 
 We may, in the future, purchase common stock in the open market, in private transactions or otherwise, pursuant to any future 
board approved repurchase programs.  See “Item 5 – Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and 
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities” included elsewhere in this Form10-K.  Any future purchases by us will depend on many 
factors, including:  
 

 The market price of our common stock at that time; 
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 Our business strategy; 
 Our business and financial position; and 
 General economic and market conditions. 

 
 
ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS 
 
Risk Factors Affecting Finances, Business Prospects and Stock Volatility 
 

In addition to other information contained in this Form 10-K, the following risk factors should be carefully considered in 
evaluating Edgewater Technology and its business because such factors could have a significant impact on our business, 
operating results and financial condition.  These risk factors could cause actual results to materially differ from those projected in 
any forward-looking statements. 
 
 Our success depends on a limited number of significant customers, and our results of operations and financial condition 
could be negatively affected by the loss of a major customer or significant project or the failure to collect a large account 
receivable.  We generate a significant portion of our service revenue from a limited number of customers. As a result, if we were 
to lose a major customer or large project, our service revenue could be materially and adversely affected.  In 2007, our five 
largest customers accounted for 45.1% of our service revenue.  In 2006, our five largest customers accounted for 46.9% of our 
service revenue.  We perform varying amounts of work for specific customers from year-to-year. A major customer in one year 
may not use our services in another year. In addition, we may derive revenue from a major customer that constitutes a large 
portion of a particular quarter’s total revenue. If we lose any major customers or any of our customers cancel or significantly 
reduce a large project’s scope, including but not limited to Synapse, our results of operations and financial condition could be 
materially and adversely affected. Further, if we fail to collect a large accounts receivable balance, we could be subjected to a 
material adverse impact on financial results and a decrease in cash flow.   
 
 Our lack of long-term customer contracts reduces the predictability of our revenues because these contracts may be 
canceled on short notice and without penalty.  Our customers generally retain us on a project-by-project basis, rather than under 
long-term contracts. As a result, a customer may not engage us for further services once a project is complete. If a significant 
customer, or a number of customers, terminate, significantly reduce, or modify their contracts with us, our results of operations 
would be materially and adversely affected. Consequently, future revenue should not be predicted or anticipated based on the 
number of customers we have or the number and size of our existing projects. If a customer were to postpone, modify, or cancel a 
project, including but not limited to changes in anticipated 2008 Synapse-related revenue, we would be required to shift our 
consultants to other projects to minimize the impact on our operating results. We cannot provide assurance that we will be 
successful in efficiently and effectively shifting our consultants to new projects in the event of project terminations, which could 
result in reduced service revenue and lower gross margins.  If we experience unexpected changes or variability in our revenue, 
we could experience variations in our quarterly operating results and our actual results may differ materially from the amounts 
planned and our operating profitability may be reduced or eliminated. 
 
 If we fail to satisfy our customers’ expectations, our existing and continuing business could be adversely affected.  Our 
sales and marketing strategy emphasizes our belief that we have highly referenceable accounts. Therefore, if we fail to satisfy the 
expectations of our customers, we could damage our reputation and our ability to retain existing customers and attract new 
customers. In addition, if we fail to deliver and perform on our engagements, we could be liable to our customers for breach of 
contract. Although most of our contracts limit the amount of any damages to the fees we receive, we could still incur substantial 
cost, negative publicity, and diversion of management resources to defend a claim, and as a result, our business results could 
suffer. 
  
 We may have lower margins, or lose money, on fixed-price contracts.  As part of our strategy, we intend to continue to grow 
our business with time-and-materials contracts, fixed-price contracts, and fixed-fee contracts.  In 2007, fixed-price contracts 
represented approximately 2.4% of our service revenue. We assume greater financial risk on fixed-price contracts than on time-
and-materials or fixed-fee engagements, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully price our larger fixed-price 
contracts. If we fail to accurately estimate the resources and time required for an engagement, fail to manage customer 
expectations effectively or fail to complete fixed-price engagements within planned budgets, on time and to our customers’ 
satisfaction, we could be exposed to cost overruns, potentially leading to lower gross profit margins, or even losses on these 
engagements.  
  
 Competition in the IT and management consulting services market is intense and, therefore, we may lose projects to, or 
face pricing pressure from, our competitors or prospective customers’ internal IT departments or international outsourcing 
firms.  The market for IT and management consulting providers is highly competitive. In many cases, we compete for premium 
IT services work with in-house technical staff, software product companies with extended service organizations and other 
international IT and management consulting firms, including offshore outsourcing firms. In addition, there are many small, 
boutique technology management consulting firms who have developed services similar to those offered by us.  We believe that 
competition will continue to be strong and may increase in the future, especially if our competitors continue to reduce their price 
for IT and management consulting services.  Such pricing pressure could have a material impact on our revenues and margins 
and limit our ability to provide competitive services.   
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 Our target market is rapidly evolving and is subject to continuous technological change. As a result, our competitors may be 
better positioned to address these developments or may react more favorably to these changes, which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business. We compete on the basis of a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. Existing 
or future competitors may develop or offer IT and management consulting services that provide significant technological, 
creative, performance, price or other advantages over the services we offer.  
 
 See “Item 1 – Business - Competition” for a representative list of competitors in the IT and management consulting services 
space. 
 
 Some of our competitors have longer operating histories and significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and 
managerial resources than we do. There are relatively low barriers of entry into our business. We have no patented or other 
proprietary technology that would preclude or inhibit competitors from entering the IT services market. Therefore, we must rely 
on the skill of our personnel and the quality of our customer service. The costs to start an IT and management consulting services 
firm are low. We expect that we will continue to face additional competition from new entrants into the market in the future, 
offshore providers and larger integrators and we are subject to the risk that our employees may leave us and may start competing 
businesses. Any one or more of these factors could have a material impact on our business.  
 
 Because we rely on highly-trained and experienced personnel to design and build complex systems for our customers, an 
inability to retain existing employees and attract new qualified employees would impair our ability to provide our services to 
existing and new customers.  Our future success depends in large part on our ability to attract new qualified employees and 
retain existing highly-trained and experienced technical consultants, project management consultants, business analysts and sales 
and marketing professionals of various experience levels. If we fail to attract new employees or retain our existing employees, we 
may be unable to complete existing projects or bid for new projects of similar size, which could adversely affect our revenues. 
While attracting and retaining experienced employees is critical to our business and growth strategy, maintaining our current 
employee base may also be particularly difficult. Even if we are able to grow and expand our employee base, the additional 
resources required to attract new employees and retain existing employees may adversely affect our operating margins.  
 
 We depend on our key personnel, and the loss of their services may adversely affect our business.  We believe that our 
success depends on the continued employment of the senior management team and other key personnel. This dependence is 
particularly important to our business because personal relationships are a critical element in obtaining and maintaining customer 
engagements. If one or more members of the senior management team or other key personnel were unable or unwilling to 
continue in their present positions, our business could be seriously harmed.  Furthermore, other companies seeking to develop in-
house business capabilities may hire away some of our key personnel.  
 
 Past or future business combination transactions or other strategic alternatives could disrupt our ongoing business, 
distract our management and employees, increase our expenses and adversely affect our business.  We realized recent growth, 
in part, through acquisitions, and we anticipate that a portion of our future growth may be accomplished through one or more 
business combination transactions or other strategic alternatives. The ultimate success of any such transactions will depend upon, 
among other things, our ability to integrate acquired personnel, operations, products and technologies into our organization 
effectively, to retain and motivate key personnel of acquired businesses and to retain customers of acquired businesses. We 
cannot assure you that we will be successful in this regard or that we will be able to identify suitable opportunities, successfully 
grow acquired businesses, integrate acquired personnel and operations successfully or utilize our cash or equity securities as 
acquisition currency on acceptable terms to complete any such business combination transactions. These difficulties could disrupt 
our ongoing business, distract our management and employees, increase our expenses and materially and adversely affect our 
results of operations. Any such transactions would involve certain other risks, including the reduction of cash and/or working 
capital, the assumption of additional liabilities, potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities and diversion of management’s 
attention from operating activities.  
 
 Volatility of our stock price could result in expensive class action litigation.  If our common stock suffers from volatility 
like the securities of other technology and consulting companies, we could be subject to securities class action litigation similar to 
that which has been brought against other companies following periods of volatility in the market price of their common stock.  
The process of defending against these types of claims, regardless of their merit, is costly and often creates a considerable 
distraction to senior management. Any future litigation could result in substantial additional costs and could divert our resources 
and senior management’s attention. This could harm our productivity and profitability and potentially adversely affect our stock 
price. 
 
 We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights or we may infringe upon the intellectual property rights of 
others, which could adversely affect our business.  Our future success will depend, in part, upon our intellectual property rights 
and our ability to protect these rights. We do not have any patents or patent applications pending. Existing trade secret and 
copyright laws afford us only limited protection. Third parties may attempt to disclose, obtain or use our solutions or 
technologies. This is particularly true in foreign countries where laws or law enforcement practices may not protect our 
proprietary rights as fully as in the United States. Others may independently develop and obtain patents or copyrights for 
technologies that are similar or superior to our technologies. If that happens, we may need to license these technologies and we 
may not be able to obtain licenses on reasonable terms, if at all.  If we are unsuccessful in any future intellectual property 
litigation, we may be forced to do one or more of the following:  
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 Cease selling or using technology or services that incorporate the challenged intellectual property;  
 Obtain a license, which may not be available on reasonable terms or at all, to use the relevant technology;  
 Configure services to avoid infringement; and  
 Refund license fees or other payments that we have previously received.  

 
 Generally, we develop software applications for specific customer engagements. Issues relating to ownership of and rights to 
use software applications and frameworks can be complicated. Also, we may have to pay economic damages in these disputes, 
which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.  
 
 Fluctuations in our quarterly revenues and operating results may lead to reduced prices for our stock.  Our quarterly 
revenues and operating results can sometimes be volatile. We believe comparisons of prior period operating results cannot be 
relied upon as indicators of future performance. If our revenues or our operating results in any future period fall below the 
expectations of securities analysts and investors, the market price of our securities would likely decline.  
 
 Factors that may cause our quarterly results to fluctuate in the future include the following:  
 

 Variability in market demand for IT and management consulting services;  
 Length of the sales cycle associated with our service offerings;  
 Unanticipated variations in the size, budget, number or progress toward completion of our engagements;  
 Unanticipated termination of a major engagement, a customer’s decision not to proceed with an engagement we 

anticipated or the completion or delay during a quarter of several major customer engagements;  
 Efficiency with which we utilize our employees, or utilization, including our ability to transition employees from 

completed engagements to new engagements; 
 Our ability to manage our operating costs, a large portion of which are fixed in advance of any particular quarter;  
 Changes in pricing policies by us or our competitors;  
 Seasonality and cyclicality, including the effects of lower utilization rates during periods with disproportionately high 

holiday and vacation usage experience;  
 Timing and cost of new office expansions;  
 The timing of customer year-end periods and the impact of spending relative to such year-end periods;  
 Our ability to manage future growth; and 
 Costs of attracting, retaining and training skilled personnel.  

 
Some of these factors are within our control, while others are outside of our control.  

 
 Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents, our stockholder rights plan and/or Delaware law could prevent or 
delay a change in control of our Company.  Our Board of Directors can issue preferred stock in one or more series without 
stockholder action. The existence of this “blank-check” preferred stock provision could render more difficult or discourage an 
attempt to obtain control by means of a tender offer, merger, proxy contest or otherwise.  In addition, our Company has a 
stockholder rights plan, commonly referred to as a “poison pill,” that may discourage an attempt to obtain control by means of a 
tender offer, merger, proxy contest or otherwise.  If a person acquires 20% or more of our outstanding shares of common stock, 
except for certain institutional stockholders, who may acquire up to 25% of our outstanding shares of common stock, then rights 
under this plan would be triggered, which would significantly dilute the voting rights of any such acquiring person.  Certain 
provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law may also discourage someone from acquiring or merging with us.  
 
     If clients view offshore development as a viable alternative to our service offerings, our pricing, revenue, margins and 
profitability may be negatively affected.  A trend has developed where international IT service firms have been founded in 
countries such as India and China, which have well-educated and technically-trained workforces available at wage rates that are 
substantially lower than U.S. wage rates.  While traditionally we have not competed with offshore development, presently this 
form of software development is experiencing rapid and increasing acceptance in the market.  To counteract this trend, we are 
focusing towards premium service offerings, including design and strategy consulting engagements, which are more difficult for 
offshore development firms to replicate.  If we are unable to continually evolve our service offerings or the rate of acceptance of 
offshore development advances even faster than we expect, then our pricing and revenue could be adversely affected.  
 
 We may be required to record additional goodwill impairment charges in future quarters.  As of December 31, 2007, we 
had recorded goodwill and related intangible assets with a net book value of $53.7 million related to prior acquisitions. We test 
for impairment at least annually and whenever evidence of impairment exists. We performed our annual goodwill impairment test 
as of December 2, 2007 and 2006 and determined that the goodwill and related intangible assets were not impaired.  We have in 
the past recorded impairments to our goodwill, however.  As goodwill values are measured using a variety of factors, including 
values of comparable companies and using overall stock market and economic data, in addition to our own future financial 
performance, we may be required in the future to record additional impairment charges that could have a material adverse effect 
on our reported results.  
 
 We may not generate enough income in future periods to maintain the current net carrying value of our deferred tax 
asset.  We have a deferred tax asset of approximately $22.3 million, net of an applicable valuation allowance, as of December 31, 
2007.  If we are unable to generate enough income in future periods, the valuation allowance relating to our deferred tax asset 
may have to be revised upward, which would reduce the carrying value of this asset on our balance sheet under generally 
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accepted accounting principles.  An increase in the valuation allowance and a related reduction in the carrying value of this asset 
would increase our provision for income taxes, thereby reducing net income or increasing net loss, and could reduce our total 
assets (depending on the amount of any such change or changes).  An increase in the valuation allowance could otherwise have a 
material adverse effect on our results of operations and/or our stockholders’ equity and financial position. 
 
 The recent credit market turmoil may impact our sales to our financial services customers. Recently, many financial 
services institutions have been forced to record massive write-offs on their financial statements to reflect the reduced value of 
their portfolios of sub-prime mortgage loans and/or securities derived from these loans. Additionally, financial institutions that 
are in the business of mortgage lending have seen a dramatic reduction in the number of loan transactions.  All of this turmoil 
could impact the ability and willingness of our financial services customers to make investments in technology, which may delay 
or reduce the amount of purchases of our software and professional services by these customers.  
 
 Material changes to our strategic relationship with Oracle USA, Inc. (“Oracle”) (formerly known as Hyperion Solutions 
Corporation). The Ranzal business derives a substantial portion of its revenues from a channel relationship with Oracle.  This 
relationship involves Oracle assisted lead generation support with respect to the business intelligence services provided by 
Ranzal.  This relationship is governed by an Oracle PartnerNetwork Agreement, which is subject to annual renewal and is 
scheduled to expire in September of 2008.  A failure to renew this relationship, or a material modification or change in Oracle’s 
partner approach or its contract terms, for any reason, could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations. 
 
 Our reliance upon Synapse.  Synapse, as more fully described in “Item 7 – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Related-Party Transactions: Synapse,” is considered both a significant customer 
and a related party.  Service revenue from Synapse amounted to $7.0 million, or 11.0% of our total service revenues, and $8.7 
million, or 15.5% of total service revenue, for 2007 and 2006, respectively.  The Company provides services to Synapse related 
to infrastructure support, custom software development and systems integration.  Services are provided on both a fixed-fee and 
time and materials basis.  Our contracts with Synapse, including all terms and conditions, are consistent with those we have with 
our other customers and are negotiated on an arm’s-length basis.  Our existing one-year services contract with Synapse, which 
was entered into in January of 2007, automatically extended through June 30, 2008, as per the terms of the contract, on January 1, 
2008.  Based on the automatic six-month renewal and the amount of services being currently performed, it is anticipated that we 
will provide ongoing services to Synapse throughout 2008 and such services are expected to generate approximately $3.5 million 
in revenue during 2008.  The Company anticipates that it will enter into a new one-year services contract with Synapse during the 
first quarter of 2008.  There is no guarantee that the Company will be able to successfully negotiate a new contract with Synapse 
at the end of the current contract period.   
 
 
ITEM 1B.  UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 
 
 None. 
 
 
ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES 
 
 We lease 63,611 square feet of office space for our principal executive offices currently located at 20 Harvard Mill Square, 
Wakefield, Massachusetts 01880-3209.  An amendment to the lease for our corporate headquarters was executed and made 
effective on May 4, 2006 (the “2006 Lease Amendment”).  The 2006 Lease Amendment extended the lease term related to our 
original corporate headquarters for a three-year period, until December 31, 2016.   
 
 We also have office facilities in Arkansas, California, Colorado, New Hampshire and New York.  Our corporate and satellite 
offices are all leased properties. We do not own any real estate.  Our existing properties satisfy our current operating needs, 
however we will seek additional space in the event our existing properties are unable to meet our operating requirements in the 
future. 
 
 
ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 

We are sometimes a party to litigation incidental to our business.  We maintain insurance in amounts, with coverages and 
deductibles that we believe are reasonable.  As of the date of the filing of this Form 10-K, our Company is not a party to any 
existing material litigation matters. 
 

 
ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
 No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007. 
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PART II 
 
ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND 
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

 
Stock Price Information 

 
 Our common stock, which has a par value of $0.01 per share, trades on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol 
“EDGW.” On March 7, 2008, there were approximately 1,821 holders of record of our common stock and 13,337,100 million 
shares of our common stock were outstanding.  The number of record holders indicated above does not reflect persons or entities 
that hold their shares of stock in nominee or “street” name through various bankers or brokerage firms.  Based on our Company’s 
solicitations of proxies in April 2007, we estimate that there are approximately 8,000 holders of our Company’s common stock.   
 
 The following table sets forth the range of high and low trading prices for our common stock as reported by the NASDAQ 
National Market for each quarter in 2006 and 2007 and the first quarter of 2008 through March 7, 2008. 
 

 
  High  Low 

FISCAL 2006:     
   First Quarter  $  6.89  $    5.58 
   Second Quarter  7.82  6.32 
   Third Quarter  6.94  5.25 
   Fourth Quarter  6.99  5.63 
     
FISCAL 2007:     
   First Quarter  $  8.97  $    5.81 
   Second Quarter  10.00  6.62 
   Third Quarter  9.45  7.00 
   Fourth Quarter  9.45  6.03 
     
FISCAL 2008:     
   First Quarter  $  7.47  $     5.21 
   (through March 7, 2008)     

 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities 

 
 As further described in “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
- Note 4” included elsewhere herein, the Company, in December 2007, issued 876,038 shares of its Common Stock to Vertical 
Pitch, LLC pursuant to the provisions of an Asset Purchase Agreement.   The issuance of the foregoing shares of Common Stock 
was exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In each case, there was no 
general solicitation or advertising, the number of recipients of such unregistered shares was limited and such recipients are 
accredited and/or sophisticated.  
 
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

 
 In December 2007, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program for up to $5.0 million of common stock on 
the open market or through privately negotiated transactions from time-to-time through December 31, 2008 (the “Stock 
Repurchase Program”).  The timing and amount of the purchases will be based upon market conditions, securities law 
considerations and other factors.  The Stock Repurchase Program does not obligate the Company to acquire a specific number of 
shares in any period and may be modified, suspended, extended or discontinued at any time, without prior notice.  The Company 
did not repurchase any shares of its outstanding common stock during the year ended December 31, 2007.  See also “Item 1 – 
Business - Potential Future Strategies, Transactions and Changes” included elsewhere herein.   
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Performance Graph  
 

The following charts compare the cumulative total stockholder return and total return analysis, respectively, of our common 
stock with the cumulative total return on the NASDAQ Composite US Index, the SP600 IT Services Index and the common stock 
of seven companies in the technology consulting industry for the five-year period beginning on December 31, 2002 (the closing 
sale price of our common stock on this date was $4.75) and ending on December 31, 2007 (the last trading date for our common 
stock in the 2007 fiscal year), assuming a $100 investment in each and assuming the reinvestment of dividends. We did not pay 
any dividends during the period.  Refer to the footnotes below the graph for a description of the companies included in our peer 
group.  
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(1) Our self-selected peer group for 2007 consists of the following companies:  The Hackett Group (formerly Answerthink, 

Inc.); Ciber, Inc.; Diamond Management & Technology Consultants, Inc. (“Diamond”); eLoyalty Corporation; 
Perficient, Inc.; and Sapient Corporation.  

 
(2) Our self-selected peer group for 2006 consisted of the following companies:  Answerthink, Inc.; Ciber, Inc.; Diamond; 

eLoyalty; Inforte Corporation (“Inforte”); Perficient, Inc.; and Sapient Corporation.  
 

During 2007, we elected to change the composition of our self-selected peer group companies to eliminate, from the 2006 
peer group presentation, Inforte based upon its 2007 acquisition by Business and Decision Group, an international consulting and 
systems integration company.  As a result of the acquisition, Inforte is no longer comparable to our business model.  We feel that 
the companies included in our 2007 peer group are comparable to our Company as they provide similar IT consulting services 
and expertise to their clients. 

Company Name / Index 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
Edgewater Technology, Inc. 100 104.24 103.81 125.00 129.45 154.66
Nasdaq U.S. Index 100 150.36 163.00 166.58 183.68 201.91
S&P 600 IT Services 100 143.83 162.95 184.27 186.07 188.17
New Peer Group1 100 221.87 282.51 210.49 247.98 274.09
Old Peer Group2 100 211.19 265.79 198.04 232.17 256.61
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Other Stockholder Matters 
 
 We have not paid dividends in the past and intend to retain any earnings to finance the expansion and operations of our 
business.  We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends with regard to cash generated through our normal operations in the 
foreseeable future.   The trading price of our common stock is subject to wide fluctuations in response to quarterly variations in 
operating results, announcements of acquisitions, performance by our competitors, and other market events or factors.  In 
addition, the stock market has, from time to time, experienced price and volume fluctuations, which have particularly affected the 
market price of many professional service companies and which often have been unrelated to the operating performance of these 
companies.  These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.  
 
 
ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
  
 The 2007, 2006, 2005, 2004, and 2003 selected consolidated financial data presented below has been derived from our 
audited consolidated financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting 
principles.   The financial data presented is not directly comparable between periods as a result of the adoption of Statement of 
Accounting Standards No. 123R (as amended) on January 1, 2006.  We believe that this information should be read in 
conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Form10-K. 
 

   Year Ended December 31, 
   2007  2006  2005  2004  2003 
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:   (In Thousands, Except per Share Data)   

          
Total revenue $     68,490  $    60,083  $    43,126  $    25,322  $  25,054 
Cost of revenue 40,392  35,582  25,126  15,659  13,540 
        Gross profit 28,098  24,501  18,000  9,663  11,514 

          
Operating expenses:          
Selling, general and administrative 21,335  18,721  15,883  10,154  10,080 
Depreciation and amortization  2,448  1,755  1,046  896  948 
        Total operating expenses 23,783  20,476  16,929  11,050  11,028 
        Operating income (loss) 4,315  4,025  1,071   (1,387)  486 
          

Interest income, net 1,599  1,283  1,054  556  455 
Income (loss) before taxes, and discontinued operations  5,914  5,308  2,125   (831)  941 
Tax provision (benefit)         (2,896)          2,105             850                -         (1,053)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before 
discontinued operations 8,810  3,203  1,275   (831)  

 
 

1,994 
          

Discontinued operations:         
Income (loss) from discontinued divisions, net of 

applicable taxes -  -  325  236  (1,020)
Net income (loss) $    8,810  $    3,203  $    1,600  $     (595)  $        974 
          

Basic income (loss) per share:          
Continuing operations  $       0.75   $       0.29   $       0.13   $    (0.07)  $    0.18 
Discontinued operations                -                 -           0.03  0.02  (0.09)
Net income (loss)  $       0.75   $       0.29   $       0.16    $    (0.05)         $     0.09
Weighted average shares, basic          11,793        10,980          10,241  11,283         11,381

         
Diluted income (loss) per share:         

Continuing operations  $       0.66   $       0.27   $       0.12   $    (0.07)      $     0.17
Discontinued operations                -                 -             0.03  0.02             (0.09)
Net income (loss)  $       0.66   $       0.27   $       0.15    $    (0.05)        $     0.08
Weighted average shares, diluted         13,358          11,956          10,653  11,283         11,694
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ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS 
 
 You should read the following summary together with the more detailed business information and consolidated financial 
statements and related notes that appear elsewhere in this annual report and in the documents that we incorporate by reference 
into this annual report. This annual report may contain certain “forward-looking” information within the meaning of the Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. This information involves risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ 
materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include, but 
are not limited to, those discussed in “Item 1A - Risk Factors” and under “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking 
Statements.” 
 
Overview 
 
 Edgewater Technology, Inc. is an innovative technology management consulting firm serving both middle-market companies 
and divisions of Global 2000 companies throughout the United States and Canada.  We provide a unique blend of premium IT 
services in business consulting, Corporate Performance Management consulting and technology consulting.  Our solutions 
provide customer benefits by integrating, automating and extending business processes, optimizing technology infrastructure and 
providing software applications that enable companies to monitor their financial and operational performance.  During the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2007, we generated revenues, including software revenue and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 
expenses, of approximately $68.5 million from a total of 265 clients.  Headquartered in Wakefield, Massachusetts, as of 
December 31, 2007, our Company employed approximately 302 technical consulting professionals and 367 total professionals.  

 
Service Revenue 
  
 Our service revenue is derived from professional services in providing premium IT services consulting.  Specifically, we 
provide strategy and other business consulting services to develop, implement, integrate, automate and extend business processes, 
technology infrastructure and corporate performance management software applications for our clients.  Most of our projects, 
approximately 95.0%, are performed on a time and materials basis and a smaller amount of revenue is derived from projects 
performed on either a fixed-price or fixed-fee basis. Fixed-priced engagements represented approximately 2.4% of our service 
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007. Fixed-fee engagements represented approximately 2.6% of our service revenue 
for the year ended December 31, 2007. For time and material projects, revenue is recognized and billed as services are 
performed.  For fixed-price projects, revenue is generally recognized using the proportionate performance method. Provisions for 
estimated profits or losses on uncompleted projects are made on a contract-by-contract basis and are recognized in the period in 
which such profits or losses are determined. On many projects, we are reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses such as airfare, 
lodging and meals. These reimbursements are included as a component of revenue and cost of revenue. The aggregate amount of 
reimbursed expenses will fluctuate depending on the location of our customers, the total number of our projects that require 
travel, and whether our arrangements with our clients provide for the reimbursement of travel and other project-related expenses. 

     As of December 31,     
 2007 2006  2005  2004 2003 
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:   (In Thousands)   

   
Cash equivalents, marketable securities 
    and accrued interest         $   22,823     $   33,241         $  33,763          $  33,908      $     44,259
Accounts receivable, net          15,146          10,883          9,858           5,272 3,532
Goodwill and intangibles          53,715          29,163          17,076           16,628          13,135
Deferred tax asset          22,255          18,549          21,491           22,213          22,175
Other assets 6,287 3,784 2,401           3,681 3,430
Total assets         $ 120,226        $   95,620       $   84,589         $   81,702    $     86,531

   
Total liabilities        $   12,700        $     9,370        $     6,504         $     5,106       $       5,647
Stockholders’ equity          107,526          86,250          78,085           76,596 80,884
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity        $  120,226        $   95,620        $   84,589         $   81,702       $     86,531

Outstanding shares of common stock          13,297          11,522          10,683           10,549 11,366
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Operating Expenses 
 
 The largest portion of our operating expenses consists of cash and non-cash compensation and benefits associated with our 
project consulting personnel and related expenses. Non-cash compensation includes stock compensation expense arising from 
restricted stock and option grants to employees.  Project personnel expenses also consist of payroll costs and related benefits 
associated with our professional staff. Other related expenses include travel, subcontracting costs, third-party vendor payments 
and non-billable expenses associated with the delivery of services to our clients. We consider the relationship between project 
personnel expenses and revenue to be an important measure of our operating performance. The relationship between project 
personnel expenses and revenue is driven largely by the chargeability of our consultant base, the prices we charge our clients and 
the non-billable costs associated with securing new client engagements and developing new service offerings. The remainder of 
our recurring operating expenses is comprised of expenses associated with the development of our business and the support of 
our client-serving professionals, such as professional development and recruiting, marketing and sales, and management and 
administrative support.  Professional development and recruiting expenses consist primarily of recruiting and training content 
development and delivery costs. Marketing and sales expenses consist primarily of the costs associated with the development and 
maintenance of our marketing materials and programs. Management and administrative support expenses consist primarily of the 
costs associated with operations including finance, information systems, human resources, facilities (including the rent of office 
space), and other administrative support for project personnel.  
 
      We regularly review our fees for services, professional compensation and overhead costs to ensure that our services and 
compensation are competitive within the industry, and that our overhead costs are balanced with our revenue levels. In addition, 
we monitor the progress of client projects with client senior management. We manage the activities of our professionals by 
closely monitoring engagement schedules and staffing requirements. However, a rapid decline in the demand for the professional 
services that we provide could result in lower utilization of our professionals than we planned. In addition, because most of our 
client engagements are terminable by our clients without penalty, an unanticipated termination of a client project could require us 
to maintain underutilized employees. While professional staff levels must be adjusted to reflect active engagements, we must also 
maintain a sufficient number of consulting professionals to oversee existing client engagements and to participate in sales 
activities to secure new client assignments.  
 
Company Performance Measurement Systems and Metrics 
 
 The Company’s management monitors and assesses its operating performance by evaluating key metrics and indicators on an 
ongoing basis.  For example, we regularly review performance information related to annualized revenue per billable consultant, 
periodic consultant utilization rates, gross profit margins, average bill rates and billable employee headcount.  Edgewater 
Technology has also developed internal Corporate Performance Management systems which aid us in measuring our operating 
performance and consultant utilization rates.  The matching of sales opportunities to available skill sets in our consultant base is 
one of our greatest challenges and therefore, we monitor consultant utilization closely.  These metrics, along with other operating 
and financial performance metrics, are used in evaluating management’s overall performance.  These metrics and indicators are 
discussed in more detail under “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations - Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2006.” 
 
Plans for Growth and Acquisitions 
 
 Our goal is to continue to build one of the leading independent technology management consulting firms in North America by 
growing our client base, leveraging our industry expertise to enhance our service offerings and continue to make disciplined 
strategic acquisitions.  Previous acquisitions have further expanded our geographical footprint, increased our vertical expertise 
and have provided more scale to our organization. We believe the United States and Canada represent an attractive market to 
grow our revenues through a combination of organic growth and acquisitions.   
 
 Consistent with our strategy of growth, we consummated three acquisitions during 2007 and one during 2006. The 
acquisitions are more fully described in “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements - Note 4” included elsewhere herein 
 



 18

Critical Accounting Policies 
 
 Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America ("GAAP"). These accounting principles require us to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions. We 
believe that the estimates, judgments and assumptions, upon which we rely, are reasonable based upon information available to 
us at the time that they are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods 
presented. To the extent there are differences between these estimates, judgments or assumptions and actual results, our financial 
statements may be affected. The accounting policies that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and 
evaluating our reported financial results include the following: 

 
· Revenue Recognition; 
· Allowance for Doubtful Accounts; 
· Share-based Compensation; 
· Income Taxes and Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets; 
· Goodwill, Other Intangible Assets and Impairment of Long-Lived Assets; and 
· Purchase Price Allocation. 

  
 Senior management has reviewed these critical accounting policies and related disclosures with our Audit Committee. See 
“Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included elsewhere 
herein, which contain additional information regarding our accounting policies and other disclosures required by GAAP.  We 
have identified the policies listed below as critical to our business operations and the understanding of our results of operations. 
 
 Revenue Recognition. Our Company recognizes revenue from providing IT and management consulting services under 
written service contracts with our customers.  The service contracts we enter into generally fall into three specific categories: time 
and materials, fixed-price and fixed-fee.  Our revenues are generated from sources such as technical consulting (inclusive of 
design, application development, systems integration and infrastructure services such as assessment and remediation and IT due 
diligence), Corporate Performance Management consulting (analytics, Business Intelligence and data services such as data 
integration/ETL, data management and data warehousing) and business consulting engagements (business process improvement, 
high-level program management offerings, mergers and acquisitions consulting and strategy).  Revenue from these services is 
recognized as the services are performed and amounts are earned.  We consider amounts to be earned once evidence of an 
arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.  
Edgewater engages in business activities under one operating segment, premium IT services, which combines strategic 
consulting, technical knowledge and industry-domain expertise to develop custom business process and technology solutions.  
 
 For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenue from technical consulting engagements, corporate 
performance management consulting engagements, and business consulting engagements represented the following:  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 The Company derives a significant portion of its service revenue from time and materials-based contracts.  Time and 
materials-based contracts represented 95.0%, 89.0% and 82.5% of service revenue for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 
and 2005, respectively. Revenue under time and materials contracts is recognized as services are rendered and performed at 
contractually agreed upon rates.   
 

Revenue pursuant to fixed-price contracts is recognized under the proportional performance method of accounting.  Fixed-
price contracts represented 2.4%, 4.8% and 11.5% of service revenue for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively.  Over the course of a fixed-price contract, we routinely evaluate whether revenue and profitability should be 
recognized in the current period.  We estimate the proportional performance on our fixed-price contracts on a monthly basis 
utilizing hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated hours to complete the project. If we do not have a sufficient 
basis to measure progress toward completion, revenue is recognized upon completion of performance, subject to any warranty 
provisions or other project management assessments as to the status of work performed.  This method is used because reasonably 
dependable estimates of costs and revenue earned can be made, based on historical experience and milestones identified in any 
particular contract.   

 

Year Ended December 31, 

 
Technical 
Consulting 

Engagements 

 Corporate Performance 
Management 
Consulting 

Engagements 

 

Business Consulting 
Engagements 

       
2007  57.2%  30.3%  12.5% 
2006  61.2%  24.9%  13.9% 
2005  72.4%  27.6%  -% 
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 Typically, the Company provides warranty services on its fixed-price contracts related to providing customers with the ability 
to have any “design flaws” remedied and/or have our Company “fix” routine defects.   The warranty services, as outlined in the 
respective contracts, are provided for a specific period of time after a project is complete.  The Company values the warranty 
services based upon historical labor hours incurred for similar services at standard billing rates.  In accordance with Securities 
and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulleting (“SAB”) SAB No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104”), revenue 
related to the warranty provisions within our fixed-price contracts is recognized as the services are performed or the revenue is 
earned.  The warranty period is typically short term or for a 30-60 day period after the project is complete.     
 
 In the event we are unable to accurately estimate the resources required or the scope of work to be performed on a fixed-price 
contract, or we do not manage the project properly within the planned time period, then we may recognize a loss on a contract.  
Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted projects are made on a contract-by-contract basis.  Any known or probable losses 
on projects are charged to operations in the period in which such losses are determined.  A formal project review process takes 
place quarterly, although most projects are evaluated on an ongoing basis.  Management reviews the estimated total direct costs 
on each contract to determine if the estimated amounts are accurate, and estimates are adjusted as needed in the period revised 
estimates are made.  No losses were recognized on fixed price contracts during the year ended December 31, 2007.  We did 
recognize insignificant losses on fixed-price contracts during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.   
 
 We also perform services on a fixed-fee basis under infrastructure service contracts, which include monthly hosting and 
support services.   Fixed-fee contracts represented 2.6%, 6.2% and 6.0% of service revenues for the years ended December 31, 
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Revenue under fixed-fee contracts is recognized ratably over the contract period, as outlined 
within the respective contract. In the event additional services are required, above the minimum retained or contracted amount, 
then such services are billed on a time and materials basis.   
 
 When a customer enters into a time and materials, fixed-price contract or a fixed-fee contract, the related revenue is 
accounted for under SAB 104 and Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract (“EITF”) No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangement with 
Multiple Deliverables” (“EITF No. 00-21”).  For all arrangements, we evaluate the deliverables in each contract to determine 
whether they represent separate units of accounting.  If the deliverables represent separate units of accounting, we then measure 
and allocate the consideration from the arrangement to the separate units, based on reliable evidence of fair value for each 
deliverable.   
 
 Client prepayments, even if nonrefundable, are deferred (classified as a liability) and recognized over future periods as 
services are performed.  As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has recorded a deferred liability of approximately 
$238 thousand and $84 thousand, respectively, which is included in the financial statement caption of “deferred revenue and 
other liabilities” related to customer prepayments.  
 
 Software revenue represents the resale of certain third-party off-the-shelf software and is recorded on a gross basis provided 
we act as a principal in the transaction, whereby we have credit risk and we set the price to the end user.  In the event we do not 
meet the requirements to be considered a principal in the software sale transaction and act as an agent, software revenue will be 
recorded on a net basis.  Revenue from software resale arrangements represented 3.5%, 2.2% and 3.5% of total revenue for the 
years ending December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Revenue and related costs are recognized and amounts are 
invoiced upon the customer’s constructive receipt of purchased software.  All related warranty and maintenance arrangements are 
performed by the primary software vendor and are not the obligation of the Company.   
  
 We recognize revenue for services where the collection from the client is probable and our fees are fixed or determinable.  
We establish billing terms at the time at which the project deliverables and milestones are agreed.  Our standard payment terms 
are 30 days from invoice date.  Out-of-pocket reimbursable expenses charged to customers are reflected as revenue.  

 
Our revenue and earnings may fluctuate from year-to-year based on the number, size and scope of projects in which we are 

engaged, the contractual terms and degree of completion of such projects, any delays incurred in connection with a project, 
employee utilization rates, the adequacy of provisions for losses, the use of estimates of resources required to complete ongoing 
projects, general economic conditions and other factors. Certain significant estimates include those used for fixed-price contracts, 
such as deferrals related to our volume purchase agreements, warranty holdbacks, and allocations of fair value of elements under 
multiple element arrangements, and the valuation of our allowance for doubtful accounts.  

  
 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts related to its accounts 
receivable that have been deemed to have a high risk of collectibility.  Management reviews its accounts receivables on a 
monthly basis to determine if any receivables will potentially be uncollectible.  Management further analyzes historical collection 
trends and changes in its customer payment patterns, customer concentration, and credit worthiness when evaluating the 
adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accounts.  The Company includes any accounts receivable balances that are determined to 
be uncollectible, along with a general reserve, in its overall allowance for doubtful accounts.  Based on the information available, 
management believes the allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate; however future write-offs could exceed the recorded 
allowance. 
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 Share-Based Compensation.  Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Share-based Payments” (“SFAS No. 123R”). Under the fair value recognition provisions of 
SFAS No. 123R, share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the value of the award and is recognized 
as expense over the vesting period. Determining the fair value of share-based awards at the grant date requires judgment, 
including estimating the expected term of stock options and the expected volatility of our stock. In addition, judgment is also 
required in estimating the income tax benefits related to the share-based awards and the amount of share-based awards that are 
expected to be forfeited. If actual results differ significantly from our estimates, share-based compensation expense and our 
results of operations could be materially impacted.   
 
 Share-based compensation expense under all of the Company’s share-based plans was $1.5 million, $1.2 million and $0.2 
million in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  See “Item 8 – Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 11” included elsewhere herein. 
 
 Income Taxes and Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets.  In determining our current income tax provision, we assess temporary 
differences resulting from differing treatments of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax 
assets and liabilities, which are recorded in our consolidated balance sheets. We maintain deferred tax assets and we must assess 
the likelihood that these assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the extent we believe recovery is not likely, we 
establish a valuation allowance. We record a valuation allowance to reduce the net deferred tax asset to a value we believe will be 
recoverable by future taxable income. We believe the accounting estimate related to the valuation allowance is a critical 
accounting estimate because it is highly susceptible to change from period to period as it requires management to make 
assumptions about the Company’s future income over the life of the deferred tax asset, and the impact of increasing or decreasing 
the valuation allowance is potentially material to our results of operations. Management’s assumptions about future income 
require significant judgment because actual income has fluctuated in the past and may continue to do so in the future.  
 
 As of December 31, 2007, the gross value of the net deferred tax asset recorded on the Company’s balance sheet was 
approximately $26.9 million.  This amount was comprised of approximately $19.0 million in federal net operating loss (“NOL”) 
carryforwards, $0.5 million in state NOL carryforwards, $7.2 million in available federal credits and $0.6 million in future tax 
benefits related to share-based compensation recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 123R.   These tax benefits were offset by 
$(0.4) million in net deferred tax liabilities related to temporary timing differences.  The gross value of the net deferred tax asset 
amounts was further offset by a valuation reserve of approximately $4.6 million providing for a net deferred tax asset of $22.3 
million. This net deferred tax asset is representative of the Company’s assessment of the expected future realization of recorded 
deferred tax assets.   
 
 When assessing the probability of the future realization of the recorded value of this asset, the Company reviews its planned 
future income and profitability projections.  In projecting future income, we use our internal operating budgets and long-range 
planning projections. We develop our budgets and long-range projections based on recent results and trends, our project pipeline, 
and other appropriate factors.  Based upon these analyses, the Company believes that it is more than likely that it will be able to 
recover the currently recorded value of our net deferred tax assets by maintaining existing revenue levels, while achieving annual 
profitability in the range of 5.9% to 8.9% through fiscal 2020.  However, if we do not generate sufficient future revenue and 
profits, the realization of these deferred tax assets may be impaired, resulting in an additional income tax expense, thereby 
reducing net income or increasing net loss, in the period in which it is determined that it is more likely than not that either a 
portion or all of the deferred tax asset is not recoverable.  
 
 In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting 
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN No. 48”).  FIN No. 48 clarifies the 
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement 
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the 
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and provides 
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, and accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition.  
The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. 
 
 The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN No. 48 is a two-step process. The first step is a recognition process 
whereby the enterprise determines whether a tax position is “more-likely-than–not” to be sustained upon examination, including 
resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax 
position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the enterprise should presume that the position will be examined 
by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The second step is a measurement process 
whereby a tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is calculated to determine the amount of benefit 
to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% 
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.   
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 Goodwill, Other Intangible Assets and Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.   Business acquisitions typically result in goodwill 
and other intangible assets, and the recorded values of those assets may become impaired in the future. The determination of the 
value of such intangible assets requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect our consolidated financial statements. 
The Company follows SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”  In accordance with SFAS No. 142, we assess 
our goodwill on December 2 of each year or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might 
be impaired. Our judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators and future cash flows related to intangible assets 
are based on operational performance of the businesses, market conditions and other factors. Future events could cause us to 
conclude that impairment indicators exist and that goodwill is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have an adverse 
impact on our results of operations by decreasing net income. Management assessed goodwill for impairment at December 2, 
2007. This analysis indicated that there was no impairment of the carrying values of goodwill.  
 
 We evaluate long-lived tangible assets and intangible assets other than goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 144, 
“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.” Long-lived assets held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their net book value may not be entirely recoverable. When such factors and 
circumstances exist, we compare the projected undiscounted future cash flows associated with the related asset or group of assets 
over their estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amounts. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the 
carrying amount over the fair value of those assets and is recorded in the period in which the determination was made.  

 
 As further described in “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
- Note 4” included elsewhere herein, the Company has recently recorded the following goodwill and intangible asset amounts in 
connection with acquisitions completed in 2007 and 2006: 
 

 NDS Acquisition:  On February 15, 2006, the Company acquired NDS and initially recorded $7.1 million in goodwill 
and $3.5 million in identifiable intangible assets, which are being amortized over a four-year period.  On February 
15, 2007, the former NDS stockholders completed the first of two twelve-month earnout periods, during which the 
required minimum performance measurements were achieved.  During the first quarter of 2007, the Company 
accrued, and subsequently paid, $886 thousand in connection with the completion of the first earnout period.  The 
contingent earnout consideration paid to the former NDS stockholders was reported as an increase to goodwill during 
the current year.  The former stockholders of NDS are eligible to receive additional earnout consideration based upon 
the successful attainment of certain profitability thresholds in connection with a second earnout period which 
concludes on February 15, 2008.   

 
 Alecian Corporation Acquisition:  On July 2, 2007, the Company acquired certain assets and liabilities of Alecian 

Corporation (“Alecian”) and has recorded $0.5 million in goodwill and $0.3 million in identifiable intangible assets, 
which are being amortized over a four- to five-year period.  Alecian is eligible to receive additional earnout 
consideration based upon the successful attainment of certain profitability thresholds achieved over a 12-month 
period from the date of the acquisition.  The earnout measurement period ends July 2, 2008.    

  
 Lynx Business Intelligence Consulting, Inc.:  On September 24, 2007, the Company acquired certain assets and 

liabilities of Lynx Business Intelligence Consulting, Inc. (“Lynx”) and has recorded $3.8 million in goodwill and 
$1.1 million in identifiable intangible assets, which are being amortized over a four- to five-year period.  Lynx is 
eligible to receive additional earnout consideration based upon the successful attainment of certain profitability 
thresholds achieved over a 12- to 24-month period from the date of the acquisition.  The initial earnout measurement 
period ends September 24, 2008.    

 
 Vertical Pitch, LLC Acquisition:  On December 10, 2007, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and 

liabilities of Vertical Pitch, LLC (“Vertical Pitch”) and has initially recorded an estimated $15.4 million in goodwill 
and $4.0 million in identifiable intangible assets, which are being amortized over a five-year period.  There is no 
additional contingent earnout consideration associated with the Company’s acquisition of Vertical Pitch. 

 
 Purchase Price Allocation.  We allocate the purchase price of our acquisitions to the assets and liabilities acquired, including 
identifiable intangible assets, based on their respective fair values at the date of acquisition. Some of the items, including 
accounts receivable, property and equipment, other intangible assets, certain accrued liabilities, and other reserves require a 
degree of management judgment. Certain estimates may change as additional information becomes available. Goodwill is 
assigned at the enterprise level and is deductible for tax purposes for certain types of acquisitions.  Management finalizes the 
purchase price allocation within twelve months of the acquisition date as certain initial accounting estimates are resolved.  



 
 

 
Results of Operations 
  
 The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data as a percentage of total 
revenue: 
 

   Year Ended December 31,   
 2007  2006  2005 

Revenue:      
   Service revenue               92.3%             94.1%  92.3% 
   Software revenue                 3.5%               2.2%               3.5% 
   Reimbursable expenses                4.2%               3.7%               4.2% 
        Total revenue            100.0%           100.0%           100.0% 
      
Cost of revenue:      
   Project and personnel costs  51.8%  53.6%  50.7% 
   Software costs 3.0%  1.9%  3.4% 
   Reimbursable expenses 4.2%  3.7%  4.2% 
         Total cost of revenue 59.0%  59.2%  58.3% 

 Gross profit 41.0%  40.8%  41.7% 
      

Operating expenses:      
Selling, general and administrative  31.2%  31.2%  36.8% 
Depreciation and amortization  3.5%  2.9%  2.4% 

Total operating expenses 34.7%  34.1%  39.2% 
Operating income 6.3%  6.7%  2.5% 
      
Interest income, net 2.3%  2.1%  2.4% 
Income before taxes and discontinued operations 8.6%  8.8%  4.9% 
Tax (benefit) provision               (4.3%)  3.5%  2.0% 
Income from continuing operations before        
        Discontinued operations  12.9%  5.3%  2.9% 

      
Discontinued operations:      
Income from discontinued operations                                      -%  -%  0.8% 
Net income 12.9%  5.3%  3.7% 
      
 
Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2006  
  
 Revenue.  Total revenue increased by $8.4 million, or 14.0%, to $68.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 
from $60.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.   
 
 Of the $8.4 million increase in 2007 total revenue, service revenue, excluding software and reimbursable expense 
revenue, increased by $6.7 million, or 11.8%, to $63.2 million, as compared to service revenue of $56.5 million in 2006.   
The 2007 increase in service revenue was attributable to growth in our core business service revenue of $5.1 million over 
the prior year, and the current year acquisitions of Alecian, Lynx and Vertical Pitch (the “2007 Acquisitions”), which 
contributed $1.6 million in service revenue during the third and fourth quarters of 2007.   
 
 The year-over-year increase in core business service revenue was primarily related to strong market demand for our 
CPM-related offerings, with lower growth experienced in our technical consulting and business strategy consulting 
offerings.   
 
 Service revenue from Synapse, one our largest customers, amounted to $7.0 million and $8.7 million in 2007 and 2006, 
respectively.  Our existing one-year services contract with Synapse, which was entered into in January of 2007, 
automatically extended through June 30, 2008, as per the terms of the contract, on January 1, 2008.  Based on the automatic 
six-month renewal and the amount of services being currently performed, it is anticipated that we will provide ongoing 
services to Synapse throughout 2008 and such services are expected to generate approximately $3.5 million in revenue 
during 2008. 
 
 Software revenue, which is directly attributable to our Corporate Performance Management offering, increased by $1.1 
million, to $2.4 million in 2007, as compared to $1.3 million in 2006.  Software sales have been affected in both 2007 and 
2006 by customer demand for such software in relation to CPM-related services.  Gross profit margins are generally much 
lower on software sales than on consulting services. 
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 Generally, we are reimbursed for our out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with our customer’s consulting 
projects.  Reimbursed expense revenue increased approximately $0.6 million in 2007, to approximately $2.9 million, as 
compared to $2.3 million in 2006.  The aggregate amount of reimbursed expenses will fluctuate from year to year depending 
on the location of our customers, the general fluctuation of travel costs, such as airfare, and the number of our projects that 
require travel. 
 
 Our annualized revenue per billable consultant, adjusted for utilization, increased 8.1%, to $300 thousand in 2007, as 
compared to $278 thousand in 2006.  The improvement is due to incremental increases in our average consultant billing 
rates in our CPM-related service offering.  Additionally, the 2007 Acquisitions provided the Company with 49 additional 
billable consultants and daily billing rates above the average billing rates in our previously existing business.  During 2007, 
the Company increased the number of customers it served to 265, as compared to 195 customers in 2006.  In 2007, service 
revenue from our five largest customers decreased slightly to 45.1% of our total service revenue, as compared to 46.9% in 
2006. 
 
 Cost of Revenue.  Cost of revenue primarily consists of project personnel costs principally related to salaries, payroll 
taxes, employee benefits and travel expenses for personnel dedicated to customer projects.  These costs represent the most 
significant expense we incur in providing our services.  In total, cost of revenue increased by $4.8 million, or 13.5%, to 
$40.4 million in 2007, as compared to $35.6 million in 2006.  The 2007 increase in cost of revenue is partially attributable to 
higher software sales, which increased cost of revenue by approximately $0.9 million in 2007.  Additionally, there was an 
increase of $3.2 million, or 10.1%, in project and personnel costs to support our continued growth in customer projects and 
revenue. 
 
 Reimbursable expenses, which increased in 2007 by $0.6 million, to $2.9 million, as compared to $2.3 million in 2006, 
were a direct result of the Company’s increased customer base and associated travel-related expenses incurred during the 
comparative years.   
 
 Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased by $3.6 million, or 14.7%, to $28.1 million in 2007, as compared to $24.5 million 
in 2006.  Gross profit, as a percentage of total revenue, increased to 41.0% in 2007, as compared to 40.8% in 2006.   
 
 The improvement, on an absolute dollar basis, in gross profit during 2007 is primarily related to growth within our core 
business.  Positive factors influencing this growth include an overall increase in customer base, an increase in billable 
headcount and improved average daily billing rates.  Billable consultant utilization increased to 80.1% in 2007, as compared 
to 79.9% in 2006.  The Company’s management operates the business with a targeted utilization rate of 78.0% to 82.0%.  
 
 Selling, General and Administrative Expense (“SG&A”).  SG&A expenses increased 14.0% to $21.3 million in 2007, as 
compared to SG&A expenses of $18.7 million in 2006. The increase in SG&A expense during 2007 was primarily due to 
the Company’s Sarbanes-Oxley readiness programs, additions of support personnel, relatively higher consultant bonuses and 
sales commissions due to our revenue growth and additional rent related to our facilities expansion and build out at our 
corporate headquarters.   
 
 SG&A expense, as a percentage of revenue, decreased to 31.1% for the year ended December 31, 2007 from 31.2% for 
the year ended December 31, 2006. While there was a only a modest decrease in SG&A expense, as a percentage of 
revenue, the Company continues to monitor is SG&A costs, with the goal of achieving greater economies of scale over the 
long term. 
 
 Depreciation and Amortization Expense.  Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $0.6 million, or 39.5%, to 
$2.4 million in 2007, as compared to $1.8 million in 2006.  The $0.4 million increase in comparative depreciation expense is 
primarily attributable to the expansion of our corporate headquarters in 2006.  Amortization expense increased by $0.2 
million, or 18.6%, to $1.4 million in 2007, as compared to $1.2 million in 2006.  The current year increase is directly related 
to the intangible assets identified in connection with the 2007 Acquisitions.   
 
 Operating Income.  The Company’s operating income increased by $0.3 million, or 7.2%, to $4.3 million in 2007, as 
compared to an operating income of $4.0 million in 2006.  The increase in operating income is attributable to an increase in 
comparative service revenue and relatively lower growth in SG&A expenses, as described above.   
 
 Interest Income, Net.  We earned net interest income of $1.6 million in 2007, as compared to net interest income of $1.3 
million in 2006.  Despite the current year decrease in our marketable securities balance, which occurred in December 2007, 
interest income increased as a result of improved average yields on our investments throughout 2007, as compared to those 
achieved throughout 2006.  Average maturity and yield rates as of December 31, 2007 were approximately 168 days and 
5.0%, respectively, as compared to 68 days and 5.4% in 2006. 
  
  Income Tax (Benefit) Provision.  The Company recorded a tax benefit of $(2.9) million for the year ended December 31, 
2007, as compared to a tax provision of $2.1 million in 2006.  During 2007, the Company recorded favorable tax benefits of 
$(5.5) million.  The benefits were recognized in connection with a review of both the current components of the Company’s 
deferred tax assets and an analysis of the historical valuation allowances provided against certain assets.   
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 The Company, in light of current year operating results and acquisition activity, reviewed the anticipated future 
realizability of certain deferred tax asset attributes and determined that it was more likely than not that we would be able to 
recognize the full value of certain assets.  The net benefit recorded by the Company in the current year tax provision adjusts 
the net carrying value of the Company’s deferred tax asset attributes to reflect the more likely than not amount expected to 
be recognized by the Company.  The benefit recorded by the Company was offset by the Company’s current year income 
tax expense of $2.4 million, representing an effective tax rate, including federal and state income taxes, of 40.4% and $0.2 
million in tax expense related to the Company’s annual evaluation of tax exposures under FIN 48.  Any federal income tax 
provision related to taxable income is recorded directly against our deferred tax asset and will not result in cash outlays or 
refunds.  The Company’s significant operating loss carryforwards are scheduled to expire on or before 2020.  See “Item 8 – 
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 9” included elsewhere 
herein. 
 
 Net Income.  Net income increased $5.6 million, or 175.0%, to $8.8 million in 2007, as compared to $3.2 million in 
2006.  The current year increase in income from continuing operations is primarily a result of the current year tax benefits 
recorded by the Company, the cumulative result of our growth in revenue and gross profit and the contributions from the 
2007 Acquisitions, each of which are discussed above. 
 
 
Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2005  
  
 Revenue.  Total revenue increased by $17.0 million, or 39.3%, to $60.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 
from $43.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.   
 
 Of the $17.0 million increase in 2006 total revenue, service revenue, excluding software and reimbursable expense 
revenue, increased by $16.7 million, or 42.1%, to $56.5 million, as compared to service revenue of $39.8 million in 2005.   
The 2006 increase in service revenue was attributable to growth in our core business service revenue (including the Ranzal 
business) of $8.9 million over the prior year, and the NDS Acquisition, which contributed $7.8 million in service revenue 
during the ten and one half-month period since the date our Company acquired its business.   
 
 The incremental year-over-year increase in core business service revenue was primarily related to customer acceptance 
of our business strategy to deliver premium IT services to the middle market and by improved market demand for our 
offerings.  The NDS Acquisition was completed during the first quarter of 2006 and therefore did not impact our 2005 
results. 
 
 Service revenue from Synapse, our largest customer, amounted to $8.7 million and $8.4 million in 2006 and 2005, 
respectively.  In January of 2007, our Company entered into a new one-year service contract with Synapse.  It was 
anticipated that Synapse would purchase approximately $7.0 million in professional services during fiscal 2007. 
 
 Software revenue, which is directly attributable to our CPM offering, decreased by $0.2 million, to $1.3 million in 2006, 
as compared to $1.5 million in 2005.  Software sales were affected in both 2006 and 2005 by customer demand for such 
software in relation to CPM-related services.  Gross profit margins are generally much lower on software sales than on 
consulting services. 
 
 Generally, we are reimbursed for our out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with our customer’s consulting 
projects.  Reimbursed expense revenue increased approximately $0.5 million in 2006, to approximately $2.3 million, as 
compared to $1.8 million in 2005.  The aggregate amount of reimbursed expenses will fluctuate from year-to-year 
depending on the location of our customers, the general fluctuation of travel costs, such as airfare, and the number of our 
projects that require travel. 
 
 Our annualized revenue per billable consultant, adjusted for utilization, increased 6.5%, to $278 thousand in 2006, as 
compared to $261 thousand in 2005.  The improvement was due to incremental increases in our average consultant billing 
rates across all of our service offerings.  The NDS Acquisition provided the Company with 41 additional billable consultants 
and daily billing rates above those in our core business.  During 2006 the Company increased the number of customers it 
served to 195, as compared to 158 customers in 2005.  In 2006, service revenue from our five largest customers, including 
Synapse, decreased slightly to 46.9% of our total service revenue, as compared to 47.5% in 2005. 
 
 Cost of Revenue.  Cost of revenue primarily consists of project personnel costs principally related to salaries, payroll 
taxes, employee benefits and travel expenses for personnel dedicated to customer projects.  These costs represent the most 
significant expense we incur in providing our services.  In total, cost of revenue increased by $10.5 million, or 41.6%, to 
$35.6 million in 2006, as compared to $25.1 million in 2005.  The 2006 increase in cost of revenue is partially attributable to 
the effect of the NDS Acquisition, which increased cost of revenue by approximately $5.0 million in 2006.  Additionally, 
there was an increase of $5.5 million, or 21.8%, in project and personnel costs related to our technical and CPM consulting 
business to support our continued growth in customer projects and revenue. 
 
 Additionally, during the first quarter of 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.  SFAS No. 123R 
requires recognition of share-based compensation expense, together with cash compensation paid to our employees, as 
project and personnel costs.  As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company recorded $0.3 million of 
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compensation expense included in project and personnel costs.  No compensation expense related to SFAS No. 123R was 
reported as a component of cost of revenue during 2005. 
 
 Software costs decreased by $0.4 million, to $1.1 million, in 2006, as compared to $1.5 million in 2005.  Software costs 
are expected to fluctuate from year to year depending on our customers demand for CPM-related software.  Reimbursable 
expenses, which increased in 2006 by $0.5 million, to $2.3 million, as compared to $1.8 million in 2005, were a direct result 
of the Company’s increased customer base and associated travel-related expenses incurred during the comparative fiscal 
periods.   
 
 Gross Profit.  Gross profit increased by $6.5 million, or 36.1%, to $24.5 million in 2006, as compared to $18.0 million 
in 2005.  Gross profit, as a percentage of total revenue, decreased to 40.8% in 2006, as compared to 41.7% in 2005.  Gross 
profit related to service revenue decreased to 43.0% in 2006 from 45.1% in 2005.   
 
 The improvement, on an absolute dollar basis, in gross profit during 2006 was directly related to the cumulative effects 
of growth within our core business, which increased gross profit by $3.4 million in 2006, representing 51.7% of the year-
over-year increase in gross profit, combined with incremental gross profit of $3.1 million provided by NDS in 2006, which 
represented 48.3% of the year-over-year increase.  Positive factors influencing this growth include an overall increase in 
customer base, an increase in billable headcount and improved average daily billing rates, which are discussed above. 
 
 Fluctuations in gross profit, as a percentage of total revenue and service revenue, in 2006 and 2005 were attributable to 
the Company’s billable consultant utilization rate and the 2006 adoption of SFAS No. 123R.  Billable consultant utilization 
decreased to 79.9% in 2006 compared to 81.1% in 2005, while the current year impact of SFAS No. 123R on gross margin 
is discussed above.  The Company’s management operates the business with a targeted utilization rate of 78.0% to 82.0%.  
 
 Selling, General and Administrative Expense (“SG&A”).  SG&A expenses increased 17.9% to $18.7 million in 2006, as 
compared to SG&A expenses of $15.9 million in 2005. The increase in SG&A expenses during 2006 was primarily due to 
additions of sales personnel, management personnel, support personnel, relatively higher commissions due to our revenue 
growth and additional rent related to our facilities expansion.  Lastly, we incurred $0.9 million in share-based compensation 
expense associated with the implementation of SFAS No. 123R. 
 
 SG&A expense as a percentage of services revenue, excluding reimbursed expenses, decreased to 31.2% for the year 
ended December 31, 2006 from 36.8% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease in SG&A expenses as a 
percentage of revenue is the result of operational efficiencies and economies of scale as the Company has grown. 
 
 As more fully described in “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements - Note 14” included elsewhere herein, on May 4, 2006, the Company executed and made effective the 2006 
Lease Amendment. Additional future annual rent expense to be recognized by the Company under the 2006 Lease 
Amendment will be approximately $0.7 million.  The Company began paying rent on the new office space covered under 
the 2006 Lease Amendment during the fourth quarter of 2006.   
  
 Depreciation and Amortization Expense.  Depreciation and amortization expense increased 67.8% to $1.8 million in 
2006, as compared to $1.0 million in 2005.  The Company reported a slight increase in comparative depreciation expense 
during the current year due to current year asset purchases and incremental depreciation related to acquired NDS assets.   
 
 Amortization expense increased by $0.7 million in 2006 as compared to 2005.  The 2006 increase in amortization 
expense was directly related to the intangible assets identified in connection with the NDS Acquisition.  2006 amortization 
expense on NDS intangible assets amounted to $0.8 million.  The increase in current year amortization expense related to 
the NDS identified intangible assets was offset by a decrease in historical amortization expense of $0.1 million related to 
other intangible assets that became fully amortized in 2006.   
 
 In connection with the Company’s execution of the 2006 Lease Amendment, the Company made payments of $1.0 
million and anticipated that it will make approximately $1.5 million in capital expenditures related to leasehold 
improvements and office equipment during 2006 and 2007, respectively.   It was expected that these capital expenditures 
will increase depreciation expense by approximately $0.3 million in 2007.  See “Item 8 – Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  - Note 14” included elsewhere herein. 
 
 Operating Income.  The Company’s operating income increased 275.8% to $4.0 million in 2006, as compared to an 
operating income of $1.1 million in 2005.  The increase in operating income was attributable to an increase in comparative 
service revenue and relatively lower growth in SG&A expenses.  Each of these items is explained in further detail above. 
 
 Interest Income, Net.  We earned net interest income of $1.3 million in 2006, as compared to net interest income of $1.1 
million in 2005.  Despite the current year decrease in our marketable security balances, interest income has increased as a 
result of improved yields on our investments during 2006, as compared to those achieved in 2005.  Average maturity and 
yield rates for the year ended December 31, 2006 were approximately 68 days and 5.4%, respectively, as compared to132 
days and 4.1%, respectively, as of December 31, 2005. 
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 Income Tax Provision.  The Company accrues a provision for federal and state income taxes at the applicable statutory 
rates, adjusted for non-deductible expenses.  Our current year tax provision totaled $2.1 million, or 39.7% of income before 
taxes, as compared to a provision of $0.8 million, or 40% of income before taxes in 2005.  We have deferred tax assets 
resulting primarily from federal net operating losses and capital loss carryforwards amounting to $25.0 million for which we 
have a valuation allowance of $6.5 million.  Our federal income tax amounts are charged directly against our deferred tax 
asset and will not result in cash outlays by the Company.  The Company’s significant operating loss carryforwards are 
scheduled to expire on or before 2020.    
 
 Income from Continuing Operations.  Income from continuing operations increased 151.3% to $3.2 million in 2006, as 
compared to $1.3 million in 2005.  The current year increase in income from continuing operations was a cumulative result 
of our growth in revenue, gross profit and the contributions of the NDS Acquisition, which are discussed above. 
 
 Discontinued Operations.  We have received in the past various tax notices and assessments from the IRS and various 
State Departments of Revenue related to our former staffing businesses, which were sold in 2000 and 2001.  During 2005, 
our Company was able to successfully resolve several outstanding assessments.  On a net basis, the Company reversed 
approximately $0.3 million in 2005 from its discontinued operations accrual related to the successful resolution of certain 
tax assessments.   
 
 Net Income.  We reported net income of $3.2 million in 2006, as compared to $1.6 million 2005.  The current year 
increase in income was a cumulative result of our growth in revenue, gross profit and the contributions of the NDS 
Acquisition, which are discussed above. 
 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 

The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the periods indicated: 
 

 Year Ended December 31 
 2007  2006  2005 
  (In thousands) 
Cash flows provided by (used in):      
        Operating activities $      9,242  $      8,211  $      1,237 
        Investing activities     (14,361)        (6,709)             (80) 
        Financing activities         3,480          2,247           (340) 
        Discontinued operating activities           (565)           (141)           (156) 
Total cash (used) provided during the year $     (2,204)  $      3,608  $         661 

 
 As of December 31, 2007, we had cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and accrued interest of $22.8 million, a 
$10.3 million decrease from the December 31, 2006 balance of $33.1 million.  Working capital, which is defined as current 
assets less current liabilities, decreased $8.0 million, to $29.6 million, as of December 31, 2007, as compared to $37.6 
million as of December 31, 2006.  The $10.3 million decrease in cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and accrued 
interest is primarily attributable to cash outflows of $19.6 million in connection with the 2007 Acquisitions; $2.3 million 
related to current year capital expenditures; and $0.7 million in contingent earnout consideration paid to the former 
stockholder of NDS.  These outflows were offset by an inflow of $2.9 million in proceeds from the employee stock purchase 
plan and stock option exercises and $8.8 million in 2007 net income from continuing operations. 
             
 Our primary historical sources of funds have been from operations and the proceeds from equity offerings, as well as 
sales of businesses in fiscal years 2000 and 2001.  Our principal historical uses of cash have been to fund working capital 
requirements, capital expenditures and acquisitions.  We generally pay our employees bi-weekly for their services, while 
receiving payments from customers 30 to 60 days from the date of the invoice. 
 
 Historically, a significant portion of the Company’s cash flows from operations have been derived from one of its largest 
customers, Synapse, which is considered a related party.  Payments received by the Company for services rendered to 
Synapse totaled approximately $6.8 million, $8.8 million and $7.7 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  All 
accounts receivable amounts were collected within our normal business terms and our contracts with Synapse are typically 
for a period of one year or more.  In the event revenue related to Synapse is materially less than the amount anticipated in 
2008, such a loss in revenue could have an adverse impact upon the Company’s operations and cash flows.  See “Item 1A – 
Risk Factors – Our Reliance upon Synapse” included elsewhere herein.  However, we believe such an impact could be 
mitigated through the management of employee headcount and through the redeployment of existing Synapse-related 
resources on to other consulting projects. 
 
 Net cash provided by operating activities increased to $9.2 million in 2007 compared to $8.2 million in 2006.  
Significant changes in operating accounts included the 2007 net income from continuing operations of $8.8 million; 
depreciation and amortization of $2.4 million; $1.5 million in current year share-based compensation; and a $1.5 million 
increase in accrued payroll and related liabilities in connection with the expected payouts to be made under the Company’s 
2007 performance-based bonus plan.  The cash flow provided by the above items was partially offset by an increase in 
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accounts receivable of $1.1 million and an increase in the carrying value of our net deferred tax assets of $3.7 million related 
to the current year favorable deferred tax benefits recognized by the Company in connection with a review of the future 
realizability of our net operating loss carryforwards. 
 
 Net cash provided by operating activities was $8.2 million in 2006.   Significant changes in operating accounts included 
the 2006 net income from continuing operations of $3.2 million, depreciation and amortization of $1.8 million; $1.5 million 
related to the current year reduction of our deferred tax asset, $1.2 million in current year share-based compensation 
recognized in connection with SFAS No. 123R, and a $1.2 million decrease in accounts receivable balances.  The cash flow 
provided by the above items was partially offset by a decrease in accrued payroll and related liabilities of $1.2 million as a 
result of the 2006 payment of the Company’s 2005 performance-based bonus accrual. 
 
 Net cash provided by operating activities was $1.2 million in 2005.   Changes in operating accounts included the 2005 
net income from continuing operations of $1.3 million; depreciation and amortization of $1.0 million; the receipt of $1.4 
million related to the 1997 IRS refund claim; an increase in accrued payroll and related liabilities of $2.0 million primarily 
related to the 2005 performance-based bonus plan accrual and $0.7 million related to the current year reduction of our 
deferred tax asset, which is representative of the estimated federal income taxes due on our current year income from 
continuing operations.  The cash flow provided by the above items was partially offset by an overall increase in accounts 
receivable of $4.8 million, which is directly related to our revenue growth in 2005. 
  
 Net cash used in investing activities increased to $14.4 million in 2007, as compared to $6.7 million in 2006.  Net 
outflows relate to the $19.6 million cash portion of the purchase price for the 2007 Acquisitions; $0.7 million contingent 
earnout consideration payment made to the former stockholder of NDS in connection with the successful completion of 
NDS’ first earnout period; and capital expenditures of $2.3 million.  These outflows of cash were offset by $8.2 million in 
proceeds from net redemptions of marketable securities.    
 
 All capital expenditures are discretionary as the Company currently has no long-term commitments for capital 
expenditures.  
 
 Net cash used in investing activities was $6.7 million in 2006.  Net outflows relate to the $6.6 million payment to the 
former stockholders of NDS, $2.7 million related to the payment of Ranzal’s second and final contingent earnout 
consideration, and capital expenditures of $1.6 million.  These outflows of cash were offset by $4.2 million in proceeds from 
net redemptions of marketable securities.    
 
 Net cash used in investing activities was $0.1 million in 2005.  Net outflows related to a $1.0 million payment of 
Ranzal’s first contingent earnout consideration and capital expenditures of $0.5 million.  These outflows of cash were offset 
by $1.4 million in proceeds from net redemptions of marketable securities.    
 
 Net cash provided by (used) in financing activities was $3.5 million, $2.2 million, and $(0.3) million in 2007, 2006, and 
2005, respectively.  Cash provided by financing activities during 2007 and 2006 were primarily representative of proceeds 
received by the Company in connection with purchases under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan and through the exercise 
of stock options.   Net cash used in financing activities during 2005 was primarily attributable to the repurchase of the 
Company’s common stock, which totaled $1.6 million.  These purchases were offset by net proceeds from our employee 
stock purchase program and exercises of stock options during 2005. 
   
 Net cash used in discontinued operations was $0.6 million, $0.1 million, and $0.2 million in 2007, 2006, and 2005, 
respectively.  These amounts represent payments made by the Company related to its discontinued operations accrual.  The 
Company, in 2000-2001 made a strategic decision to undergo a comprehensive restructuring program to refocus future 
growth initiatives in its systems integration and consulting business and as a result, committed to divestures in each of its 
staffing businesses.  Payments in each of the presented fiscal years represent payments related to the discontinuance of the 
operations, which were accrued for in previous years.   
 
 As a result of the above, our combined cash and cash equivalents (decreased) increased by $(2.2) million, $3.6 million 
and $0.7 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  The aggregate of our cash and cash equivalents, marketable 
securities and accrued interest was $22.8 million, $33.1 million and $33.8 million, as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively. 
 
 In February 2006, in connection with the NDS Acquisition, the Company entered into an earnout agreement with the 
former stockholders of NDS (the “NDS Earnout Agreement”).  The NDS Earnout Agreement specifies additional earnout 
consideration that could be payable to the former NDS stockholders.  Earnout payments are conditioned upon the attainment 
of certain performance measurements for the NDS business over a 12 to 24 month period from the date of the acquisition.  
On February 15, 2007, the former NDS stockholders completed the first of two twelve-month earnout periods, during which 
the required minimum performance measurements were achieved.  During the first quarter of 2007, the Company accrued 
$886 thousand payable to the former NDS stockholders directly related to the completion of the first earnout period.  In 
April 2007, $709 thousand of the contingent earnout consideration was paid in cash and $177 thousand was settled through 
the issuance of 21,751 shares of Common Stock.  The contingent earnout consideration paid to the former NDS stockholders 
was reported as an increase in goodwill in the Company’s balance sheet during the first quarter of 2007.   
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 The Company may have to pay additional earnout consideration to the former NDS stockholders at the conclusion of the 
second earnout period, which is scheduled to conclude on February 15, 2008.  As of December 31, 2007, the Company 
anticipates that it will record and pay additional earnout consideration of up to approximately $0.2 million during the first 
quarter of 2008 related to the second and final NDS earnout period.  Of this amount, approximately 80% of the contingent 
earnout consideration will be payable in cash and 20% will be payable in Common Stock.  See “Item 8 – Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 4.”   
 
 In July 2007, in connection with the Alecian Acquisition, the Company entered into an earnout agreement with Alecian 
(the “Alecian Earnout Agreement”).  The Alecian Earnout Agreement specifies additional earnout consideration that could 
be payable to the former Alecian stockholder.  Earnout payments are conditioned upon the attainment of certain 
performance measurements for the Alecian business over a 12-month period from the date of the acquisition.  Assuming all 
performance measurements are met within the predetermined performance ranges, additional earnout consideration of 
approximately $1.0 million, payable in cash, would be payable to Alecian. See “Item 8 – Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 4.”   
 
 In September 2007, in connection with the Lynx Acquisition, the Company entered into an earnout agreement with Lynx 
(the “Lynx Earnout Agreement”).  The Lynx Earnout Agreement specifies additional earnout consideration that could be 
payable to Lynx.  Earnout payments are conditioned upon the attainment of certain performance measurements for the Lynx 
business over a 12- to 24-month period from the date of the acquisition.  Assuming all performance measurements are met 
within the predetermined performance ranges, additional earnout consideration of approximately $0.5 million would be 
payable, in cash, to Lynx.  See “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements - Note 4.”   
 
 We believe that our current cash balances and cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund our short-term 
operating and liquidity requirements, at least through 2008, and the long-term operating and liquidity requirements for our 
existing operations.  We periodically reassess the adequacy of our liquidity position, taking into consideration current and 
anticipated operating cash flow, anticipated capital expenditures, business combinations, possible stockholder distributions 
and public or private offerings of debt or equity securities. The pace at which we will either generate or consume cash will 
be dependent upon future operations and the level of demand for our services on an ongoing basis.  See “Item 1 - Business, 
Potential Future Strategies, Transactions and Changes.” 
 
 
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 
 
 On May 4, 2006, the Company executed and made effective an amendment to its Second Amendment to Lease 
agreement with Harvard Mills Limited Partnership (“Harvard Mills”) (the “Third Amendment to Lease Agreement”).  The 
Third Amendment to Lease Agreement pertains to the Company expanding its current office space at its corporate 
headquarters in Wakefield, Massachusetts by an additional 33,607 square feet (the “New Space”).  The Third Amendment to 
Lease Agreement extends the existing lease term related to our corporate headquarters located in Wakefield, Massachusetts 
for an additional three years, until September 30, 2016.  The Company occupied the New Space during the first quarter of 
2007.  Rental payment and rent expense related to the New Space commenced at the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2006 
(the “New Lease Commencement Date”).  The term of Third Amendment to Lease Agreement and the actual square footage 
covered under the lease was modified during the third quarter of 2007 to reflect the actual New Lease Commencement Date 
and the final determination of actual square footage upon the completion of the build-out of the New Space. 

 
 As of the New Lease Commencement Date, base rent for the entire premises under the Third Amendment to Lease 
Agreement, inclusive of the existing space, as outlined in the Company’s Second Amendment to Lease agreement, and the 
New Space, will be $1.1 million per year for the first three-year period ending September 30, 2009, $1.2 million per year for 
the subsequent four-year period ending September 30, 2013 and $1.3 million per year for the final three-year period ending 
September 30, 2016.  The Third Amendment to Lease Agreement also provides for the payment of certain common 
operating expenses. 
 
 We lease office space under noncancellable operating lease arrangements through 2016.  Rent expense, including 
amounts paid to related parties for discontinued operations, was approximately $2.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.1 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.   
 
 In December 2006, the Company entered into lease financing arrangements (the “Capital Lease Arrangements”) with a 
bank related to certain property and equipment, as further described in “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary 
Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 7” included elsewhere herein.  Payments under the Capital Lease 
Arrangements are to be made over a period of 48 to 60 months and have a blended interest rate of 6.03% per annum on the 
outstanding principle balances.  As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, our outstanding obligations under the Capital Lease 
Arrangements totaled $837 thousand and $962 thousand, respectively.  During the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, 
the Company made payments of principle and interest totaling $125 thousand and $20 thousand, respectively under the 
Capital Lease Arrangements.  



 
 

 
 Annual future minimum payments required under capital and operating leases that have an initial or remaining 
noncancellable lease term in excess of one year and existing purchase obligations are as follows: 
 

      Payments Due By Period     
  Less      Greater   
  Than 1  1 – 3  3 – 5  Than 5   

Contractual Obligations  Year  Years  Years  Years  Total 
      (Amounts in thousands)     
           
Capital leases (1)   $     251   $      494     $       211     $          -   $      956 
Operating leases  1,322  2,385  2,417  4,819  10,943 
   Total (2)  $   1,573  $   2,879  $    2,628  $   4,819  $ 11,899 
_____________           

(1) - Presented future payments on capital lease obligations represent payments of principal and related interest. 
 
(2) -  We had $200 thousand of gross liability for uncertain tax positions recorded in accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2007. We are not able to reasonably 
estimate in which future periods these amounts will ultimately be settled. See “Item 8 – Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 9” included 
elsewhere herein.  

 
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 
 
 In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business 
Combinations,” (“SFAS No. 141(R)”) which replaces SFAS No. 141.  SFAS No. 141(R) establishes principles and 
requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the 
liabilities assumed, any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. SFAS No. 141(R) also establishes 
disclosure requirements which will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. 
SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008.  We are currently evaluating the impact 
that SFAS No. 141(R) will have on our consolidated financial statements. 
 
 In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements – 
an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,” (“SFAS No. 160”) which establishes accounting and reporting 
standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income 
attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest, changes in a parent’s ownership interest and the valuation of 
retained non-controlling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. The Statement also establishes reporting 
requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and 
the interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. 
We are currently evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 160 will have on our consolidated financial statements.  
  
 In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities, Including an amendment of SFAS No. 115” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to 
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.  SFAS No. 159 is effective for financial statements 
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15.  The Company does not believe that adoption of SFAS No. 159 will 
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.  

 
 In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines 
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods 
within those fiscal years. The Company does not believe that adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on our 
consolidated financial statements. 
  
 In February 2008, FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157” 
(“FSP 157-2”). FSP 157-2 will provide a one-year deferral of the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets 
and non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed in financial statements at fair value at least 
annually. For non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities subject to the deferral, SFAS No. 157 will be effective in 
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 and in interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating 
the impact that FSP 157-2 will have on our consolidated financial statements.  

 



 
 

Related-Party Transactions 
 
 Synapse.  Synapse, one of our largest customers, as discussed in “Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 13” included elsewhere herein, is considered a related party as its 
former President and Chief Executive Officer, Michael Loeb, is also a member of our Board of Directors.  Mr. Loeb, who 
resigned as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Synapse during 2005, remains a member of Synapse’s board of 
directors as of December 31, 2007.  Mr. Loeb joined the Company’s Board of Directors in April 2000.  Synapse has been an 
Edgewater customer since 1996.  Service revenue from Synapse amounted to $7.0 million, $8.7 million and $8.4 million for 
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Accounts receivable balances for Synapse were $1.6 million and $1.4 million as of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, which amounts were on customary business terms. The Company typically provides services 
to Synapse related to infrastructure services, custom software development, and systems integration.  Services are provided 
on both a fixed-fee and time and materials basis.  Our contracts with Synapse, including all terms and conditions, have been 
negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on market terms similar to those we have with our other customers.   Our existing 
one-year services contract with Synapse, which was entered into in January of 2007, automatically extended through June 
30, 2008, as per the terms of the contract, on January 1, 2008.  Based on the automatic six-month renewal and the amount of 
services being currently performed, it is anticipated that we will provide ongoing services to Synapse throughout 2008 and 
such services are expected to generate approximately $3.5 million in revenue during 2008.  The Company anticipates that it 
will enter into a new one-year services contract with Synapse during the first quarter of 2008.  There is no guarantee that the 
Company will be able to successfully negotiate a new contract with Synapse at the end of the current contract period.   
 
 Loeb Enterprises.  Loeb Enterprises is considered a related party as its founder and President is Michael Loeb, a member 
of our Board of Directors.  Loeb Enterprises has been an Edgewater customer since 2006.  Service revenue from Loeb 
Enterprises amounted to $147 thousand and $50 thousand for 2007 and 2006, respectively.  The Company did not report any 
service revenue from Loeb Enterprises during the year ended December 31, 2005.  Accounts receivable balances from Loeb 
Enterprises were $32 thousand and $4 thousand as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively, which 
amounts were on customary business terms.  The Company provides Loeb Enterprises with hosting and support services.  
These services are provided on both a fixed-fee and time and materials basis.  Our contracts with Loeb Enterprises, 
including all terms and conditions, have been negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on market terms similar to those we 
have with our other customers.   

 
 Lease Agreement.  Our Company entered into a lease agreement in 1999 (the “Original Lease”), which was modified in 
June 2000, with a stockholder who is a former officer and director and an immediate family member of one of our directors 
(the “Landlord”).  The lease pertained to certain parcels of land and buildings in Fayetteville, Arkansas for our former 
corporate headquarters that were included in our Company’s discontinued operations since 2001.  On June 28, 2007, the 
Company entered into a Lease Termination Agreement (the “Termination Agreement”) with the Landlord to terminate the 
Original Lease as of June 30, 2007, prior to its scheduled June 30, 2009 expiration date.   
 
 The Termination Agreement required the Company to make a lump sum payment of $503 thousand, which was paid on 
June 28, 2007 (the “Termination Payment”), representing the remaining lease payments due under the Original Lease, which 
was to expire on June 30, 2009, and a partial payment of projected 2008 real estate taxes.  The amounts paid by the 
Company in connection with the Termination Agreement were previously accrued at the time the Company discontinued 
operations of certain divisions, which were sold in 2000 and 2001.  Rent payments, including the Lease Termination 
Payment, related to these facilities totaled approximately $0.6 million (including the Termination Payment noted above), 
$0.2 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  See “Item 8 – Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 13” included elsewhere herein.  
 
 Included in the “Certain Transactions” section of our 2008 Proxy Statement for our June 11, 2008 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders’ is additional disclosure concerning our related-party transactions.  Our Proxy Statement will be filed with the 
SEC on or before April 29, 2008.  
 
 
ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 
 Our primary financial instruments include investments in money market funds, short-term municipal bonds, commercial 
paper and U.S. government securities that are sensitive to market risks and interest rates.  The investment portfolio is used to 
preserve our capital until it is required to fund operations, strategic acquisitions or distributions to stockholders.  None of our 
market-risk sensitive instruments are held for trading purposes.  We did not purchase derivative financial instruments in 
2007 or 2006.  Should interest rates on the Company’s investments fluctuate by 10% the impact would not be material to the 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.   
 
 For the last three years, the impact of inflation and changing prices has not been material on revenues or income from 
continuing operations. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of  
Edgewater Technology, Inc. 
Wakefield, Massachusetts: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Edgewater Technology, Inc. and subsidiaries 
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ 
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007.  These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

  We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2007, the Company adopted 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income 
Taxes” (“FIN No. 48”).  Also, as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2006, the 
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Share-based Payment” (“SFAS No. 
123R”). 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 17, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  

 
 
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 17, 2008 
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 
 

  December 31, 
  2007  2006 

ASSETS     
Current assets:     

Cash and cash equivalents  $     7,629  $   9,833 
Marketable securities  15,146  23,308 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $375 and $318, respectively1   15,791  10,883 
Deferred income taxes, net  2,240  1,760 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  893  441 

Total current assets  41,699  46,225 
     
Property and equipment, net  4,749  3,391 
Intangible assets, net   7,682  3,797 
Goodwill  46,033  25,366 
Deferred income taxes, net   20,015  16,789 
Other assets  48  52 

Total assets  $ 120,226  $ 95,620 
     

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY     
     
Current liabilities:     

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $     4,171  $   3,326 
Accruals related to discontinued operations  23  588 
Accrued bonuses2  3,811  1,971 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities  1,836  1,280 
Accrued commissions  1,102  991 
Deferred revenue and other liabilities  920  252 
Capital lease obligations, current  202  184 

Total current liabilities  12,065  8,592 
     

Capital lease obligations  635  778 
Total liabilities  12,700  9,370 

     
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)     
     
Stockholders’ equity:     

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 2,000 shares authorized,  
    no shares issued or outstanding 

  
- 

  
- 

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 48,000 shares authorized,      
29,736 shares issued and 13,297 and 11,522 shares outstanding      
as of  December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively  297  297 

Paid-in capital  212,496  213,979 
Treasury stock, at cost, 16,439 and 18,214 shares at December 31, 2007      

and 2006, respectively  (122,974)  (136,923) 
Retained earnings   17,707  8,897 

Total stockholders’ equity  107,526  86,250 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $  120,226  $ 95,620 

_____________________________ 
1 Includes related-party amounts of $1,567 and $32 as of December 31, 2007 and $1,407 and $4 as of December 31, 2006 due from The 
Synapse Group, Inc. (“Synapse”) and Loeb Enterprises (“Loeb”), respectively. 
 
2 As of December 31, 2007, includes amounts related to the Company’s 2007 performance-based bonus plan, quarterly consultant-based 
bonus plans related to our existing and acquired consultants and the final payout due under a Ranzal retention-based bonus plan. 
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 



 - 34 - 
 

EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
  2007  2006  2005  

Revenue:       
Service revenue 3 $  63,188  $  56,523  $  39,788  
   Software revenue 2,383  1,304  1,528  
   Reimbursable expenses 2,919  2,256  1,810  
        Total revenue 68,490  60,083  43,126  
       
Cost of revenue:       
   Project and personnel costs ** 35,443  32,206  21,841  
   Software costs 2,030  1,120  1,475  
   Reimbursable expenses 2,919  2,256  1,810  
         Total cost of revenue 40,392  35,582  25,126  
       

         Gross profit 28,098  24,501  18,000  
       

Operating expenses:       
Selling, general and administrative ** 21,335  18,721  15,883  
Depreciation and amortization  2,448  1,755  1,046  

Total operating expenses 23,783  20,476  16,929  
Operating income 4,315  4,025  1,071  

       
Interest income, net 1,599  1,283  1,054  
Income before taxes and discontinued operations 5,914  5,308  2,125  
 
Tax (benefit) provision             (2,896)

 
             2,105 

                     
              850 

 

Income from continuing operations before discontinued operations  8,810  3,203  1,275  
       

Discontinued operations:       
Income from discontinued operations, net of  applicable taxes -  -  325  
Net income $     8,810  $     3,203  $     1,600  
       

Basic income per share:       
Continuing operations $       0.75  $       0.29  $      0.13  
Discontinued operations -  -  0.03  
Net income $       0.75  $       0.29  $      0.16  
Weighted average shares, basic 11,793  10,980  10,241  

       
Diluted income per share:       

Continuing operations $      0.66  $      0.27  $      0.12  
Discontinued operations -  -  0.03  
Net income $      0.66  $      0.27  $      0.15  
Weighted average shares, diluted 13,358  11,956  10,653  

       
** - The following amounts of share-based compensation expense are       
   included in each of the respective expense categories       
   reported above:       
        Project and personnel costs $       378  $       265  $            -  
        Selling, general and administrative 1,101  936  229  
                   Total share-based compensation $    1,479  $    1,201  $       229  

_____________________________ 
3  Includes related-party amounts of $6,976, $8,750 and $8,441 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 from Synapse, 
respectively and $147 and $50 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 from Loeb, respectively.  No revenue related to Loeb was 
recorded for the year ended December 31, 2005.   
 

 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 



 
 

EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

 (In Thousands) 
 

  
 

Deferred Total
Paid-in Stock-based Retained Stockholders'

Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Compensation Earnings Equity

BALANCE, January 1, 2005 29,736 297$        217,526$      (19,187) (144,852)$      (469)$               4,094$         76,596$            
Issuance of common stock related

to employee stock plans -               -           (204)              68                459                 -                   -              255                   
Stock option exercises -               -           (564)              248              1,605              -                   -              1,041                
Repurchase of common stock -               -           -                (321)             (1,636)            -                   -              (1,636)              
Deferred share-based compensation -               -           (246)              139              919                 (444)                 -              229                   
Net income -               -           -                -               -                 -                   1,600           1,600                

BALANCE, December 31, 2005 29,736 297 216,512 (19,053) (143,505) (913) 5,694 78,085
Deferred shared-based compensation

adjusted in connection with adoption
 of SFAS No. 123R -               -           (913)              -               -                 913                  -              -                   
Issuance of common stock related

to employee stock plans -               -           (195)              75                568                 -                   -              373                   
Issuance of restricted stock awards -               -           (1,091)           136              1,091              -                   -              -                   
Issuance of common stock related

to acquisition -               -           (336)              265              2,016              -                   -              1,680                
Stock option exercises -               -           (1,199)           363              2,907              -                   -              1,708                
Share-based compensation expense -               -           1,201            -               -                 -                   -              1,201                
Net income -               -           -                -               -                 -                   3,203           3,203                

BALANCE, December 31, 2006 29,736 297 213,979 (18,214) (136,923) -                   8,897 86,250
Issuance of common stock related

to employee stock plans -               -           (182)              85                678                 -                   -              496                   
Issuance of restricted stock awards -               -           (302)              38                302                 -                   -              -                   
Issuance of common stock related

to acquisitions (See Note 4) -               -           (756)              1,131           9,051              -                   -              8,295                
Stock option exercises -               -           (1,722)           649              5,195              -                   -              3,473                
Shares surrendered in connection with

option exercises and taxes -               -           -                (128)             (1,277)            -                   -              (1,277)              
Share-based compensation expense -               -           1,479            -               -                 -                   -              1,479                
Net income -               -           -                -               -                 -                   8,810           8,810                

BALANCE, December 31, 2007 29,736 297$        212,496$      (16,439) (122,974)$      -$                 17,707$       107,526$          
   

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Treasury StockCommon Stock
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 (In Thousands) 
 

  Year Ended December 31, 
  2007  2006  2005 

  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      

Net income        $     8,810       $     3,203         $   1, 600 
Income from discontinued divisions                       -                        -                (325)  

Net income from continuing operations               8,810              3,203               1,275 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by  
   operating activities, net of acquisitions:      

Depreciation and amortization 2,448  1,755  1,046 
Provision for bad debts 126  210  189 
Deferred income taxes             (3,706)    1,542  722 
Excess tax benefits from stock options   (729)            (182)  - 
Share-based compensation expense 1,479        1,201  229 
Amortization of discounts/premiums on marketable securities, net             (63)             (332)              (226)
Loss on sale of marketable securities             (6)                     (3)                 - 
Change in operating accounts:      

Accounts receivable            (1,084)    1,152          (4,775)  
Income tax refund receivable -  -   1,430 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets                (452)    946             (545)  
Other assets 4  5  13 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities                 204                 (76)                   (10)  
Accrued payroll and related liabilities              1,543              (1,202)   1,994 
Deferred revenue and other liabilities           668                (8)                 (105)  

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,242           8,211  1,237 
Net cash used in discontinued operating activities           (565)              (141)                 (156)  
      
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:      

Redemptions of marketable securities   52,285     35,741  31,983 
Purchases of marketable securities (44,054)  (31,558)        (30,569)
Purchase of Vertical Pitch, LLC (15,548)    -    - 
Purchase of Lynx Business Intelligence Consulting, Inc. (3,263)    -    - 
Purchase of Alecian Corporation (794)    -    - 
Purchase of National Decision Systems, Inc., net of cash acquired (709)  (6,624)    - 
Purchase of Ranzal, net of cash acquired                    -  (2,662)             (963)
Purchases of property and equipment (2,278)  (1,606)             (531)

Net cash used in investing activities (14,361)  (6,709)  (80) 
      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:      
Payments on capital leases (147)  (15)  - 
Excess tax benefits from stock options 729  182  - 
Proceeds from employee stock plans and stock option exercises 2,898  2,080  1,296 

  Repurchases of common stock                     -                      -  (1,636) 
Net cash provided by (used) in financing activities 3,480  2,247  (340) 

      
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,204)             3,608                 661 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 9,833  6,225  5,564 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $      7,629  $      9,833  $     6,225 

      
      
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:       
Interest paid $          53  $            5  $             - 
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $        799  $        377  $        240 
Cash receipts from related parties  $     7,021  $     8,815  $     7,741 
Cash paid to related parties $        628  $        246  $        216 
      
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       
Goodwill adjustment (Note 4) $             -  $    1 ,400  $             - 
Purchases of property and equipment under capital lease obligations (Note 7) $          22  $        977  $             - 
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions and earnouts (Note 4) $     8,295  $     1,680  $             - 
Issuance of restricted stock awards $        302  $     1,091  $        673 
Shares surrendered in connection with option exercise and taxes $     1,277  $            -  $             - 

 
 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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 EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:  
 

Edgewater Technology, Inc. (“Edgewater” or the “Company”) is an innovative technology management consulting firm providing a unique 
blend of premium information technology (“IT”) services.  We provide our clients with a range of business and technology offerings. 
Headquartered in Wakefield, Massachusetts, as of December 31, 2007, our Company employed approximately 302 technical consulting 
professionals and 367 total professional throughout our network of satellite offices. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:  
 
 The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the application of certain significant accounting policies as described in this 
note and elsewhere in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes.  

 
Principles of Consolidation –  
 
 The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Edgewater and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.  All intercompany transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation.  
 
Use of Estimates – 

 
 Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  These accounting principles require management to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  These estimates, judgments and assumptions used in preparing the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the 
consolidated financial statements.  Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, judgments and assumptions used in preparing 
these consolidated financial statements, actual results could differ from those estimates.  Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in 
which they become known.   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – 
 
 All highly liquid investments with remaining maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase are considered cash equivalents.  
Cash and cash equivalent balances consist of deposits, investments in money market funds and repurchase agreements with large U.S. 
commercial banks.  The Company’s cash equivalents consisted of $1.0 million in money market funds as of December 31, 2007.  Cash 
equivalents consisted of $2.3 million in money market funds and $3.0 million in commercial paper as of December 31, 2006. 
 
Marketable Securities – 

 
 Marketable securities are classified as held-to-maturity securities, which are recorded at amortized cost and consist of marketable 
instruments, which include but are not limited to government obligations, including agencies and commercial paper. All marketable securities 
have original maturities greater than three months but less than one year at the date of purchase.   
 
 In December 2007 and February 2006, in connection with the acquisitions of Vertical Pitch, LLC (‘Vertical Pitch”) and National Decision 
Systems, Inc. (“NDS”), which are fully described in Note 4, the Company sold marketable security instruments prior to their maturity.  The 
proceeds from the sale of the securities were used to fund the acquisitions.  In accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Investments 
in Certain Debt and Equity Securities,” the sales, as they are related to acquisition activity, do not represent a recurring activity within 
the Company’s marketable securities investment portfolio requiring the Company to change the securities held-to-maturity status.  
 
Property and Equipment – 
 
 Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Property and equipment are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to ten years.  Equipment held under capital leases is 
amortized utilizing the straight-line method over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.  See Note 7 and Note 
14 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.  Additions that extend the lives of the assets are capitalized, while repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.   
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
Costs Incurred to Develop Software for Internal Use –  
 
 We account for costs related to software developed for internal use in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants Statement of Position (“SOP”) 98-1, “Accounting for Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” (“SOP 
98-1”).  In accordance with SOP 98-1, the Company capitalizes certain internal and external costs, which are comprised of employee salaries 
and third-party consulting fees incurred during the application development stage of the project, to develop and implement the internal-use 
software.  Such capitalized costs are expensed over the estimated life of the software, typically three years, using the straight-line method.  
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets –  
 
 We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such 
assets may not be recoverable.  Impairment is generally assessed by a comparison of cash flows expected to be generated by an asset to its 
carrying value, with the exception that goodwill impairment is assessed by use of a fair value model (see Note 8 of the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements).  If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the 
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.   
 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets – 
 
 Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is not amortized, but is evaluated for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. We record intangible assets at historical cost. Our intangible assets 
consist primarily of non-compete arrangements, customer relationships and trade names and trademarks.  We amortize our intangible assets that 
have finite lives using either the straight-line method or based on estimated future cash flows to approximate the pattern in which the economic 
benefit of the asset will be utilized. Amortization is recorded over the estimated useful lives ranging from 4 to 7.5 years and is further described 
in Notes 4 and 8. 
 
 Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level at least annually, utilizing the “fair value” methodology.  The Company 
evaluates the fair value of its reporting unit that includes the goodwill balance by utilizing various valuation techniques.   

 
 Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and between annual tests in certain circumstances.  The Company performed its annual 
impairment test on December 2, our selected annual measurement date.  As of December 2, 2007, 2006 and 2005, after performing a valuation 
review, it was determined that there was no impairment to the recorded goodwill balance.  Our goodwill balance as of December 31, 2007 and 
2006 was $46.0 million and $25.4 million, respectively.  The goodwill balance increased $20.6 million in 2007 due to the contingent earnout 
consideration paid to the former stockholders of NDS in connection with the successful completion of NDS’ first earnout period and the 2007 
Acquisitions, as more fully discussed in Notes 4 and 8.      
  
 Other net intangibles amounted to $7.7 million and $3.8 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  The increase in intangible 
assets during 2007 is solely related to the acquisitions described in Note 4, which increased intangible assets by $5.3 million.  The additions 
were offset by current year amortization.   
 
Revenue Recognition – 

 
 Our Company recognizes revenue from providing IT and management consulting services under written service contracts with our 
customers.  The service contracts we enter into generally fall into three specific categories: time and materials, fixed-price and fixed-fee.  Our 
revenues are generated from sources such as technical consulting (inclusive of design, application development, systems integration and 
infrastructure services such as assessment and remediation and IT due diligence), Corporate Performance Management consulting (analytics, 
Business Intelligence and data services such as data integration/ETL, data management and data warehousing) and business consulting 
engagements (business process improvement, high-level program management offerings, mergers and acquisitions consulting and strategy).  
Revenue from these services is recognized as the services are performed and amounts are earned.  We consider amounts to be earned once 
evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.  
Edgewater engages in business activities under one operating segment, premium IT services, which combines strategic consulting, technical 
knowledge and industry-domain expertise to develop custom business process and technology solutions. 
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
 
 For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, revenue from technical consulting engagements, corporate performance 
management consulting engagements, and business consulting engagements represented the following: 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 The Company derives a significant portion of its service revenue from time and materials-based contracts.  Time and materials-based 
contracts represented 95.0%, 89.0% and 82.5% of service revenue for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
Revenue under time and materials contracts is recognized as services are rendered and performed at contractually agreed upon rates.   
 

Revenue pursuant to fixed-price contracts is recognized under the proportional performance method of accounting.  Fixed-price contracts 
represented 2.4%, 4.8% and 11.5% of service revenue for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Over the course of 
a fixed-price contract, we routinely evaluate whether revenue and profitability should be recognized in the current period.  We estimate the 
proportional performance on our fixed-price contracts on a monthly basis utilizing hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated hours 
to complete the project. If we do not have a sufficient basis to measure progress toward completion, revenue is recognized upon completion of 
performance, subject to any warranty provisions or other project management assessments as to the status of work performed.  This method is 
used because reasonably dependable estimates of costs and revenue earned can be made, based on historical experience and milestones 
identified in any particular contract.   
 
 Typically, the Company provides warranty services on its fixed-price contracts related to providing customers with the ability to have any 
“design flaws” remedied and/or have our Company “fix” routine defects.   The warranty services, as outlined in the respective contracts, are 
provided for a specific period of time after a project is complete.  The Company values the warranty services based upon historical labor hours 
incurred for similar services at standard billing rates.  In accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulleting 
(“SAB”) SAB No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104”), revenue related to the warranty provisions within our fixed-price contracts is 
recognized as the services are performed or the revenue is earned.  The warranty period is typically short term or for a 30-60 day period after the 
project is complete.     
 
 In the event we are unable to accurately estimate the resources required or the scope of work to be performed on a fixed-price contract, or we 
do not manage the project properly within the planned time period, then we may recognize a loss on a contract.  Provisions for estimated losses 
on uncompleted projects are made on a contract-by-contract basis.  Any known or probable losses on projects are charged to operations in the 
period in which such losses are determined.  A formal project review process takes place quarterly, although most projects are evaluated on an 
ongoing basis.  Management reviews the estimated total direct costs on each contract to determine if the estimated amounts are accurate, and 
estimates are adjusted as needed in the period revised estimates are made.  No losses were recognized on fixed-price contracts during the year 
ended December 31, 2007.  We did recognized insignificant losses on fixed-price contracts during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 
2005.   
 
 We also perform services on a fixed-fee basis under infrastructure service contracts, which include monthly hosting and support services.   
Fixed-fee contracts represented 2.6%, 6.0% and 9.2% of service revenues for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  
Revenue under fixed-fee contracts is recognized ratably over the contract period, as outlined within the respective contract. In the event 
additional services are required, above the minimum retained or contracted amount, then such services are billed on a time and materials basis.   
 
 When a customer enters into a time and materials, fixed-price contract or a fixed-fee contract, the related revenue is accounted for under 
SAB 104 and Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract (“EITF”) No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangement with Multiple Deliverables” (“EITF No. 00-
21”).  For all arrangements, we evaluate the deliverables in each contract to determine whether they represent separate units of accounting.  If 
the deliverables represent separate units of accounting, we then measure and allocate the consideration from the arrangement to the separate 
units, based on reliable evidence of fair value for each deliverable.   

Year Ended December 31, 

 
Technical 
Consulting 

Engagements 

 Corporate Performance 
Management 
Consulting 

Engagements 

 

Business Consulting 
Engagements 

       
2007  57.2%  30.3%  12.5% 
2006  61.2%  24.9%  13.9% 
2005  72.4%  27.6%  -% 
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
 Client prepayments, even if nonrefundable, are deferred (classified as a liability) and recognized over future periods as 
services are performed.  As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company has recorded a deferred liability of approximately 
$238 thousand and $84 thousand, respectively, which is included in the financial statement caption of “deferred revenue and 
other liabilities” related to customer prepayments.  
 
 Software revenue represents the resale of certain third-party off-the-shelf software and is recorded on a gross basis provided 
we act as a principal in the transaction, whereby we have credit risk and we set the price to the end user.  In the event we do not 
meet the requirements to be considered a principal in the software sale transaction and act as an agent, software revenue will be 
recorded on a net basis.  Revenue from software resale arrangements represented 3.5%, 2.2% and 3.5% of total revenue for the 
years ending December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Revenue and related costs are recognized and amounts are 
invoiced upon the customer’s constructive receipt of purchased software.  All related warranty and maintenance arrangements are 
performed by the primary software vendor and are not the obligation of the Company.   
  
 We recognize revenue for services where the collection from the client is probable and our fees are fixed or determinable.  
We establish billing terms at the time at which the project deliverables and milestones are agreed.  Our standard payment terms 
are 30 days from invoice date.  Out-of-pocket reimbursable expenses charged to customers are reflected as revenue.  

 
Our revenue and earnings may fluctuate from year-to-year based on the number, size and scope of projects in which we are 

engaged, the contractual terms and degree of completion of such projects, any delays incurred in connection with a project, 
employee utilization rates, the adequacy of provisions for losses, the use of estimates of resources required to complete ongoing 
projects, general economic conditions and other factors. Certain significant estimates include those used for fixed-price contracts, 
such as deferrals related to our volume purchase agreements, warranty holdbacks, and allocations of fair value of elements under 
multiple element arrangements, and the valuation of our allowance for doubtful accounts.  

  
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts –  

 
 The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts related to its accounts receivable that have been deemed to have 
a high risk of collectibility.  Management reviews its accounts receivables on a monthly basis to determine if any receivables will 
potentially be uncollectible.  Management further analyzes historical collection trends and changes in its customer payment 
patterns, customer concentration, and credit worthiness when evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accounts.  
The Company includes any accounts receivable balances that are determined to be uncollectible, along with a general reserve, in 
its overall allowance for doubtful accounts.  Based on the information available, management believes the allowance for doubtful 
accounts is adequate; however future write-offs could exceed the recorded allowance. 
 
Cost of Services –  
 
 Our cost of services are comprised primarily of project personnel costs, including direct salaries, payroll taxes, employee 
benefits and travel expenses for personnel dedicated to customer projects.  These costs represent the most significant expense we 
incur in providing our services. 
 
Interest Income, Net – 
 
 The following table represents the components of interest income, net: 
 

  Year Ended December 31, 
  2007  2006  2005 

  (In Thousands) 
   
Interest income        $1,652           $1,288           $1,054  
Interest expense              (53)                  (5)                    -  
Interest income, net        $1,599           $1,283           $1,054  
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
Provision for Taxes – 
 
 In determining our current income tax provision, we assess temporary differences resulting from different treatments of items 
for tax and accounting purposes.  These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are recorded in our 
consolidated balance sheets.  We evaluate the realizability of our deferred tax assets and assess the need for a valuation allowance 
on an ongoing basis. In evaluating our deferred tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that the deferred income 
tax assets will be realized.  The ultimate realization of our deferred tax assets depends upon generating sufficient future taxable 
income during the periods in which our temporary differences either become deductible or expire.  This assessment requires 
significant judgment. However, recovery is dependent on achieving such projections and failure to do so would result in an 
increase in the valuation allowance in a future period.  Any future changes in the valuation allowance could result in additional 
income tax expense (benefit) and reduce or increase stockholders' equity, and such changes could have a significant impact upon 
our earnings in the future. 
 
 As of January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FIN No. 48.  As a result, income tax reserves are based on a determination of 
whether and how much of a tax benefit taken by the Company in its tax filings or positions is more likely than not realized 
following resolution of any potential contingencies present related to the tax benefit.  Potential interest and penalties associated 
with such uncertain tax position is recorded as a component of the income tax provision.  FIN No. 48 is further described in Note 
9.    
 
Earnings Per Share –  

 
 Basic earnings per share reflect the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during each period.  Diluted 
earnings per share reflect the impact, when dilutive, of the exercise of options using the treasury stock method.  Following is a 
reconciliation of the shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007, 
2006 and 2005: 
 

    Year Ended December 31,   
  2007  2006  2005 
    (In Thousands)   
       
Shares used in computing basic earnings per share  11,793  10,980  10,241 
Dilutive effect of stock options and unvested restricted 
stock 
   awards, determined using the treasury stock method 

 

1,565  976  412 
Shares used in computing diluted earnings per share  13,358  11,956  10,653 
       

 
 Stock options for which the exercise price exceeds the average market price have an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share, 
and accordingly, are excluded from the diluted computations of earnings per share in each of the periods presented.  Had such 
shares been included, the presented number of shares for the diluted computation would have increased by approximately 0.4 
million, 0.3 million and 2.7 million in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments – 
 
 Edgewater Technology’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable 
and accounts payable.  The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate 
their fair value due to the relatively short-term nature of the accounts.  Management believes that the marketable securities have 
interest rates which approximate prevailing market rates for instruments with similar characteristics and, accordingly, that the 
carrying value for these instruments reasonably estimates fair value. 
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
Concentrations of Credit Risk –  
 
 Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of market or credit risk consist 
principally of cash equivalent instruments, marketable securities and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash balances 
with reputable financial institutions and investments are generally limited to 10% in any one financial instrument.  Marketable 
securities are carried at amortized cost or fair value, as appropriate. Trade receivables potentially subject the Company to credit 
risk. The Company extends credit to its customers based upon an evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and credit 
history and generally does not require collateral. The Company has historically incurred minimal credit losses. The Company had 
one and three customers with outstanding balances that accounted for greater than 10% of the consolidated accounts receivable 
balance as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.   
 
                      December 31, 

  2007  2006 
Accounts receivable:     
Synapse (related party – See Note 13)  11.4%  12.9% 
Customer A        -%  11.6% 
Customer B        -%  10.8% 

 
 For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, three, two and two customers, respectively, including Synapse (a 
related party – See Note 13), each contributed more than 10% of the Company’s service revenue.  For the years ended December 
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, our five largest customers represented 45.1%, 46.9% and 47.5% of our service revenue in the 
aggregate, respectively.   
 
                           Year Ended December 31, 

  2007  2006  2005 
Revenue:       
Customer C  13.6%  12.7%  15.3% 
Customer A  11.3%        -%        -% 
Synapse (related party – See Note 13)  11.0%  15.5%  21.2% 

 
Comprehensive Income –  
 
 There are no elements of comprehensive income other than net income. 
 
Share-Based Compensation – 
 
 On January 1, 2006 (the “Effective Date”), the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, using the modified-prospective transition 
method, to account for share-based awards.  SFAS No. 123R addresses accounting for share-based awards, including shares 
issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options and share-based awards with compensation cost measured using the 
fair value of the awards issued.  In accordance with SFAS No. 123R, the Company recognizes compensation cost for granted, but 
unvested awards, new awards and awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after the required Effective Date.  Prior period 
amounts have not been restated. 
  
 Prior to the Effective Date, the Company accounted for share-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method as 
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related 
interpretations.  Accordingly, no expense was recorded for options issued to employees in fixed amounts and with fixed exercise 
prices at least equal to the fair value of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant.  The Company did recognize share-
based compensation expense related to its issuances of restricted share awards prior to the Effective Date in accordance with the 
provisions of APB No. 25. 
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
 Had compensation expense related to stock options in the year ending December 31, 2005 been determined based on the fair 
value at the grant date, consistent with the methodology prescribed under SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and basic 
and diluted earnings per share would have been equal to the pro forma amounts indicated in the following table: 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 

 
1 -  Refer to Note 11 for information regarding the assumptions used by the Company in determining the fair value of 

granted share-based awards. 
 
 
 In November 2005, FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 123R-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting 
for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards” (“FSP 123R-3”). The Company has elected to adopt the alternative transition 
(“short-cut”) method provided in the FSP 123R-3 for calculating the tax effects of share-based compensation pursuant to 
SFAS No. 123R. The alternative transition method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the 
additional paid-in capital pool (“APIC Pool”) related to the tax effects of employee share-based compensation and to determine 
the subsequent impact on the APIC Pool of the tax effects of employee share-based compensation awards that are outstanding 
upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R. See Note 11 for additional information relating to the Company’s stock plans and the 
recognition of share-based compensation expense under SFAS No. 123R.  
 
Segment Information –  
 
 The Company engages in business activities under one operating segment, which combines strategic consulting, technical 
knowledge, and industry domain expertise to develop custom technology and business process solutions.  
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements –  
 
 In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations,” (“SFAS No. 141R”) which replaces SFAS No. 
141.  SFAS No. 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial 
statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill 
acquired. SFAS No. 141R also establishes disclosure requirements which will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial 
effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008.  We are 
currently evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 141R will have on our consolidated financial statements. 

  December 31,  
  2005  
  (In Thousands,  

Except Per Share 
Date) 

    
Net income as reported  $            1,600  
Add: Share-based compensation expense included    
   in reported net income, net of tax 

 
                 137 

 

Deduct: Total share-based compensation expense 
   determined under fair value-based method for all 
   awards, net of tax 1 

  
                

                    (607) 

 

Pro forma income  $           1,130  
    
Basic earnings per share:    
As reported   $             0.16  
Pro forma  $             0.15  
    
Diluted earnings per share:    
As reported   $            0.11  
Pro forma  $            0.11  
______________________    
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):  
 
 In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements – an amendment of 
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,” (“SFAS No. 160”) which establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in 
subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling 
interest, changes in a parent’s ownership interest and the valuation of retained non-controlling equity investments when a subsidiary is 
deconsolidated. The Statement also establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish 
between the interests of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2008. We are currently evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 160 will have on our consolidated financial statements.  
  
 In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, Including an 
amendment of SFAS No. 115” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measure many financial instruments and 
certain other items at fair value.  SFAS No. 159 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15.  The 
Company does not believe that adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

 
 In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for 
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years.  The Company does 
not believe that adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 
  
 In February 2008, FASB issued FASB FSP FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157” (“FSP 157-2”). FSP 157-2 will 
provide a one-year deferral of the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those that are 
recognized or disclosed in financial statements at fair value at least annually. For non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities subject to the 
deferral, SFAS No. 157 will be effective in fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 and in interim periods within those fiscal years. We 
are currently evaluating the impact that FSP 157-2 will have on our consolidated financial statements.  
 
Reclassifications –  
 
 The Company has reclassified the presentation of certain prior period information to conform to the 2007 presentation.  The comparative 
balance sheet presentation of accrued payroll and related liabilities has been expanded to breakout accrued bonuses and the cash flows from 
operating activities and cash flows from investing activities have been expanded to present the excess tax benefits from stock options.  
 
 
3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES:  
 
 All marketable securities that have original maturities greater than three months, but less than one year, are considered to be current 
marketable securities.  Our marketable securities are classified as held-to-maturity securities, which are recorded at amortized cost and consist of 
marketable instruments, which include but are not limited to corporate bonds and commercial paper.  
 
 As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the amortized cost and fair value of our marketable securities consisted of the following:  
 
     December 31, 2007    
    Gross  Gross   
  Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized  Fair 
  Cost  Gains  Losses  Value 
         
   Commercial paper  $   11,157  $        31  $            -  $    11,188 
   Corporate bonds  3,989  4                  (1)  3,992 
      Total marketable securities  $   15,146  $        35      $          (1)  $    15,180 
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EDGEWATER TECHNOLOGY, INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES (Continued):  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Amortization expense related to the net discounts and premiums on our held-to-maturity securities was $0.06 million, $0.03 and $0.2 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.   
 
 
4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS:  
  
 Acquisition of Vertical Pitch, LLC:  On December 10, 2007, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Vertical 
Pitch, LLC (“Vertical Pitch”), pursuant to the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Vertical Pitch Acquisition”).   Vertical Pitch is a 
provider of Corporate Performance Management (“CPM”)/Business Intelligence (“BI”) solutions and is located in Denver, Colorado.  The 
acquisition expanded Edgewater’s CPM/BI service offerings and continued the expansion of Edgewater’s geographical footprint providing a 
Denver-based presence.  The Company paid Vertical Pitch total consideration of approximately $20.6 million, consisting of an initial upfront 
payment at closing of approximately $14.6 million in cash and 876,038 shares, valued at approximately $6.0 million, of Edgewater’s common 
stock, $0.01 par value per share (“Common Stock”), which is subject to a lock-up agreement which expires over a three-year period.  The 
Company incurred $0.9 million of direct acquisition costs.  Approximately 29% of the total consideration paid to Vertical Pitch was allocated, 
under contractual arrangement, to certain employees of Vertical Pitch.    
 
 The Company performed a valuation to allocate the purchase price between assets, liabilities and identified intangible assets.  The initial 
allocation of the purchase price was as follows: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 There is no future contingent earnout consideration payable to Vertical Pitch in connection with the Vertical Pitch Acquisition.  
 
 The Vertical Pitch Acquisition was accounted for as a purchase transaction, and accordingly, the results of operations, commencing from the 
acquisition date of December 10, 2007, are included in the Company’s accompanying consolidated statement of operations.  The following table 
sets forth supplemental unaudited pro forma financial information that assumes the Vertical Pitch Acquisition was completed on January 1, 
2006.  The information for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 include the historical results of Vertical Pitch.   
 
 The unaudited pro forma results include estimates and assumptions regarding increased amortization of intangible assets related to the 
acquisition, a reduction in administrative wages and benefits related to the elimination of administrative and support positions and estimated 
income tax expense recorded at statutory federal and state income tax rates.  The pro forma results, as presented, are not necessarily indicative of 
the results that would have occurred if the acquisition had occurred on the date indicated, or that may result in the future. 
 
            Year Ended December 31, 

 2007  2006 
 

 
(In Thousands, Except 

Per Share Data)  
Pro forma total revenue $    81,705  $    69,100 
Pro forma net income $      9,899  $      3,539 
Pro forma diluted earnings per share   $        0.74  $        0.28 

 
 

     December 31, 2006    
    Gross  Gross   
  Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized  Fair 
  Cost  Gains  Losses  Value 
         
   Commercial paper  $   17,504  $          9  $            -  $    17,513 
   Corporate bonds  5,804  -  -  5,804 
      Total marketable securities  $   23,308  $          9  $           -  $    23,317 

  Total  Life (In Years) 
  (In Thousands)   
Net book value of assets and liabilities acquired  $            2,271   
Acquired intangible assets  3,950  5 Years 
Goodwill (deductible for tax purposes under Section 
      197 of the IRS Code) 

  
15,459 

  

   Total purchase price  $          21,680   
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued):  
 
 Acquisition of Lynx Business Intelligence Consulting, Inc.:  On September 24, 2007, the Company acquired certain assets and liabilities of 
Lynx Business Intelligence Consulting, Inc. (“Lynx”), pursuant to the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Lynx Acquisition”).  Lynx is 
a provider of professional consulting services in the CPM/BI industry and is located in Buena Park, California.  The acquisition expanded 
Edgewater’s CPM/BI service offerings and expanded the Company’s geographical footprint to the west coast.  The Company paid Lynx total 
consideration of approximately $5.0 million, consisting of an initial upfront payment at closing of approximately $3.0 million in cash and 
233,599 shares, valued at approximately $2.0 million, of Edgewater’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share (“Common Stock”), which is 
subject to a three-year lock-up agreement.  The Company incurred $309 thousand of direct acquisition costs.   
 
 The Company performed a valuation to allocate the purchase price between assets, liabilities and identified intangible assets.  The initial 
allocation of the purchase price was as follows: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 In addition, an agreement was entered into in connection with the Lynx Acquisition, and it specifies additional earnout consideration that 
could be payable to Lynx.  Earnout payments are conditioned upon the attainment of certain performance measurements for the Lynx business 
over a 12- to 24-month period from the date of the acquisition.  Assuming all performance measurements are met within the predetermined 
performance ranges, additional earnout consideration of approximately $0.5 million would be payable, in cash, to Lynx.  Any additional future 
contingent earnout consideration paid by the Company will increase the recorded goodwill amount.  
 
 The Lynx Acquisition was accounted for as a purchase transaction, and accordingly, the results of operations, commencing from the 
acquisition date of September 24, 2007, are included in the Company’s accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  Pro forma 
financial information related to the Lynx Acquisition was not presented as the effect of this acquisition was not material to the Company. 
 
 Acquisition of Alecian Corporation:  On July 2, 2007, the Company acquired certain assets and liabilities of Alecian Corporation 
(“Alecian”), pursuant to the terms of a definitive Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Alecian Acquisition”).  Alecian, which is located in Westport, 
Connecticut, provides its customers with CPM-related technology solutions that assist with strategic and operational management decisions.  
The Company paid Alecian total cash consideration of $0.5 million at closing.  The Company incurred $0.3 million of direct acquisition costs.   
 
 The Company performed a valuation to allocate the purchase price between assets, liabilities and identified intangible assets.  The initial 
allocation of the purchase price was as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 In addition, an earnout agreement was entered into in connection with the Alecian Acquisition, and it specifies additional earnout 
consideration that could be payable to Alecian.  Earnout payments are conditioned upon the attainment of certain performance measurements for 
the Alecian business over a 12-month period from the date of the acquisition.  Assuming all performance measurements are met within the 
predetermined performance ranges, additional earnout consideration of approximately $1.0 million would be payable to Alecian.  Any additional 
future contingent earnout consideration paid by the Company will increase the recorded goodwill amount. 
 
 The Alecian Acquisition was accounted for as a purchase transaction, and accordingly, the results of operations, commencing from the 
acquisition date of July 2, 2007, are included in the Company’s accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  Pro forma financial 
information related to the Alecian Acquisition was not presented as the effect of this acquisition was not material to the Company. 
 

  Total  Life (In Years) 
  (In Thousands)   
Net book value of assets and liabilities acquired  $                360   
Acquired intangible assets  1,070  4 to 5 Years 
Goodwill (deductible for tax purposes under Section 
      197 of the IRS Code) 

  
3,819 

  

   Total purchase price  $           5,249   

  Total  Life (In Years) 
  (In Thousands)   
Net book value of assets and liabilities acquired  $                   24   
Acquired intangible assets  270  4 to 5 Years 
Goodwill (deductible for tax purposes under Section 
      197 of the IRS Code) 

  
499 

  

   Total purchase price  $                 793   
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

 
4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued):  
 
 Acquisition of National Decision Systems, Inc.:  On February 15, 2006, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of NDS, 
pursuant to the terms of a Stock Purchase Agreement.  NDS provides Business Process Improvement, Program Management and Merger and 
Acquisition consulting services and is located in Stamford, CT.  The acquisition expanded Edgewater’s service offerings and provided a 
gateway into the New York/New Jersey market.  The Company paid to the stockholder of NDS total consideration of approximately $10.2 
million, consisting of an initial upfront payment at closing of approximately $7.1 million in cash, $1.4 million in assumed liabilities and 264,610 
shares, valued at approximately $1.7 million, of Edgewater’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share (“Common Stock”), which is subject to a 
three-year lock-up agreement.  The Company incurred $0.7 million of direct acquisition costs.   
 
 The Company performed a valuation to allocate the purchase price between assets, liabilities and identified intangible assets.  The initial 
allocation of the purchase price was as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 In connection with the NDS Acquisition, the Company established a $1.4 million deferred tax liability, which reduced the carrying value of 
the Company’s net deferred tax assets.  The NDS Acquisition was a stock purchase, and accordingly, the Company does not have a tax basis in 
the identified intangible assets recorded as part of the NDS Acquisition.  In accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” the 
establishment of the deferred tax liability resulted in an increase to the Company’s goodwill asset. 
 
 In addition, an earnout agreement was entered into in connection with the NDS Acquisition, and it specifies additional earnout consideration 
that could be payable to the former NDS stockholders.  Earnout payments are conditioned upon the attainment of certain performance 
measurements for the NDS business over a 12 to 24 month period from the date of the acquisition.  On February 15, 2007, the former NDS 
stockholders completed the first of two twelve-month earnout periods, during which the required minimum performance measurements were 
achieved.  During the first quarter of 2007, the Company accrued $886 thousand payable to the former NDS stockholders directly related to the 
completion of the first earnout period.  In April 2007, $709 thousand of the contingent earnout consideration was paid in cash and $177 
thousand was settled through the issuance of 21,751 shares of Common Stock.  The contingent earnout consideration paid to the former NDS 
stockholders was recorded as an increase in goodwill in the Company’s balance sheet during the first quarter of 2007.   
 
 The Company will have to pay additional earnout consideration to the former NDS stockholders at the conclusion of the second earnout 
period, which concluded on February 15, 2008.  As of December 31, 2007, the Company anticipates that it will record and pay additional 
earnout consideration of up to approximately $0.2 million during the first quarter of 2008 related to the second and final NDS earnout period.  
Any additional future contingent earnout consideration paid by the Company will increase the recorded goodwill amount. 
 
 The NDS acquisition was accounted for as a purchase transaction, and accordingly, the results of operations, commencing from the 
acquisition date of February 15, 2006, are included in the Company’s accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  Pro forma financial 
information related to the NDS acquisition was not presented as the effect of this acquisition was not material to the Company. 
 
 
5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:  
 
 During the second quarter of 2000, the Company began to divest itself from its staffing businesses.  Between June of 2000 and March of 
2001, the Company disposed of several of its business divisions in various stock and equity transactions.  In connection with the Company’s 
divesture of its staffing businesses, the Company recorded certain estimated accruals to cover anticipated expenses.  As of December 31, 2007, 
the remaining accrual for discontinued operations amounted to $23 thousand.    
 
 In June 2007, as more fully described in Note 13, the Company entered into a lease termination agreement to terminate the lease related to 
the Company’s former headquarters, prior to its scheduled June 30, 2009 expiration date.  The lease termination agreement required the 
Company to make a lump sum payment of $503 thousand, representing the remaining lease payments due under the Original Lease and a partial 
payment of projected 2008 real estate taxes.   
 
 The remaining $23 thousand accrual for discontinued operations, as of December 31, 2007, provides for the future insurance benefits 
payable to certain former executives of the Company and the remaining unresolved IRS assessment, which the Company continues to dispute.  

  Total  Life (In Years) 
  (In Thousands)   
Net book value of assets and liabilities acquired  $                336   
Acquired intangible assets  3,500  4 Years 
Goodwill (not deductible for tax purposes)  7,109   
   Total purchase price  $             10,945   
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6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:  
 
 Included in accounts receivable are unbilled amounts totaling approximately $4.9 million and $3.3 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively, which relate to services performed during the year and billed in the subsequent year.  The Company maintains allowances for 
potential losses which management believes are adequate to absorb any possible losses to be incurred in realizing the accounts receivable 
amounts recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 

The following are the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts: 
 

   Year Ended December 31,   
 2007  2006  2005 
   (In Thousands)   
Balance at beginning of year             $    318           $    403              $    214 
Provisions for bad debts                 126                 210                   189 
Charge-offs, net of recoveries                 (69)                (295)                        - 
Balance at end of year          $    375           $    318              $    403 

 
 
7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:  
 
 Components of property and equipment consisted of the following: 

 
 

 
 Depreciation expense related to property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 totaled approximately $1.0 
million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively.   
 
 The above table of property and equipment includes assets under capital leases as listed below.   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  December 31,  
 2007  2006 
 (In Thousands) 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment $    1,787  $    1,126
Computer equipment and software      1,674       3,975
Leasehold improvements      3,951      2,628 
       7,412       7,729
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization      2,663       4,338
Total $   4,749 $   3,391 

  December 31,   
  2007  2006 

  (In Thousands)   
Furniture, fixtures and equipment    $          999     $    977  
Computer equipment and software        -        -  
Leasehold improvements        -        -  
        999        977  
Less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization 

 
159 

 
13  

Total    $          840   $      964  
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8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS:  

     The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:  

 Year Ended December 31,  
 2007  2006 
Goodwill: (In Thousands) 
Balance at beginning of year  $  25,366   $  15,595  
Acquisitions consummated during 2007 19,781        -  
Acquisition consummated during 2006       -        7,109  
Additional consideration related to 2006 acquisition 886 - 
Additional consideration related to 2004 acquisition - 2,662 
Balance at end of year  $  46,033   $  25,366  

 
 The increase in goodwill during the year ended December 31, 2007 was related to the following: 
 

 In December 2007, the Company recorded $15.5 million in goodwill in connection with the Vertical Pitch Acquisition.  There is 
no future contingent earnout consideration payable to Vertical Pitch in connection with the Vertical Pitch Acquisition.  The 
Vertical Pitch Acquisition is more fully described in Note 4. 

 
 In September 2007, the Company recorded $3.8 million in goodwill in connection with the Lynx Acquisition.  Per the terms of 

the asset purchase agreement, Lynx is eligible for future contingent earnout consideration, which is conditioned upon the 
attainment of certain performance measurements for the Lynx business over a 12- to 24-month period from the date of the 
acquisition.  Assuming all performance measurements are met within the predetermined performance ranges, additional earnout 
consideration of approximately $0.5 million would be payable, in cash, to Lynx.  The Lynx Acquisition is more fully described in 
Note 4. 

 
 In July 2007, the Company recorded $0.5 million in goodwill in connection with the Alecian Acquisition.  Per the terms of the 

asset purchase agreement, Alecian is eligible for future contingent earnout consideration, which is conditioned upon the 
attainment of certain performance measurements for the Alecian business over a 12-month period from the date of the 
acquisition.  Assuming all performance measurements are met within the predetermined performance ranges, additional earnout 
consideration of approximately $1.0 million would be payable to Alecian.  The Alecian Acquisition is more fully described in 
Note 4. 

  
 In February 2007, the stockholders of NDS successfully completed their first twelve-month earnout period.  Per the terms of the 

stock purchase agreement, the former stockholders of NDS are eligible for future contingent earnout consideration, if certain 
profitability thresholds are met, during the period commencing on February 15, 2006 and ended on February 15, 2007 (the “First 
NDS Earnout Period”) and the period commencing February 15, 2007 and ended on February 15, 2008 (the “Second NDS 
Earnout Period”).  During the current year, in connection with the successful completion of the First NDS Earnout Period, the 
Company recorded and paid $0.9 million in contingent earnout consideration to the former stockholders of NDS.  As of 
December 31, 2007, the Company anticipates that it will record and pay additional earnout consideration of approximately $0.2 
million during the first quarter of 2008 related to the Second NDS Earnout Period.  Of this amount, approximately 80% of the 
contingent earnout consideration will be payable in cash and 20% will be payable in the Company’s Common Stock. The NDS 
Acquisition is more fully described in Note 4. 

 
 Following is a summary of the Company’s identifiable intangible assets that are subject to amortization: 
 

   December 31, 2007      December 31, 2006   

 

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount  

Accumulated 
Amortization  

Net 
Carrying 
Amount  

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount  

Accumulated 
Amortization  

Net 
Carrying 
Amount 

      (In Thousands)      
Identifiable intangibles:            
Non-compete agreements $   2,910  $   2,077  $       833  $   2,230  $   1,945  $       285 
Customer relationships 9,540  2,691  6,849  4,930  1,418  3,512 
Trade name and trademark 100  100  -  100  100  - 
   $ 12,550  $   4,868  $   7,682  $   7,260  $   3,463  $   3,797 
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8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued): 
 
     The intangible assets were identified and valued by the Company.  The original estimated useful lives of the acquired identifiable intangible 
assets are as follows: 
 

Non-compete agreements 4 to 5 years 
Customer relationships 4 to 7.5 years 
Trade name and trademark 2 years 

 
 As of December 31, 2007, the net carrying amount of intangible assets consists of amounts related to business combination transactions 
consummated by the Company from 2003 to 2007.  These transactions include the Vertical Pitch, Lynx, Alecian, NDS, Ranzal and Intelix 
acquisitions.  The Vertical Pitch, Lynx, Alecian and NDS transactions are further described in Note 4.  The Ranzal and Intelix acquisitions were 
completed in 2004 and 2003, respectively and are discussed in greater detail in the Company’s previously filed reports with the SEC.   
 

We amortize intangible assets assuming no expected residual value over the periods in which the economic benefit of these assets is 
consumed.  The weighted average amortization period for all intangible assets subject to amortization was 3.8 years and 3.1 years as of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The weighted-average amortization period for non-compete agreements subject to amortization was 
4.2 years and 2.7 years as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The weighted-average amortization period for customer relationships 
subject to amortization was 3.8 years and 3.1 years as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  Trade name and trademark intangible 
assets subject to amortization were fully amortized as of December 31, 2006.  Amortization expense related to all intangible assets was $1.4 
million, $1.2 million and $0.5 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  

 
 Estimated annual amortization expense for the next five years ending December 31, is as follows: 
 

 Amortization 
 Expense 
 (In Thousands) 

2008 $         3,083 
2009 $         2,642 
2010 $         1,033 
2011 $            553 
2012 $            371 

  
 
9. INCOME TAXES:  
 
 The (benefit) provision for income taxes consisted of the following: 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2007  2006  2005 

 (In Thousands) 
Current tax expense:        

Federal $        138 $         98 $        66 
State 473      465      63     

               611               563            129 
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:    

Federal           (1,891)              (117)              962 
State              80            409         9,203 
Change in valuation allowance           (1,896)         1,250         (9,444)

           (3,707)         1,542            721 
    
Unrecognized tax benefit 200 - - 
Income tax (benefit) provision     $    (2,896)     $     2,105     $        850
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued): 
 
 The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows: 
 

 December 31,  
 2007  2006 
 (In Thousands) 
Deferred income tax assets:    
   Net operating loss carryforwards and credits $     26,700 $     25,371 
   Non-deductible reserves and accruals     642     776 
   Share-based compensation 567     238     
      Total deferred income tax assets 27,909 26,385 
Deferred income tax liabilities: 
   Acquired intangible assets              (723)          (1,020) 
   Depreciation and amortization              (154)               (34) 
   Other              (198)             (308) 
      Total deferred income tax liabilities           (1,075)          (1,362) 
Valuation allowance           (4,579)          (6,474) 
Deferred income tax, net   $     22,255   $     18,549 

 
 
 Components of the net deferred tax assets (liabilities) reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are as follows: 
 

  December 31, 2007    December 31, 2006  
 Current  Long-term  Current  Long-term 
    (In Thousands)    
Assets $       2,675  $       21,150  $       2,187  $       17,948 
Liabilities              (435)          (1,135)               (427)            (1,159) 
Net asset $       2,240  $       20,015  $       1,760  $       16,789 

 
 As of December 31, 2007, we have tax affected net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately $19.0 
million and tax credits of approximately $7.2 million, which expire at various intervals through 2024.  In addition, the Company has various tax 
affected net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax purposes of approximately $0.5 million, which expire at various intervals through 
2024. The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions that limit the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards available to be used in any 
given year in the event of certain circumstances, including significant changes in ownership interests.   
 
 Due to the uncertainty surrounding the realization and timing of certain deferred tax assets, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of 
approximately $4.6 million and $6.5 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, which reduces the net assets to amounts 
management believes are more likely than not to be realized before they expire.  As of December 31, 2007, the valuation allowance primarily 
consists of reserves provided for certain state net operating loss carryforwards and foreign tax credits.   
  
 During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company, in light of current year operating results and the 2007 Acquisitions, completed certain 
analyses related to the historical valuation allowance that had been provided against certain deferred tax assets.  As a result of this review, the 
Company reversed, on a net basis, approximately $1.9 million in valuation allowance.  A majority of the valuation allowance reversal was a 
result of the Company’s judgment, based upon its current and anticipated future profitability, that it was more likely than not that the Company 
would be able to fully realize certain state and federal net operating loss carryforwards.  In 2006, the increase in the Company’s valuation 
allowance related to the Company fully reserving the net increases to its deferred tax assets due to uncertainty with respect to the Company’s 
ability to recognize the future benefit of the deferred tax assets.  
 
 The Company considers scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, ongoing tax planning strategies and 
other matters, including the period over which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable, in assessing the need for and the amount of the 
valuation allowance.  In the event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods, an adjustment to 
the valuation allowance may be recorded, which could materially impact our financial position and net income (loss) in the period of the 
adjustment.   
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued): 
 
 The differences in income taxes determined by applying the statutory federal tax rate of 34% to income from continuing operations before 
income taxes and the amounts recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations result from the following: 
 

   Year Ended December 31,   
 2007  2006  2005 
 Amount  Rate  Amount  Rate  Amount  Rate 

(Dollar Amounts In Thousands) 
Income tax at statutory rate      $      2,011         34.0%  $     1,804         34.0%       $   722         34.0%

Add (deduct):            
State income taxes, net of  

federal tax benefit               318          5.4 
  

249          4.7 
  

63         3.0 
Non-deductible intangible assets 

and goodwill amortization 
charges                    19      0.3             19      0.4 

                  
           48      2.2 

Reversal of valuation allowance 
against certain deferred tax 
assets 

 
 

         (1,896)  
                     
       (32.1)  

 
 

         -              - 

 
 

         -              - 
Benefit related to recognition of 

foreign tax credits and other 
deferred tax asset attributes          (3,606)     (61.0)          -             -          -             - 

Unrecognized tax benefits 200       3.4          -             -          -             - 
Other, net           58          1.0           33          0.6           17          0.8 
     $   (2,896)       (49.0)%  $   2,105        39.7%  $     850        40.0% 

 
  
 The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48 effective January 1, 2007.  We established no liabilities for unrecognized income tax 
benefits, penalties and interest at the time of our adoption.  We do not expect our unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly over the next 
twelve months.  
 
 A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the total amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

   
  Year Ended 
  December 31, 2007 
  (In Thousands) 
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year  $              - 
Increases in tax positions in the current year  150 
Settlements  - 
Accrued penalties and interest  50 
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year  $         200 

 
 As of December 31, 2007, the $0.2 million tax benefit, if recognized, would increase our 2007 annual effective tax rate from a benefit of 
(49.0)% to a benefit of (52.3%).  We do not expect our unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly over the next twelve months.  
 
 We are subject to U.S. federal tax as well as income tax in multiple states and local jurisdictions.  The Company’s 2003, 2004, 2005 and 
2006 tax years are open and may be subject to examination by these taxing authorities.  To our best knowledge we are no longer subject to U.S. 
federal and state and local tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2002.  Such examinations, if any, could result in challenges to tax 
positions taken and, accordingly, we may record adjustments to our tax provision based on the outcome of such matters.  However, we believe 
that the resolution of any future income tax examination will not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations.  
 
 The Company has elected to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters as a part of the income tax (benefit) provision.   
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:  
 
 The Company has a 401(k) tax deferred savings plan that is available to all employees who satisfy certain minimum hour requirements each 
year (the “Plan”).  The Company matches 30% of each participant’s annual contribution under the Plan, up to 6% of each participant’s annual 
base salary.  Contributions by the Company to the plan were approximately $0.4 million, $0.4 million and $0.3 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 
 
11. EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS:  
 
 Overview 
 
 The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, using the modified-prospective transition method, as permitted under SFAS No. 
123R.  Accordingly, prior period amounts have not been restated.  Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company followed the provisions of APB No. 
25 when recording and reporting compensation expense related to share-based awards.  Under this method, the Company must record 
compensation expense for all awards granted after the adoption date and for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain 
outstanding at the adoption date, under the fair value method.  
 
 With our adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we elected to use the Black-Scholes option pricing model and to record compensation expense over 
the requisite service period of the grant using a straight-line amortization methodology.  We will reconsider use of this model if additional 
information becomes available in the future that indicates another model would be more appropriate for us, or if grants issued in future periods 
have characteristics that cannot be reasonably estimated using this model.  
 
 Share-Based Compensation Plans 
 
 The Company has three share-based compensation plans which are described below; the Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan 
(“1996 Plan”), the Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Plan (“2000 Plan”) and the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (“2003 Plan”), collectively 
the “Equity Plans.”  Specifics related to each plan are as follows: 
  
 1996 Plan:  Grants for shares under the 1996 Plan were limited to 15% of our Company’s outstanding common stock. The only grants 

outstanding under the 1996 Plan are non-qualified stock option grants, with total qualified stock option grants under the 1996 Plan 
were limited to 650,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. No grants of qualified stock options were ever issued under the 1996 
Plan.  The 1996 Plan expired on June 30, 2006; thus, no further grants will be awarded after June 30, 2006, but options awarded prior 
to that date remain outstanding subject to the terms of the 1996 Plan and any related option agreements. 

 
 2000 Plan:  The 2000 Plan provides for grants of non-qualified stock options of our Company’s common stock. The 2000 Plan is 

limited to grants covering up to 4.0 million shares of our Company’s common stock. 
 
 2003 Plan:  The 2003 Plan provides for grants of non-qualified stock options and awards of restricted shares of our Company’s 

common stock.  The 2003 Plan is limited to stock option grants and restricted stock awards covering up to 500,000 shares of our 
Company’s common stock.    

 
 As of December 31, 2007, there were 90,034 and 17,850 shares available for future grant under the 2000 Plan and 2003 Plan, respectively.  
No shares were available for issuance under the 1996 Plan, as it expired on June 30, 2006. 
 
 Option Plans (Excluding Restricted Share Awards) 
 
 The Company’s Equity Plans authorize the granting of qualified and non-qualified stock options to officers, employees and certain persons 
who are not employees on the date of grant, including certain non-employee members of the Board of Directors.  All such options are for shares 
of the Company’s Common Stock. 
 
 The Equity Plans provide that the exercise price of the stock options will be determined based upon the fair market value of the Company’s 
common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market System as of the date of grant.  Prior to 2007, options granted to officers and employees 
generally vested in three, four or five year periods, dependent upon the plan or award, and expired on the tenth anniversary of the grant date.  In 
2007, certain option awards were made with a shorter expiration date (seven years from the date of grant) and a longer vesting period (up to six 
years).  Annual options granted to non-employee members of the Company’s Board of Directors generally vest in equal quarterly increments 
and expire on the fifth anniversary of the grant date, and option grants issued upon their initial election to the Company’s Board of Directors 
vest in equal one-third increments as of the date of grant and the first and second anniversary of the date of grant. 
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11. EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued): 
  
 During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company granted 500,350 stock options (excluding issuances of restricted share awards 
issued under the 2003 Plan), principally as part of the annual employee performance review process.  The fair value of each option award is 
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Sholes option pricing model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table.  Expected 
volatility is based upon historical volatility of the Company’s common stock.  The expected life (estimated period of time outstanding) was 
estimated using the historical exercise behavior of employees.  The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at 
the time of grant.  The Company applied an estimated forfeiture rate of 26.5% to the calculated fair value of each option.  The applied forfeiture 
rate utilized by the Company was based upon the historical forfeiture experience of the Equity Plans.   
  
 
   The fair value of each option award granted during 2007, 2006 and 2005, was based upon the following weighted-average assumptions:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 The weighted-average grant-date fair value of all options granted (excluding restricted share awards) during the year ended December 31, 
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $4.00, $2.71 and $2.26 per share, respectively.   The total fair value of share awards vested during the years ended 
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $0.7 million, $0.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively.   
 
 A summary of stock option activity under the Equity Plans (excluding restricted share awards) is presented below:   
 

      Weighted   
    Weighted  Average   

  Shares  Average  Remaining  Aggregate 
  Under  Exercise Price  Contractual  Intrinsic 

Stock Options:  Options  Per Share  Term (Years)  Value 
        (In Thousands) 
Outstanding at January 1, 2007  4,093,314  $        5.70     
   Granted  500,350  8.92     
   Exercised      (649,287)  5.35     
   Forfeited or expired      (121,593)  8.57     
Outstanding at December 31, 2007  3,822,784  $        6.09  4.40  $  5,694 
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2007  3,615,715   $        5.99  4.06  $  5,584 
Exercisable at December 31, 2007  3,042,568  $        5.67  3.51  $  5,274 
 
 The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $1.9 million, $0.7 million and $0.4 
million, respectively.   
 
 The following is a summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable under the Equity Plans as of December 31, 2007: 
 

 Options Outstanding     Options Exercisable  
  Weighted Weighted    Weighted 

Number of Range of Average Average  Number of  Average 
Options Exercise Remaining Exercise Price  Options  Exercise Price 

Outstanding Prices Life in Years Per Share  Exercisable  Per Share 
        

976,726 $3.72 - $4.95 4.6 $     4.12   921,551  $     4.09 
1,165,388 5.00 – 6.18 4.1 6.01   978,136    6.00 
1,151,780 6.25 – 7.56 3.3 6.36   1,070,791    6.33 

515,950 7.75 - 9.81 7.2 8.95        59,150   8.84 
12,940 18.25 – 30.46 0.6 23.38        12,940   23.38 

3,822,784  4.4 $     6.09   3,042,568        $     5.67 
 

    Year Ending December 31,   
  2007  2006  2005 
       
Expected volatility   41.9%   46.0%  62.0% 
Expected dividend yield  -%  -%  -% 
Expected life (in years)                      5.3             4.1                4.0 
Risk-free interest rate  4.7%  4.7%  4.4%  
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11. EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued): 
 
 2003 Equity Incentive Plan – Restricted Share Awards 
  
 The 2003 Plan also authorizes the granting of restricted share awards to officers, employees and certain non-employee members of the 
Board of Directors.  Restricted share awards are made at prices determined by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of 
Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) and are compensatory in nature.  Employees granted restricted share awards are required to provide 
consideration for the shares at the share price set by the Compensation Committee.  Shares of restricted stock generally vest over a five-year 
period, during which time the Company has the right to repurchase any unvested shares at the amount paid if the relationship between the 
employee and the Company ceases.  As of December 31, 2007, 252,170 restricted share awards were subject to repurchase by the Company 
under the restricted stock agreements.  The Company records compensation expense related to restricted share awards on a straight-line basis 
over the vesting term of the award.   

 
 During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company issued 37,800, 136,400 and 138,750 restricted share awards, 
respectively to employees at a purchase price of $0.01 per share.  Additionally, the Company recognized share-based compensation expense of 
$471 thousand, $388 thousand and $229 thousand during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively related to restricted 
share awards. 
 
 A summary of non-vested restricted share activity under the 2003 Plan is presented below: 
   

    Weighted 
  Non-vested  Average 
  Restricted  Grant Date 

Restricted Share Awards:  Shares  Fair Value 
     
Non-vested at January 1, 2007  297,400          5.51 
   Granted  37,800  9.06 
   Vested             (80,030)  5.32 
   Forfeited or expired               (3,000)  4.14 
Non-vested at December 31, 2007  252,170  $        6.11 
Expected to vest at December 31, 2007  252,170  $        6.11 

 
 The total fair value of stock awards vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $426 thousand, $254 thousand 
and $193 thousand, respectively.   
 
 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
 
 The Edgewater Technology, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) offers eligible employees the option to purchase the Company’s 
Common Stock at 85% of the lower of the closing price, as quoted on NASDAQ, on either the first trading day or the last trading day of the 
quarterly purchase period.  Enrollment periods occur on January 1 and July 1.  Purchases occur every three months.  The amount each employee 
can purchase is limited to the lesser of (i) 10% of an employee’s annual base salary or (ii) $25,000 of stock value on an annual basis.  The ESPP 
is designed to qualify for certain tax benefits for employees under section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code.  The ESPP allows a maximum of 
700,000 shares to be purchased by employees and as of December 31, 2007, 195,608 shares were available for future issuance.   

 
 During the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company issued 84,741, 75,109 and 68,198 shares, respectively, to 
employees under the ESPP.   
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11. EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued):  
 
 The fair value of each ESPP offering was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Sholes option pricing model that uses the weighted-
average assumptions noted in the following table.  The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of 
grant.  Expected volatility was based on historical volatility. 
 

   Year Ending December 31,  
  2007  2006 
     
Expected volatility  34.9%  46.0% 
Expected dividend yield  -%  -% 
Expected life (in years)                       0.25                       1.67 
Risk-free interest rate  4.7%  4.7% 

 
 The weighted-average fair value of the shares issued under the ESPP offerings in 2007 and 2006, based upon the assumptions in the 
preceding table, was $1.73 and $2.26, respectively.   
 
 Compensation Expense 
 
 Share-based compensation expense under all of the Company’s share-based plans was $1.5 million, $1.2 million and $0.2 million in the 
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.   
 
 Cash received from stock option and ESPP exercises under all share-based payment arrangements was $2.9 million, $2.1 million and $1.3 
million during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  During 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized related tax 
benefits of $729 thousand and $182 thousand, respectively.   
 
 As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, related to the unvested portion of all share-
based compensation arrangements was approximately $3.1 million and is expected to be recognized over a period of 5.3 years.   
 
 The Company is using previously purchased treasury shares for all shares issued for options, restricted share awards and ESPP purchases.  
Shares may also be issued from unissued share reserves. 
 
 
12. CAPITAL STOCK:  
 
Common and Preferred Stock -  
 
 The Company’s stockholders had authorized 48.0 million shares of common stock available for issuance as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 
and had 2.0 million shares of preferred stock available for issuance as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.   

  
Stockholder Rights Plan - 

 
 The Company has a stockholder rights plan, commonly referred to as a “poison pill,” that may discourage an attempt to obtain control by 
means of a tender offer, merger, proxy contest or otherwise.  Under this plan, our Board of Directors can issue preferred stock in one or more 
series without stockholder action.  If a person acquires 20% or more of our outstanding shares of common stock, except for certain institutional 
stockholders, who may acquire up to 25% of our outstanding shares of common stock, then rights under this plan would be triggered, which 
would significantly dilute the voting rights of any such acquiring person.  Certain provisions of the General Corporation Law of Delaware may 
also discourage someone from acquiring or merging with us.  No preferred stock has been issued as of December 31, 2007. 
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12. CAPITAL STOCK (Continued):  
 
Treasury Stock Repurchase Program - 
 
 In December 2007, our Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program for up to $5.0 million of common stock through 
December 31, 2008 (the “Stock Repurchase Program”).  The Stock Repurchase Program does not obligate the Company to acquire a specific 
number of shares in any period and may be modified, suspended, extended or discontinued at any time, without prior notice.  The Company did 
not repurchase any shares of its outstanding common stock during the year ended December 31, 2007. 
 
 During the year ended December 31, 2005, under a stock repurchase program that expired on February 25, 2005 without renewal (the 
“Original Stock Repurchase Program”), the Company repurchased 321,029 shares of its outstanding common stock for an aggregate purchase 
price of $1.6 million. From the inception of the Original Stock Repurchase Program in 2000 through its February 25, 2005 expiration date, we 
repurchased 3.6 million shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $17.9 million.   The Company did not 
repurchase any shares of its common stock during the year ended December 31, 2006. 
 
  
13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  
 
 Synapse.  Synapse, one of our largest customers and is considered a related party as its former President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Michael Loeb, is also a member of our Board of Directors.  Mr. Loeb, who resigned as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Synapse 
during 2005, remains a member of Synapse’s board of directors as of December 31, 2007.  Mr. Loeb joined the Company’s Board of Directors 
in April 2000.  Synapse has been an Edgewater customer since 1996.  Service revenue from Synapse amounted to $7.0 million, $8.7 million and 
$8.4 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  Accounts receivable balances for Synapse were $1.6 million and $1.4 million as of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, which amounts were on customary business terms. The Company typically provides services to Synapse related 
to infrastructure services, custom software development, and systems integration.  Services are provided on both a fixed-fee and time and 
materials basis.  Our contracts with Synapse, including all terms and conditions, have been negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on market 
terms similar to those we have with our other customers.  Our existing one-year services contract with Synapse, which was entered into in 
January of 2007, automatically extended through June 30, 2008, as per the terms of the contract, on January 1, 2008.  Based on the automatic 
six-month renewal and the amount of services being currently performed, it is anticipated that we will provide ongoing services to Synapse 
throughout 2008 and such services are expected to generate approximately $3.5 million in revenue during 2008.  The Company anticipates that 
it will enter into a new one-year services contract with Synapse during the first quarter of 2008.  There is no guarantee that the Company will be 
able to successfully negotiate a new contract with Synapse at the end of the current contract period.   
 
 Loeb Enterprises.  Loeb Enterprises is considered a related party as its founder and President is Michael Loeb, a member of our Board of 
Directors.  Loeb Enterprises has been an Edgewater customer since 2006.  Service revenue from Loeb Enterprises amounted to $147 thousand 
and $50 thousand for 2007 and 2006, respectively.  The Company did not report any service revenue from Loeb Enterprises during the year 
ended December 31, 2005.  Accounts receivable balances from Loeb Enterprises were $32 thousand and $4 thousand as of December 31, 2007 
and December 31, 2006, respectively, which amounts were on customary business terms.  The Company provides Loeb Enterprises with hosting 
and support services.  These services are provided on both a fixed-fee and time and materials basis.  Our contracts with Loeb Enterprises, 
including all terms and conditions, have been negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on market terms similar to those we have with our other 
customers.   
 
 Lease Agreement.  Our Company entered into a lease agreement in 1999 (the “Original Lease”), which was modified in June 2000, with a 
stockholder who is a former officer and director and an immediate family member of one of our directors (the “Landlord”).  The lease pertained 
to certain parcels of land and buildings in Fayetteville, Arkansas for our former corporate headquarters that were included in our Company’s 
discontinued operations since 2001.  On June 28, 2007, the Company entered into a Lease Termination Agreement (the “Termination 
Agreement”) with the Landlord to terminate the Original Lease as of June 30, 2007, prior to its scheduled June 30, 2009 expiration date.   
 
 The Termination Agreement required the Company to make a lump sum payment of $503 thousand, which was paid on June 28, 2007 (the 
“Termination Payment”), representing the remaining lease payments due under the Original Lease, which was to expire on June 30, 2009, and a 
partial payment of projected 2008 real estate taxes.  The amounts paid by the Company in connection with the Termination Agreement were 
previously accrued at the time the Company discontinued operations of certain divisions, which were sold in 2000 and 2001.   
 
 Rent payments, including the Lease Termination Payment, related to these facilities totaled approximately $0.6 million (including the 
Termination Payment noted above), $0.2 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.   
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:  
 
 Commitments.  On May 4, 2006, the Company executed and made effective an amendment to its Second Amendment to Lease agreement 
with Harvard Mills Limited Partnership (“Harvard Mills”) (the “Third Amendment to Lease Agreement”).  The Third Amendment to Lease 
Agreement pertains to the Company expanding its current office space at its corporate headquarters in Wakefield, Massachusetts by an 
additional 33,607 square feet (the “New Space”).  The Third Amendment to Lease Agreement extends the existing lease term related to our 
corporate headquarters located in Wakefield, Massachusetts for an additional three years, until September 30, 2016.  The Company occupied the 
New Space during the first quarter of 2007.  Rental payment and rent expense related to the New Space commenced at the beginning of the 
fourth quarter of 2006 (the “New Lease Commencement Date”).  The term of Third Amendment to Lease Agreement and the actual square 
footage covered under the lease have been modified during 2007 to reflect the actual New Lease Commencement Date and the final 
determination of actual square footage upon the completion of the build-out of the New Space. 
 
 As of the New Lease Commencement Date, base rent for the entire premises under the Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, inclusive of 
the existing space, as outlined in the Company’s Second Amendment to Lease agreement, and the New Space, will be $1.1 million per year for 
the first three-year period ending September 30, 2009, $1.2 million per year for the subsequent four-year period ending September 30, 2013 and 
$1.3 million per year for the final three-year period ending September 30, 2016.  The Third Amendment to Lease Agreement also provides for 
the payment of certain common operating expenses. 
 
 In December 2006, the Company entered into lease financing arrangements (the “Capital Lease Arrangements”) with a bank related to 
certain property and equipment, as further described in Note 7.  Payments under the Capital Lease Arrangements are to be made over a period of 
48 to 60 months and have a blended interest rate of 6.03% per annum on the outstanding principle balances.  As of December 31, 2007 and 
2006, our outstanding obligations under the Capital Lease Arrangements totaled $837 thousand and $962 thousand, respectively.  During the 
year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company made payments of principle and interest totaling $185 thousand and $20 thousand, 
respectively under the Capital Lease Arrangements. 
 
 Edgewater Technology leases office space and certain equipment under capital and operating leases that expire at various times through 
2016.  As discussed in Note 13, one of these facilities was leased from a related party, which lease was terminated in June 2007.  Accordingly, 
there are no future commitments related to this lease.  Annual future minimum lease payments required under capital leases, together with the 
present value of such payments, and future minimum lease payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2007, were as follows: 
 

  Capital  Operating  
Year Ending December 31,  Leases  Leases  
   (Amounts in Thousands)   
2008  $       251  $     1,322  
2009  251  1,176  
2010  243  1,209  
2011  158  1,209  
2012  53  1,208  
Thereafter  -  4,819  
  956         $   10,943  
Less amounts representing interest  119    

  $       837    
 
 Rent payments under operating leases, including amounts paid to related parties included in discontinued operations, was approximately 
$2.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.  
 
 Contingencies.  We are sometimes a party to litigation incidental to our business.  We believe that these routine legal proceedings will not 
have a material adverse effect on our financial position.  We maintain insurance in amounts with coverages and deductibles that we believe are 
reasonable. However, there can be no assurance that such coverages will continue to be available on reasonable terms or will be available in 
sufficient amounts to cover possible claims that may arise in the future, or that our insurers will not disclaim coverage as to any future claim. 
The successful assertion of one or more claims against the Company that exceed available insurance coverages or changes in the Company’s 
insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance requirements, would have a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.  
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ITEM 8B. 
Unaudited Supplementary Quarterly Financial Information 

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 
 

The net income and earnings per share amounts below include results from discontinued operations.   
 

   2007    
 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter 4th Quarter  Total 

Total revenue       $16,273        $18,577       $16,352        $17,288         $68,490 
Gross profit         6,781          7,553          6,936          6,828  28,098 
Income before discontinued operations         837         1,046         1,097         5,830          8,810 
Net income         837         1,046         1,097         5,830          8,810 
Basic income per share before discontinued 

operations         $0.07         $0.09         $0.09         $0.47          $0.75 
Diluted income per share before 

discontinued operations         $0.07         $0.09         $0.09         $0.44          $0.66 
Basic income per share         $0.07         $0.08         $0.08         $0.47          $0.75 
Diluted income per share         $0.07         $0.08         $0.08         $0.44          $0.66 

 
 

    2006    
 1st Quarter  2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter 4th Quarter  Total 

Total revenue       $14,308        $14,890       $15,163        $15,722         $60,083 
Gross profit         5,160          5,981          6,544          6,816  24,501 
Income before discontinued operations         460         435         1,064         1,244          3,203 
Net income         460         435         1,064         1,244          3,203 
Basic income per share before discontinued 

operations         $0.04         $0.04         $0.10         $0.11          $0.29 
Diluted income per share before 

discontinued operations         $0.04         $0.04         $0.09         $0.10          $0.27 
Basic income per share         $0.04         $0.04         $0.10         $0.11          $0.29 
Diluted income per share         $0.04         $0.04         $0.09         $0.10          $0.27 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 
 None. 
 
 
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

(a)  Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
 
 We maintain disclosure controls and procedures, which we have designed to ensure that material information related to the Company, 
including our consolidated subsidiaries, is properly identified and evaluated on a regular basis and disclosed in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulations. In response to recent legislation and proposed regulations, we reviewed our disclosure controls and procedures. We also 
established a disclosure committee which consists of certain members of our senior management. The President and Chief Executive Officer and 
the Chief Financial Officer of Edgewater Technology, Inc. (its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively) have 
concluded, based on their evaluations as of the end of the period covered by this Report, that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures 
are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports filed or submitted by it under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and 
Exchange Commission rules and forms, and include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the 
Company in such reports is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure. 
 
(b)  Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
 Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected 
benefits and related costs of control procedures. The objectives of internal control include providing management with reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in 
accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under the supervision and with the participation of our 
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our 
internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our assessment under those criteria, management concluded that the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.  
  
 Our management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited 
by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears below. 
 
 To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Edgewater Technology, Inc.  
Wakefield, Massachusetts  
  

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Edgewater Technology, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audit.  
  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  
  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  
  

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission.  
  

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated March 17, 2008 
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company’s adoption of 
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”(“FIN No. 48”) on 
January 1, 2007.  
  
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Boston, Massachusetts  
March 17, 2008  
 
 
(c)  Changes in Controls and Procedures 
 
      There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls, or in other factors that could significantly affect these internal 
controls, subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation. 
 
  
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
 None. 
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PART III 
 
 
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
  
 Information required by Part III of Form 10-K is omitted from this report because we will file a definitive proxy statement in accordance 
with Regulation 14A of the SEC’s rules on or before April 29, 2008.  These items include: 
 

(a) The information called for by Item 10 of Form 10-K, involving Item 401 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to the material 
under the captions “Election of Directors – Nominees for Election” and “Named Executive Officers” in our proxy statement for our 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008. 

 
(b) The information called for by Item 10 of Form 10-K involving Item 405 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to the material 

under the caption “Stock Ownership - Section 16 (a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our proxy statement for our 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008.  

 
(c) The information called for by Item 10 of Form 10-K involving Item 406 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to the material 

under the caption “Corporate Governance - Code of Ethics” in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held 
on June 11, 2008.  

 
(d) The information called for by Item 10 for Form 10-K involving paragraphs (c)(3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of Item 407 for Regulation S-K is 

incorporated by reference to the material under caption “Corporate Governance – Board and Board Committee Matters” in our proxy 
statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008.  

 
 
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

 
 The information called for by Item 11 of Form 10-K for management remuneration involving Item 402 of Regulation S-K and paragraphs 
(e)(4) and (e)(5) of Item 407 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the captions “Corporate Governance - 
Compensation of Outside Directors” and “Compensation of Named Executive Officers – Summary Compensation Table” in our proxy statement 
for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008.  
 
 
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

 
 The information called for by Item 12 of Form 10-K involving Item 201 (d) of Regulation S-K and Item 403 of Regulation S-K for the 
securities authorized under equity compensation plans and security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management, respectively, is 
incorporated herein by reference to the material under the captions “Corporate Governance - Compensation of Outside Directors,” 
“Compensation of Named Executive Officers – Summary Compensation Table,” “Equity Compensation Plans – Equity Compensation Plan 
Information” and “Stock Ownership – Beneficial Ownership of Certain Stockholders, Directors and Executive Officers,” respectively, in our 
proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008.   

 
 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 
 

 The information called for by Item 13 of Form 10-K involving Item 404 of Regulation S-K and Item 407(a) of Regulation S-K is 
incorporated herein by reference to the material under the captions “Corporate Governance – Board and Board Committee Matters” and 
“Certain Transactions” in our proxy statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008. 

 
 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 
 
 The information called for by Item 9(e) of Regulation 14A is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the captions “Corporate 
Governance - Board and Board Committee Matters – Audit Committee” and "Audit Fees and Non-Audit Services" in our proxy statement for 
our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 11, 2008. 
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PART IV 

 

ITEM 15.     EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 
 
 (a) 1. Financial Statements required by Item 14 are included and indexed in Part II, Item 8.  
 
 (a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules included in Part IV of this report.  Schedule II is omitted because the information is included 

in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  All other schedules under the accounting regulations of the SEC are not 
required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and, thus have been omitted.  

 
 (a) 3.  See “Exhibit Index” on the following pages.  
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(a) 3. Exhibits 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

 
Exhibit Number Description 

2.1 Earnout Agreement dated as of February 15, 2006 by and among Edgewater Technology, Inc. 
and certain stockholders of National Decision Systems, Inc. (Incorporated by reference from 
Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 15, 2006). 

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of December 10, 2007, by and among Edgewater 
Technology-Ranzal, Inc., Vertical Pitch, LLC and Daniel Gudal (Incorporated by reference 
from Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 12, 2007). 

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-07513)). 

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference from 
Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-07513)). 

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation dated May 8, 1998 (Incorporated 
by reference from Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 16, 
1999). 

3.4 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company, as amended to date (Incorporated by 
reference from Exhibit 3.3 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 
333-07513)). 

3.5 Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company, as amended to date (Incorporated by 
reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 28, 
2007). 

4.1 Form of certificate evidencing ownership of common stock of the Company (Incorporated by 
reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 
333-07513)). 

4.2 Article Four of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (included in Exhibit 3.1). 
 

10.1 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each of its directors 
and executive officers (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-07513)). 

10.2 The Company’s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan adopted May 2, 1997 (Incorporated by 
reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-29689)), 
which has been terminated by approval and adoption of the Edgewater Technology, Inc. 1999 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan referenced in Exhibit 10.52. 

10.3 The Company’s Non-Qualified 401(K) Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.27 
from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1998, as 
filed with the SEC on May 7, 1998). (1) 

10.4 Edgewater Technology, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan, most recently 
amended, effective March 20, 2002 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.48 to the 
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2001, filed with the SEC on March 
27, 2002). (1) 

10.5 Edgewater Technology, Inc. Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Plan, amended and 
restated effective March 20, 2002.  (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.49 to the 
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the SEC on March 
27, 2002) which has been amended and in its current state is reflected in Exhibit 10.51.(1) 

10.6 Edgewater Technology, Inc. Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Plan, as most recently 
amended on May 22, 2002.  (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.9 to Post Effective 
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-8, File No.  333-50912 filed with the SEC on May 30, 2002).(1) 

 
(1)   This agreement is a compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on 

Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(c). 
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(a) 3. Exhibits (Continued) 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

(1) This agreement is a compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(c).  

 

Exhibit Number Description 

10.7 Edgewater Technology, Inc. Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as 
amended on May 22, 2002.  (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.9 to Post Effective 
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-8, File No. 333-88313 filed with the SEC on May 30, 2002). (1) 

10.8 Lease Agreement by and between the Company and Brewer Investments II, LLC dated June 
28, 2000 and effective as of July 1, 2000 for Edgewater Technology, Inc.’s former corporate 
headquarters at 302 E. Millsap Rd., Fayetteville, Arkansas. (Incorporated by reference from 
Exhibit 10.54 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with 
the SEC on March 28, 2003). 

10.9 Sublease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2002 by and between the Company and Tyson Foods, 
Inc. for the sublease of the property at 302 E. Millsap Rd., in Fayetteville, Arkansas.  
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.55 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2002, filed with the SEC on March 28, 2003). 

10.10 Edgewater Technology, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4.10 of Form S-8, 333-106325 filed with the SEC on June 20, 2003. (Incorporated by reference 
from Exhibit 10.56 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 filed 
with the SEC on August 14, 2003). (1) 

10.11 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc. 
(“Edgewater Delaware”) and Shirley Singleton dated as of June 12, 2003, which supersedes 
and terminates that certain employment agreement dated as of April 14, 2000 by and between 
Edgewater Delaware and Shirley Singleton. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.57 to 
the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 filed with the SEC on August 
14, 2003). (1) 

10.12 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Delaware and Dave Clancey 
dated as of June 12, 2003, which supersedes and terminates that certain employment 
agreement dated as of April 14, 2000 by and between Edgewater Delaware and Dave Clancey. 
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.58 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2003 filed with the SEC on August 14, 2003). (1) 

10.13 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Delaware and Dave Gallo 
dated as of June 12, 2003, which supersedes and terminates that certain employment 
agreement dated as of July 31, 2000 by and between Edgewater Delaware and Dave Gallo. 
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.59 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2003 filed with the SEC on August 14, 2003). (1) 

10.14 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Delaware and Kevin Rhodes 
dated as of May 22, 2003, which supersedes and terminates that certain employment 
agreement dated as of July 19, 2002 by and between the Company and Kevin Rhodes. 
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.60 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2003 filed with the SEC on August 14, 2003). (1) 

10.15 Third Amendment to Lease between Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc. and Harvard 
Mills Limited Partnership, dated March 21, 2006 and effective as of May 3, 2006 for 
Edgewater Technology, Inc.’s corporate headquarters at 20 Harvard Mill Square, Wakefield, 
Massachusetts.  (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K 
filed with the SEC on May 3, 2006). 

10.16 Lease Termination Agreement by and between the Company and Brewer Investments II, LLC 
dated June 28, 2007 for Edgewater Technology, Inc.’s former corporate headquarters at 302 E. 
Millsap Rd., Fayetteville, Arkansas. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the 
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 3, 2007). 
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(a) 3. Exhibits (Continued) 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

 

Exhibit Number Description 

10.17 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc. 
(“Edgewater Delaware”) and Shirley Singleton dated as of June 12, 2007, which supersedes 
and terminates that certain employment agreement dated as of June 12, 2003 by and between 
Edgewater Delaware and Shirley Singleton. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to 
the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 15, 2007). (1) 

10.18 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc. 
(“Edgewater Delaware”) and David Clancey dated as of June 12, 2007, which supersedes and 
terminates that certain employment agreement dated as of June 12, 2003 by and between 
Edgewater Delaware and David Clancey. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the 
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 15, 2007). (1) 

10.19 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc. 
(“Edgewater Delaware”) and David Gallo dated as of June 12, 2007, which supersedes and 
terminates that certain employment agreement dated as of June 12, 2003 by and between 
Edgewater Delaware and David Gallo. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the 
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 15, 2007). (1) 

10.20 Employment Agreement by and among the Company, Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc. 
(“Edgewater Delaware”) and Kevin Rhodes dated as of June 12, 2007, which supersedes and 
terminates that certain employment agreement dated as of June 12, 2003 by and between 
Edgewater Delaware and Kevin Rhodes. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the 
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 15, 2007). (1) 

21.1 Subsidiaries of Edgewater Technology, Inc. as of December 31, 2007.* 

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.* 

24.1 Power of Attorney (See Signature Page).* 

31.1 13a-14 Certification – President and Chief Executive Officer* 

31.2 13a-14 Certification –Chief Financial Officer* 

32 Section 1350 Certification* 
 
 

(1) This agreement is a compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(c).  

*   Filed herein 
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SIGNATURES 
 
 Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the Town of Wakefield, State of Massachusetts, on March 17, 2008. 
 
              
    Edgewater Technology, Inc. 
              
    

              
    /s/ SHIRLEY SINGLETON 
              
    Shirley Singleton 
    Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 
 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
 
 KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below appoints jointly and severally, 
Shirley Singleton and Kevin R. Rhodes and each one of them, his or her attorneys-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him or her in 
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other 
documents in connection therewith, with the SEC, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute or 
substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. 
 
 

Name Title Date 

/s/ SHIRLEY SINGLETON 
Shirley Singleton 

Chairman, President and Chief Executive 
Officer  

March 17, 2008 

/s/ KEVIN R. RHODES 
Kevin R. Rhodes 

Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer (Principal 
Financial and Accounting Officer) 

March 17, 2008 

/s/ WAYNE WILSON 
Wayne Wilson  

Director March 17, 2008 

/s/ CLETE T. BREWER 
Clete T. Brewer 

Director March 17, 2008 

/s/ PAUL E. FLYNN 
Paul E. Flynn 

Director March 17, 2008 

/s/ PAUL GUZZI 
Paul Guzzi  

Director March 17, 2008 

/s/ NANCY L. LEAMING 
Nancy Leaming 

Director March 17, 2008 

/s/ MICHAEL R. LOEB 
Michael R. Loeb 

Director March 17, 2008 

/s/ BARRY B. WHITE 
Barry B. White  

Director March 17, 2008 
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EXHIBIT 21.1  

Subsidiaries of Edgewater Technology, Inc. as of December 31, 2007.  Edgewater Technology, Inc. owns one hundred percent (100%) 
of the issued and outstanding shares of each of the following subsidiaries. 

 

Subsidiary     State or Country of Origin 

Edgewater Technology (Delaware), Inc.   Delaware, USA 

Edgewater Technology (Europe) Limited  United Kingdom 

Edgewater Technology Securities Corp.   Massachusetts, USA 

Edgewater Technology-Ranzal, Inc.   Delaware, USA 

Edgewater New York Metro, Inc. (formerly  New Jersey, USA 

      National Decision Systems, Inc.)    
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EXHIBIT 23.1  

 
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

 
 We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-50912, 333-88313, and 333-106325 on Form S-8 of 
our report (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and contains an explanatory paragraph relating to the adoption of FASB Interpretation 
No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, effective January 1, 2007 and the adoption 
of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-based Payment, effective January 1, 2006) dated March 17, 2008, relating to the financial statements of Edgewater 
Technology, Inc., and our report dated March 17, 2008 related to the effectiveness of Edgewater Technology, Inc.’s internal control over 
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Edgewater Technology, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007.  
 
 
 
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 17, 2008 
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EXHIBIT 31.1 

 
13a-14 CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Shirley Singleton, the President and Chief Executive Officer of Edgewater Technology, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that: 
 

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Edgewater Technology, Inc. (the “Company”); 
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;   

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operation and cash flow of the Company as of, and 
for, the periods presented in this report; 

 
4. The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:  

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period 
in which this report is being prepared;   

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 

reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 

during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, to the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

 
5. The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 

over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors 
(or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 

role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
 
 
Date: March 17, 2008 /s/ SHIRLEY SINGLETON 
 Shirley Singleton 
 Chairman, President and Chief Executive 

Officer 
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EXHIBIT 31.2 
 

13a-14 CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Kevin R. Rhodes, the Chief Financial Officer of Edgewater Technology, Inc. (the “Company”), certify that: 
 

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Edgewater Technology, Inc. (the “Company”); 
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;   

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operation and cash flow of the Company as of, and 
for, the periods presented in this report; 

 
4. The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:  

 
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period 
in which this report is being prepared;   

 
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 

reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

 
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

 
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 

during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, to the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

 
5. The Company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 

over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors 
(or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

 
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 

role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
 
 
Date: March 17, 2008 /s/ KEVIN R. RHODES 
 Kevin R. Rhodes 
 Chief Financial Officer 

(principal financial and accounting officer) 
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EXHIBIT 32 
 

1350 CERTIFICATION 
 

 Pursuant to Section 906 of the Public Company Accounting Reform and Investor Protection Act of 2002 (18 
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted), Shirley Singleton, the President and Chief Executive Officer of Edgewater Technology, 
Inc. (the “Company”), and Kevin R. Rhodes, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies that, 
to the best of her or his knowledge: 
 
 The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2007, to which this 
Certification is attached as Exhibit 32 (the “Periodic Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) 
or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and the information contained in the Periodic 
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company at the end of the period 
covered by the Periodic Report and results of operations of the Company for the period covered by the Periodic 
Report. 
 
 
Date: March 17, 2008 /s/ SHIRLEY SINGLETON 
 Shirley Singleton 
 Chairman, President and Chief Executive 

Officer 
  
Date: March 17, 2008 /s/ KEVIN R. RHODES 
 Kevin R. Rhodes 
 Chief Financial Officer 

(principal financial and accounting officer) 
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